

Western Michigan University ScholarWorks at WMU

Dissertations Graduate College

8-1974

Attitudes toward a 45-15 ESY in the Western School District, Parma, Michigan

Gordon G. Archer Western Michigan University

Follow this and additional works at: https://scholarworks.wmich.edu/dissertations



Part of the Education Commons

Recommended Citation

Archer, Gordon G., "Attitudes toward a 45-15 ESY in the Western School District, Parma, Michigan" (1974). Dissertations. 2929.

https://scholarworks.wmich.edu/dissertations/2929

This Dissertation-Open Access is brought to you for free and open access by the Graduate College at ScholarWorks at WMU. It has been accepted for inclusion in Dissertations by an authorized administrator of ScholarWorks at WMU. For more information, please contact wmu-scholarworks@wmich.edu.



ATTITUDES TOWARD A 45-15 ESY IN THE WESTERN SCHOOL DISTRICT, PARMA, MICHIGAN

by

Gordon G. Archer

A Dissertation
Submitted to the
Faculty of The Graduate College
in partial fulfillment
of the
Degree of Doctor of Education

Western Michigan University Kalamazoo, Michigan August 1974

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The completion of this dissertation was accomplished with the guidance and encouragement of many individuals. I would especially like to express my sincere appreciation to Dr. Dorothy McCuskey (committee chairperson), Dr. John Nangle, and Dr. Rodney Roth for their willing and helpful guidance as my committee members. Their expertise, time, and support were always freely and generously given and appreciated. My thanks also go to the Western School District Board of Education, Administration, and Staff for the friendly and helpful assistance that they provided. Finally, I would like to thank the members of my family, especially my father, for their continuous encouragement and support.

Gordon G. Archer

INFORMATION TO USERS

This material was produced from a microfilm copy of the original document. While the most advanced technological means to photograph and reproduce this document have been used, the quality is heavily dependent upon the quality of the original submitted.

The following explanation of techniques is provided to help you understand markings or patterns which may appear on this reproduction.

- 1. The sign or "target" for pages apparently lacking from the document photographed is "Missing Page(s)". If it was possible to obtain the missing page(s) or section, they are spliced into the film along with adjacent pages. This may have necessitated cutting thru an image and duplicating adjacent pages to insure you complete continuity.
- 2. When an image on the film is obliterated with a large round black mark, it is an indication that the photographer suspected that the copy may have moved during exposure and thus cause a blurred image. You will find a good image of the page in the adjacent frame.
- 3. When a map, drawing or chart, etc., was part of the material being photographed the photographer followed a definite method in "sectioning" the material. It is customary to begin photoing at the upper left hand corner of a large sheet and to continue photoing from left to right in equal sections with a small overlap. If necessary, sectioning is continued again beginning below the first row and continuing on until complete.
- 4. The majority of users indicate that the textual content is of greatest value, however, a somewhat higher quality reproduction could be made from "photographs" if essential to the understanding of the dissertation. Silver prints of "photographs" may be ordered at additional charge by writing the Order Department, giving the catalog number, title, author and specific pages you wish reproduced.
- PLEASE NOTE: Some pages may have indistinct print. Filmed as received.

Xerox University Microfilms 300 North Zeeb Road Ann Arbor, Michigan 48106 74-28,854

ARCHER, Gordon G., 1943-ATTITUDES TOWARD A 45-15 ESY IN THE WESTERN SCHOOL DISTRICT, PARMA, MICHIGAN.

Western Michigan University, Ed.D., 1974 Education, general

Xerox University Microfilms, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48106

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF	TABLES	PAGE vi
CHAPTE	R	
I	THE PROBLEM AND ITS BACKGROUND	1
	History of the Problem	1
	Introduction to the Western School District	2
	Purpose of the Study	5
	Need and Significance of the Study	6
	Definition of Terms	7
	Scope and Limitations of the Study	8
	Organization of the Dissertation	9
II	REVIEW OF SELECTED RELATED LITERATURE	11
	Historical Overview of School Calendar Reform	11
	Representative Types of ESY Programs	13
	45-15 ESY Programs	30
	Related 45-15 Attitudinal Evaluations	36
	Summary	46
ш	DESIGN, METHODS, AND PROCEDURES	49
	Populations and Samples	50
	Instrumentation	52
n	Design	52

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

CHAPTER		PAGE
	Questions to be Explored	53
	General Procedures for Data Collection	55
	Statistical Analyses	57
	Summary	58
IV	REPORT OF THE FINDINGS	61
	Results	61
	Parent Survey	62
	Secondary Student (8-12) Survey	93
	Fourth Through Seventh Grade Survey	118
	Teaching Staff Survey	137
	Grade-Point Average Analysis	154
	Summary	156
v	SUMMARY, CONCLUSIONS, AND IMPLICATIONS	159
	Summary	159
	Conclusions	161
	Implications	166
	Recommendations	167
REFERENCE	·s	168
APPENDIX A		171

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

	PAGE
APPENDIX B	172
APPENDIX C	184
APPENDIX D	185
APPENDIX E	186
APPENDIX F	188
APPENDIX G	189

LIST OF TABLES

TABLE		PAGI
1	Summary of Populations and Samples	62
2	Characteristics of the Parent Sample	63
3	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses to Cost Related Items on the Parent Questionnaire	65
4	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses Regarding Past and Present Overall Attitudes Toward the 45-15 ESY	66
5	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses Regarding the Quality of Education Under the 45-15 ESY Program	67
6	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses Regarding Student Interest Under the 45-15 ESY Program	68
7	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses Regarding Student Achievement Under the 45-15 ESY Program	70
8	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses Regarding How the 45-15 ESY Affected the Children's Social Lives	71
9	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses Regarding the 45-15 ESY Programs' Effect on Student Participation in Extra- Curricular School Activities	72
10	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses Regarding the Effect of Summer Temperatures on Student Learning	73
11	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses Regarding Whether Multi-Entry Classes Create Problems for Students	75

FABLE		PAGE
12	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses Regarding Various Advantages and Dis- advantages of the 45-15 ESY Program	76
13	Percentage Summary of Parents' Responses Regarding Family Vacations	79
14	Relationship Between Residence Group and Parents' Feelings About the 45-15 ESY Program	82
15	Relationship Between Residence Group and Parents' Attitudes Toward Returning to Nine-Month Schedule if Money Were Available to Construct the Necessary Buildings	83
16	Relationship Between Residence Group and the Parents' Views Regarding the Effect that the 45-15 ESY had on the Quality of Education for Grades Six and Seven	84
17	Relationship Between Residence Group and Responses to the Question, "If you have children in grades 8-12, have multi-entry classes created problems for them?"	86
18	Relationship Between Parent Residence Group and Responses to the Statement, "Poorer utilization of facilities"	87
19	Relationship Between Residence Group and Parents! Responses to the Statement, "Less student boredom"	88
20	Relationship Between Number of Years of Residence and Parents! Responses to the Question, "Did you originally favor the implementation of the 45-15 ESY Program?"	89

TABLE		PAGE
21	Relationship Between Number of Years of Residence and Parents' Responses to the Question, "How would you rate your_ child(ren)'s achievement in school /grade 1-5/ this year in comparison to last year?"	90
22	Relationship Between Grade Level of Children and Parents' Responses to the Question, "To what extent do you believe that the 45-15 ESY program has affected the quality of education in the Western School District?"	92
23	Relationship Between Grade Level of Children and Parents' Responses to the Question, "Has the 45-15 program interfered with your child(ren)'s participation in extra-curricular school activities?"	93
24	Characteristics of Secondary Student Sample	94
25	Percentage Summary of Secondary Students' Responses Regarding Students' General Attitudes Toward the 45-15 ESY Program	95
26	Percentage Summary of Secondary Students [†] Responses Regarding Quality and Quantity of Instruction	97
27	Percentage Summary of Secondary Students¹ Responses Regarding "Likes" and "Dislikes" Concerning the 45-15 ESY Program	98
28	Percentage Summary of Secondary Students ¹ Responses Concerning New Problems Caused by the 45-15 ESY Program	100
29	Percentage Summary of Secondary Students [†] Responses Regarding Availability of Classes	102

ABLE		PAGE
30	Percentage Summary of Secondary Students' Responses to a Question Regarding Multi- Entry Classes	103
31	Percentage Summary of Secondary Students' Responses to Questions Regarding Vacations, Part-Time Student Work, Extra-Curricular Activities, and School "Spirit"	104
32	Percentage Summary of Secondary Students' Responses Regarding Student Friendships	106
33	Relationship Between Grade Level of Students and Students! Responses to the Question, "Which of the following statements would best describe your feelings about the 45-15 Program in the Western School District?"	108
34	Relationship Between Grade Level of Students and Students' Responses to the Question, "Do you think you are getting more instruction from your teachers this year in comparison to last year?"	109
35	Relationship Between Grade Level of Students and Students' Responses to the Question, "Which of the following would best describe your opinion of the way your teachers are teaching you this year in comparison to last year?"	. 110
36	Relationship Between Student Grade Level and Students' Responses to the Question, "Were you able to schedule classes that you needed to fulfill your educational requirements?"	112
37	Relationship Between Student Grade Level and Students' Responses to the Question, "Were you able to schedule classes that you wanted?" ix	112

FABLE		PAGI
38	Relationship Between Student Grade Level and Students' Perceptions of the Avail- ability of Elective Classes	.113
39	Relationship Between Student Grade Level and Students' Perceptions Concerning the Effects of Multi-Entry Classes on Learning	114
40	Relationship Between Student Residence Group and Students! Feelings About the 45-15 ESY Program	115
41	Relationship Between Student Residence Group and Students' Feelings About the 45-15 Program in Comaprison to the Traditional School Year Program	116
42	Relationship Between Student Residence Group and Students' Perceptions of the Amount of Instruction Received During the 45-15 ESY Program in Comparison to the Traditional School Year Program	117
43	Characteristics of Fourth Through Seventh Grade Sample	119
44	Percentage Summary of Fourth-Seventh Grade Students' Responses Regarding Vacations During the 45-15 ESY	120
45	Percentage Summary of Fourth-Seventh Grade Students' General Attitudes About the 45-15 ESY	121
46	Percentage Summary of Fourth-Seventh Grade Students! Responses Regarding Quantity of Instruction	122

TABLE		PAGE
47	Percentage Summary of Fourth-Seventh Grade Students' Responses Regarding Their Learning and Academic Achievement	123
48	Percentage Summary of Fourth-Seventh Grade Students' Responses Regarding Whether the 45-15 ESY had Caused New Problems or Changes in After-School Activities	124
49	Percentage Summary of Fourth-Seventh Grade Students' Responses Regarding Friendships and Friends' Attitudes Toward the 45-15 ESY	125
50	Relationship Between Student Grade Level and Students! Responses to the Question, "Do you think that you are getting more instruction from your teacher this year in comparison to last year?"	127
51	Relationship Between Student Grade Level and Students' Responses to the Question, "Have your after-school activities been changed because you are now going to school the year-round?"	128
52	Relationship Between Student Grade Level and Students' Responses to the Question, "How do your grades this year compare with your grades last year?"	129
53	Relationship Between Student Grade Level and Students' Attitudes Concerning the Status of Friendships	130
54	Relationship Between Student Residence Group and Students' Responses to the Question, "Are you excited about school this year?"	131

TABLE		PAGE
55	Relationship Between Student Residence Group and Students' Responses to the Question, "Do you think that you are getting more instruction from your teacher this year in comparison to last year?"	132
56	Relationship Between Student Residence Group and Students! Responses to the Question, "Has going to school year- round created new problems for you?"	133
57	Relationship Between Student Residence Group and Students' Responses to the Question, "Do you have more fun this year in school than you had last year?"	134
58	Relationship Between Student Residence Group and Students' Responses to the Question, "How do you think that your friends feel about year-round school?"	135
59	Relationship Between Student Residence Group and Students' Responses to the Question, "Which of the following statements would best tell me of your friendships this year in school?"	136
60	Characteristics of the Teacher Sample	138
61	Percentage Summary of Teachers! Responses Regarding Desired Length of Contract in Future Years	139
62	Percentage Summary of Teachers' Responses Regarding Past and Present Attitudes Toward the 45-15 ESY	140
63	Percentage Summary of Teachers' Responses Regarding the 45-15 ESY's Effect on Quality of Education and Students Learning	141

TABLE		PAGE
64	Percentage Summary of Teachers' Responses Regarding Changes in Teaching as a Result of the 45-15 ESY	143
65	Percentage Summary of Teachers' Responses Regarding the Opportunity Afforded by the 45-15 ESY Program to Make School More Interesting for Students	144
66	Percentage Summary of Teachers' Responses Regarding Various Statements Concerning Student Improvement	145
67	Percentage Summary of Teachers' Responses Regarding their Feelings about the 45-15 ESY Program	147
68	Percentage Summary of Teachers' Responses Regarding their Graduate Education	148
69	Relationship Between Number of Years Employed by the System and Teachers! Responses to the Question, "Did you favor the implementation of the 45-15 program?"	150
70	Relationship Between Number of Years Employed by the System and Teachers! Responses to the Statement, "Less discipline problems"	151
71	Relationship Between Grade Level Taught and Teachers' Responses to the Question, "Did you favor the implementation of the 45-15 program?"	152
72	Relationship Between Type of Teaching Assignment (Multi-Entry or Lockstep) and the Teachers' Responses to the Statement, "Better classroom participation"	153

TABLE		PAGE
73	Relationship Between Students' First	
	Semester GPA's of the 1972-73	
	Traditional School Year and Those	
	Same Students GPA's for the First	
	Semester of the 1973-74 45-15 ESY	155

CHAPTER I

THE PROBLEM AND ITS BACKGROUND

History of the Problem

The combined factors of continuing increases in the cost of education, demands by taxpayers throughout the nation for better utilization of existing facilities and personnel at a lower cost, and community pressure on school systems to develop improved educational programs have all tended to focus renewed and increasing attention on what are frequently called "year-round schools." The concept of "year-round school" (YRS), or "extended school year" (ESY), is not new, nor is it restricted to one pattern of operation. One form or another of the extended school year has appeared on an intermittent basis throughout the last seventy years (National Education Association, 1962, 1964). Most of the popular ESY programs can be placed in one of three categories. The first category includes those programs that attempt to provide more complete utilization of facilities and personnel for reasons of economy. A second category includes those programs that provide a longer student school year for the purposes of improving the educational program and for pupil acceleration.

The third category includes those programs that attempt to combine the functions of the first two categories. In most instances, however, the primary motivation for implementing ESY programs appears to have been for reasons of economy (Utica Community Schools, 1970). The more recent periods of ESY program implementation coincide with periods of time when student enrollments and building costs were both spiralling upward, while, at the same time, public reaction against increased taxation was also on the rise (National Education Association, 1962, p. 2).

Unfortunately, research regarding the measurement and evaluation of most of the earlier ESY programs is both limited and subjective. In most cases, these limitations resulted in an inadequate and invalid basis for judging ESY programs (Northville Board of Education, 1970, pp. 9-12). In this study, an attempt was made to avoid the above-mentioned limitations by collecting and analyzing objective data regarding the 45-15 ESY program implemented by the Western School District of Parma, Michigan.

Introduction to the Western School District

The Western School District is located immediately west of Jackson, Michigan, and, as of the 1973-74 school year, had approximately 2500 students enrolled. As was the case in many other school districts, over-crowded conditions became a major

problem in the Western School District. In 1973, school administrators estimated that their enrollment was approximately 220 students greater than the designated capacity of their facilities (Western School District, 1973). The Western Board of Education had been aware of the situation as it developed, and so in 1968 they requested the voters of the District to support a bond issue for a new middle school. The issue was rejected by the voters.

The Board then attempted to alleviate the increasingly over-crowded conditions in 1970 by using relocatable classroom units, but the voters rejected the request to support such efforts. After the 1970 election, the Board and a Citizens Committee began to look for alternative solutions, including split shifts, leasing facilities, more relocatable units, building additions to existing facilities, building a middle school, or some type of year-round program.

Split shifts were rejected as being educationally unsound because they would force the reduction of educational programs due to a shortened school day and would increase expenses at a considerably higher rate than would the other alternatives.

No suitable buildings could be located and made to meet school building codes at reasonable cost.

Some relocatable classroom units were put into use, but were not considered to be a permanent solution because they were

more expensive to obtain and operate than conventional classrooms, and they did not relieve over-crowded conditions in core
areas such as cafeterias, libraries, lockers, and gyms.

In 1967, additions were made to several buildings in the District, but it was indicated by the architects at that time that further additions were not economically advisable, and in addition, would not alleviate the problem of inadequate core facilities.

One of the two remaining alternatives that seemed feasible included a second request for support of a middle school bond issue. The bond issue, however, was defeated in June of 1972.

As a result of the bond issue defeat, the only reasonable alternative considered to be left open was to continue the study and development of some type of year-round program. An indepth study of many varied plans was coordinated by an administrator appointed to the newly created position of 45-15 Director. Many plans were studied, including the Four-Quarter plan, the Tri-mester plan, the Quin-mester plan, and the 45-15 plan. The study eventually narrowed the alternatives and selected the 45-15 plan. This program appeared to overcome most of the objections to the other year-round programs mentioned above.

In October, 1972, the Administration was authorized by the Board to undertake an in-depth study of the 45-15 plan in order to prepare for implementation of that plan for the 1973-74 academic year.

As a result of the above-mentioned Board decision, committees including students, citizens, teachers, administrators, and Board members were established to study all aspects of the decision for implementation of the plan. Finally, in February of 1973, the Board voted to implement the 45-15 plan. On July 5, 1973, the plan was put into operation.

Purpose of the Study

The primary purpose of this study was to determine the attitudes of the Western School District's students, professional staff, and community during the time that they were experiencing a mandated 45-15 ESY program. These attitudes have been identified through the use of questionnaires for each of the respondent groups.

Another objective of this study was to determine the extent to which differences in the Western School District students¹ academic performance existed between the traditional school year program (first semester, 1972-73), and the 45-15 ESY program (first semester, 1973-74). Semester grade-point averages (GPA¹s) were used to determine the extent of such differences.

Need and Significance of the Study

The significance of this study lies in the fact that up until the last few years little objective data was available on which to make valid judgments about ESY programs. The Michigan Legislature was cognizant of the situation and, through the provisions of Section One of Act 312 of the Public Acts of 1968, and Sections One and Nineteen of the Act No. 84 of the Public Acts of 1970. provided for grants to study the feasibility of, and plans for the implementation of, extended school year programs in Michigan (Roth, 1973, pp. 1-5). Among the problem areas to be studied through a survey, as a result of these grants, were the attitudes of students, staff, and community members in regard to ESY programs (Roth, 1973, p. 4). By surveying the attitudes of these groups, it is believed that a more thorough knowledge and understanding of educational, individual, and community needs can be attained and, as such, these needs can then be more effectively integrated with the functions and expectations of the school system. This study, and the data obtained through it, should provide the Western School District, as well as other school systems in the state and nation, with an objective basis for evaluating the impact of a 45-15 ESY program on its students, staff, and community, In addition, this study should provide other school systems with

an objective rationale for the implementation of an ESY program.

Definition of Terms

The use of the following terms in this study is intended to convey the attached meanings:

- 1. Extended school year (ESY). --This type of educational program will be considered synonomous with "year-round school" (YRS), and "rescheduled school year" (RSY). Even though a wide variety of operational patterns exist under these terms, the common elements that shall distinguish all such programs are that each involves a full educational program for students through a continuous year-round operation, while employing many of the certified staff on extended contracts.
- 2. Mandated 45-15 ESY program. --This phrase shall refer to a program which requires students to attend school in forty-five day modules (nine week sessions), and allows for fifteen day block (three week) vacations in each of the four seasons of the calendar year (Western School District, 1973, p. 2). The school district is divided into four sections, or residence groups (A, B, C, D,), and at any one time only

- three of the four groups are in attendance, due to a staggered system of operation (refer to Appendix A).
- 3. Attitudes. --This term shall refer to mental or emotional positions with regard to a fact or state. In this study, attitudes are further defined as those opinions expressed as responses on the questionnaires used in this study (refer to Appendix B).
- 4. Questionnaires. --The questionnaires referred to in this study are the Student, Teaching Staff, and Parent questionnaires found in Appendix B. They were constructed so as to elicit the opinions regarding the 45-15 ESY program of those individuals participating in the survey.

Scope and Limitations of the Study

This study was designed to determine the attitudes of the Western School District's students, teaching staff, and parents during the time that they were experiencing a 45-15 ESY program. It was also designed to determine the degree of differences in student academic performance as reflected in grade-point averages. Because of this focus, the following are considered to be the limitations of the study:

1. The populations from which the samples were drawn

for use in this study, and the resulting collected data, did not make it possible to generalize to any other populations outside of the Western School District. The usefulness of this study, therefore, was limited to the determination of the attitudes toward a 45-15 ESY program of the students, teaching staff, and parents of the Western School District.

2. One of the survey instruments (questionnaires) used was mailed back to the researcher by the respondents, thus posing possible problems with low return rates and increased sampling error, as well as providing little or no opportunity for alleviating or correcting misinterpretations of the questions or directions.

Organization of the Dissertation

The purpose of Chapter I was to provide an overview of the study through the presentation of a brief history of the problem, an introduction to the Western School District in which this study was conducted, a statement of the problem, a rationale for the need and significance of the study, a definition of terms, and an expression of the limitations of the study. Chapter II, Review of Selected Related Literature, contains an historical overview of factors leading to school calendar reform, a review of selected representative types of ESY programs, a review of selected 45-15 ESY programs, and a review of selected related studies concerning previous evaluations of student, professional staff, and community attitudes toward 45-15 ESY programs.

Chapter III, Design, Methods, and Procedures, includes an identification of the four populations and samples involved in the study, a discussion of the instrumentation used, the research design, the questions explored, the general procedures used for data collection, and a description of the statistical analyses.

Chapter IV contains a report of the findings, and Chapter V provides a summary of the study, a discussion of the findings, conclusions derived from the findings, and a discussion of possible implications.

CHAPTER II

REVIEW OF SELECTED RELATED LITERATURE

This chapter will present a selected review of the literature concerning the following areas: (a) a historical overview of factors leading to school calendar reform, (b) representative types of ESY programs, (c) 45-15 ESY programs, and (d) related studies pertaining to previous evaluations of student, professional staff, and community attitudes toward 45-15 ESY programs.

Historical Overview of School Calendar Reform

The "traditional" nine month school year and three month vacation has not always been traditional in American education.

In the first half of the nineteenth century, most major city school systems operated throughout a major portion of the year.

Prior to 1840, while New York City, Chicago, Buffalo, Cleveland, Detroit, and Philadelphia held classes for approximately eleven months, many rural schools held classes for only six months of the year (National Education Association, 1972, p. 6). The past differences in length of school year between the urban and rural schools can be attributed, to a great extent, to the differing needs

of the people residing in the two environments. A large proportion of students living in cities in the first half of the nineteenth century were children of first generation immigrants. These immigrant parents wanted their children to attend school for as many days as possible so that they might acquire the necessary skills, especially in the English language, before joining their parents in the labor force. In addition, Hermansen (1971) offers the observation that, "Parents needed to 'park' their children in school, to be sure that their activities could be accounted for. Hence the predominance of school calendars of eleven months, or more, in the major industrial cities (p. 9)."

Obviously, the rural environment of the early nineteenth century posed problems and involved human needs different from those of the large cities. Most labor had to be done by hand on the farm and, therefore, every able member of the household had to work long hours during the spring, summer, and fall months in order to till the land, and then plant, cultivate, and harvest the crops. Of necessity, the children's education was restricted to the winter months in rural areas.

During the last half of the nineteenth century, when both urban and rural life were becoming more mechanized, there evolved increasing concern for, and emphasis on, equalizing public education. Both rural and urban leaders in the legislatures

worked out compromises between their respective needs and desires by establishing state statutory minimums in regard to curriculum and the number of hours and days of public schooling for students. By the first quarter of the twentieth century, the school day and year had become somewhat standardized in most states with a legal minimum of 180 school days a year established by state statutes (Hermansen, 1971, p. 10). Thus, the "traditional" school year of approximately 180 days minimum has existed as the predominant school calendar since early in the twentieth century.

There has, however, been intermittent demand for calendar reform ever since the present traditional school year became standardized. The next section of this chapter will deal with selected representative types of ESY programs that include a few of the more notable "experiments" in school calendar reform.

Those selected, reflect, in varying degrees, the overall concept of year-round school.

Representative Types of ESY Programs

There are almost as many different types of ESY programs as there are school districts which have implemented them (Gatewood, 1973, p. 3). One estimate (Mc Graw, 1973, p. 10) is that there are already about one hundred districts that are operating some form of ESY program, while it is predicted that

within ten years most districts in the country will offer yearround opportunities. Increasing acceptance of year-round schools
was reported (Phi Delta Kappa, 1973, p. 130) in a summary of the
1972 Gallup Poll of Public Attitudes Toward Education that presented a comparison between the responses made in 1972 and 1970
regarding the following question about year-round schools:

"To utilize school buildings to the full extent, would you favor keeping the school open year-round? Each student would attend school for nine months over the course of a year. Do you approve or disapprove?"

The results showed that in 1970, forty-two percent of the nation's adults approved, forty-nine percent disapproved, and nine percent had no opinion. The 1972 percentages provided evidence of a trend in favor of year-round school with the results indicating that fifty-three percent of the nation's adults approved the year-round concept, forty-one percent disapproved, and six percent had no opinion.

Although a great many variations of ESY programs are possible, almost all programs can be described and defined by using a small number of variables. Gatewood (1973, p. 3) suggests that the following five characteristics be taken into consideration when examining ESY programs:

"1. Is attendance mandatory during the whole school year except when a pupil is scheduled for vacation?

- 2. Is the established curriculum available during all periods of the school year?
- 3. Can students accelerate their attendance so that they will graduate in less time?
- 4. Does each family have the same vacation pattern?
- 5. Is the year divided into two, three, four, or five parts?"

An additional three-dimensional factor to be considered concerns the basic rationale behind the implementation of an ESY program. The rationale could be economic (savings in construction and operating costs), educational (curriculum improvement and pupil acceleration), or a combination of the two. By combining all of the above-mentioned variables, it can be seen that a wide variety of ESY programs can be devised. As a result, an attempt will be made to discuss these various programs in terms of broad categories. Such categories of representative ESY programs to be explored include the Trimester, Quadimester, and Ouinmester plans, a Continuous School Year plan, a Multiple Trails plan, and a Flexible All-Year plan. These categories include almost all of the major variations of ESY plans that have been devised. Each major plan will be briefly defined and described, discussed in terms of some of the abovementioned variables, and where appropriate, discussed in terms of a school system in which it has been implemented.

Trimester plan

The Trimester plan involves the division of the school year into three equal terms of approximately sixty-eight to seventyfive days each. Generally, the trimester school year (approxi-204 to 225 days in length), and sometimes the school day, are lengthened so that two terms of the trimester are equivalent to two semesters in a traditional school year. The plan allows for pupil acceleration and, depending on the number of grades involved, can save one year in four in a secondary school involving grades nine through twelve, one year in five for grades eight through twelve, and one year in six for a school involving grades seven through twelve. The plan can be either mandatorv. with only two-thirds of the students allowed to attend at any one time, or voluntary, where students must attend two of the three terms. but attendance is not mandated for any specific terms. The mandatory version can be referred to as a "rotating" or "staggered" trimester plan when the student population is divided into three equal groups and, at any one time, only two of the three groups are in attendance. Each term is usually followed by a one-week vacation with one longer summer vacation for all students in July and August.

 $A \, dvantages \,\, of \,\, a \,\, trimester \,\, plan \,\, include \,\, the \,\, guarantee \,\, of \,\,$

the same amount of instruction time as for a traditional two semester school year, plus the ability to care for a fifty percent increase in the number of pupils (under a mandatory plan) with approximately the same number of facilities and staff.

One disadvantage of a trimester plan, especially for small school systems, involves the problem of dividing the pupil enrollment into three equal groups so as to achieve economy through efficient pupil--teacher ratios. Another disadvantage is that family and community living patterns and working habits are changed. One more disadvantage, according to Gatewood (1973, p. 11), is that any economic gains that accrue as a result of the plan are many times offset by increasing costs in things such as air-conditioning, teacher salaries, transportation, and increased difficulties in administering and scheduling school activities.

Another variation of the trimester plan is sometimes referred to as the "split" trimester plan. In this plan, somewhat of a compromise between the traditional two semesters and a "pure" trimester plan, an extended school year of between 212 and 226 days is divided into two equal terms of between seventy-two and seventy-five days, while a third terms of the same length is divided into two "split" terms of approximately thirty-seven days each in length. Attendance is optional for the student in the second term of the "split" trimester.

Several notable institutions have given serious consideration to the various trimester plans. The New York State Department of Education has extensively studied trimester plans and has made many recommendations regarding implementation of such programs (National Education Association, 1972, p. 25). In 1962, the Florida State University lab school conducted a pilot study of a trimester plan that involved a school year of 225 days. The 225 days were divided into three seventy-five day trimesters and the school day was lengthened somewhat. Another notable implementation of a trimester plan was that of Nova High School at Fort Lauderdale in September of 1963 (National Education Association, 1972, p. 27). Nova's program ran from September through July for a period of 220 days. The school year was divided into three trimesters and the five daily class periods were increased to seventy minutes in length. A non-graded program was also implemented which allowed pupils to progress at their own rates through a series of subject area achievement levels. There have been several modifications of Nova's program since that time, but the original trimester plan was discontinued for several reasons. The National Education Association Research Summary (1972. p. 27) lists the reasons for Nova's discontinuation of the program as follows:

"First, the September-July school year calendar

caused a strain on students and teachers because of a lack of extended vacations from Easter to the end of July. Second, the fact that Nova students were not released until about seven weeks after surrounding schools were dismissed for the summer caused a 'tremendous psychological letdown' on the part of the students. Finally, July was the most popular vacation month, and since students were not legally required to remain in school beyond 180 days, some parents exerted pressure to have students released early. Budgeting and teacher certification problems also contributed to the decision to seek another arrangement."

Other selected trimester programs, according to Gatewood (1973, p. 23), were in the planning stages in Ann Arbor (split trimester) and Freeland, Michigan, while the San Jacinto High School of Houston, Texas had already implemented its own trimester plan.

Quadrimester plan

The quadrimester, or Four-Quarter, type of plan generally specifies a forty-eight week school year which has been divided into four equal twelve-week terms. In a "rotating," or "staggered," quadrimester plan the student population is divided into four groups and, in the case of a mandated plan, only three of the four groups are allowed to be in attendance at any one time. Thus, while the school is in operation for the entire year, the students attend only three of the four terms. Such attendance by the students equates with the traditional school year, but theoretically increases, by

approximately thirty-three percent, the number of pupils that can be educated by the more complete utilization of existing facilities. There are several variations of this plan. While a "pure" quadimester plan may allow students to attend only three of the four terms, a "modified" version may allow the student to accelerate and attend four terms each year. Vacation schedules may also vary. In the so-called "12-4" plan, a four week vacation is scheduled for all students during the summer, while in the "12-1" plan, students are given a one week vacation between each twelve week term.

Advantages of a quadrimester plan are similar to those mentioned for trimester. The same amount of instruction time is provided for the students in the quadrimester plan as in a traditional school year. However, in the case of a mandated plan, approximately thirty-three percent more pupils may be educated with the existing facilities. Many teachers may also benefit through the achievement of full-time employment along with the higher salaries that accompany such full-time employment.

The disadvantages are also similar to the trimester plan. In the case of a quadrimester plan, small school systems would find it difficult to register equal numbers of students in each quarter (unless it was a mandated plan) in order to achieve the

most efficient pupil-teacher ratios. Vacations also pose problems due to family preferences and habits. Furthermore, the economic gains that might be realized under such a plan are often offset by increased costs for items such as air-conditioning, higher teacher salaries, and transportation.

Perhaps the most notable "experiment" in the use of a four-quarter plan is that of the Atlanta, Georgia school system. Started in 1968. Atlanta's program is one example of a fourquarter variation. Under the plan, according to Mc Graw (1973, p. 11), students are allowed to attend any three of the four quarters that they choose. The quarters, or terms, are divided into three twelve-week terms and one ten-week term which is held in the summer. The ten-week summer term classes include a ten minute increase in each class period to make up the difference in term length. The original intent was for the enhancement of educational opportunities for the students rather than for economic considerations. However, Atlanta has realized some capital sayings due to the fact that approximately ten percent of the students attend classes during all four quarters and thus graduate a year to a year and one-half early. Other advantages that have accrued as a result of the four-quarter plan included the reform of the secondary school curriculum so that subjects were divided into smaller units, which resulted in providing

Atlanta's students with an increased variety of courses to choose from.

Quinmester plan

The characteristics of a quinmester program include a school year that is generally divided into five forty-five day terms. Four of the terms equal a traditional school year, while the fifth term is generally an optional term for the students during the summer months. Even if the student chooses to attend all five terms, he will still have a four week vacation during the summer.

The advantages of the plan are usually more educational than economic. A wider variety of subjects can be offered and thus most students are able to experience additional areas of interest. It is also possible for a student to accelerate, by attending all five terms for several years, and graduate earlier than normally possible in the traditional school year.

The disadvantages are similar to those of most voluntary attendance plans, especially where unequal student enrollments in the various terms are not conducive to maximal economic savings.

Dade County, Florida and the school systems of East

Lansing, Okemos, and Haslett, Michigan provide a few examples
of quinmester programs. Roth (1973, p. 6) described the

quinmester programs of these schools as being divided into five forty-five day terms where the student is given the option of attending any four of the five terms. If the student wished to graduate early, or take enrichment or remedial classes, he could attend all five.

If the plans were mandated, rather than voluntary as they are now, it is assumed that the potential of some cost savings would be realized due to a twenty-five percent increase in available classroom space. Such an increase in space is made available by dividing the student population into five equal groups and mandating that only four of the five groups could be in attendance at any one time. The above-mentioned schools, however, have emphasized increased student learning opportunities and have remained as voluntary attendance programs.

Continuous School Year plan

The Continuous School Year plan, or continuous progress plan, provides for an extended school year of approximately 225 days for all students. One grade's work would be completed in the traditional 180 days with students then progressing to the next grade's (or level of) work during the remainder of the 225 day school year. There are generally no long vacation breaks during the year, but a six or seven week summer vacation and the

normal Christmas and spring recesses are provided (National Education Association, 1972, p. 17). The length of an extended school year is dependent on the number of grades that are included in the operation of the program. As the number of grades included in the program increases, the number of days necessary to equalize the time decreases (National Education Association, 1972, p. 17). For instance, if one year out of six is to be saved and grades one through six are included in the program, the extended school year would have to be 216 days long. However, if grades K-6 are included and one year out of seven is to be saved, the school year would only have to be 210 days long.

The advantages of a continuous school year plan, it can be seen, can be both educational and economic. The educational advantage is evidenced in a system of continuous student progress that encourages commitment to ungraded, individualized education for the students. The economic advantages involve the movement of most students through school in less time (two years saved in twelve) so that more students can be educated using the same number of facilities.

It was reported (National Education Association, 1972, p.
17) that the Grace L. Hubbs Elementary School in Commack,
New York implemented an experimental continuous progress
program in 1964. The extended school year was approximately

210 days in length and included students in grades one through four. At the end of twenty five months of operation, the experimental ESY groups showed significantly greater gains, in almost all cases, over the control groups in reading and achievement tests (National Education Association, 1972, pp. 19 & 20).

Multiple Trails plan

This plan emphasizes both educational and economic gains. It provides for a major reorganization of the secondary school program by rescheduling the school day into time modules that generally vary in length from fifteen to thirty minutes. Classes may be provided with more or less instructional time per week in a given subject, depending on the number of time modules allotted for each class. However, the extended school year of approximately 210 days will equalize the instructional time of classes over the period of the ESY so that it is equivalent to the instructional time of classes in a traditional school year. The usual Christmas and spring vacations are kept, and a length vacation in July or August is scheduled.

Gatewood (1973, pp. 13 & 14) summarized the intent of a multiple trails program by stating,

"The ultimate aim of the program is the adoption of a program of continuous progress in which secondary grade lines become insignificant. Instead,

pupils move along a subject trail at their own rates. The traditional curriculum is reorganized into broad resource units that can be completed in four, five, or six weeks."

Both the advantages and disadvantages are similar to those of the continuous school year.

The New York State Education Department recommended,
in 1968, that the multiple trails plan be given serious consideration (State Education Department, 1968, p. 111). The suggested plan of implementation included four stages. Stage I was to provide for immediate additional classroom space in overcrowded schools, due to the modular scheduling within the framework of a 210 day school year. Pupil acceleration was provided for in Stage II. Stage III was to provide for enrichment programs, and Stage IV was to achieve continuous progress either with or without acceleration (State Education Department, 1968, p. 59). As of 1968, the plan had not been tested in actual practice in New York.

Flexible All-Year plan

In this type of plan, a school would operate throughout the entire year. A continuous progress curriculum would be used so that a student could take his vacation at any time during the year and for any length of time (up to three weeks at a time), and then return to school and continue his studies at the point where he

left off (Tsitrian, 1973, p. 314). Students would be encouraged to attend any schedule they desired and could attend for as many days as they cared to over the minimum established by law. Nongraded, individualized instruction would be a necessity for such a program.

The advantages of such a program include the use of facilities and staff the year-round, flexible vacation schedules for students, their families, and teachers, and a continuous progress curriculum. It is evident that such a program alleviates many of the concerns associated with many other ESY programs. Probably of most importance is the fact that there are voluntary attendance schedules with no arbitrarily assigned vacation periods, and that continuous individualized instruction and progress are provided.

One of the disadvantages could be classified as "communication." It would take a great deal of communication with the staff and community in order to apprise them of the value of such a plan. Another important problem arises with the involvement of the secondary school level in the total plan. While the plan would seem to be appropriate and effective for the elementary level, it would take additional careful planning to implement such a plan at the secondary level. While the problems are significant, such a plan does provide for a truly flexible year-round school that alleviates many other problems associated with

ESY programs.

The Furgeson Plan for all-year school is perhaps the most notable example of a flexible all-year school plan in operation. According to Tsitrian (1973, p. 314), the plan was implemented by the Venn W. Furgeson Elementary School in Hawaiian Gardens, California. It was planned to overcome what were conceived to be two of the most important problems of ESY programs -- namely curriculum and vacation periods. In an attempt to avoid these problems at Furegson, a plan was established that would keep school open for fifty weeks a year. Such a school year would provide 235 days of possible instructional time, but the students were required to attend only the state mandated minimum of 175 days. With their parents' consultation and written approval of choices, students could choose any 175 days (or more) of the school year that they wanted to attend. They were also free to select the vacation schedule that they and their families would like for the year. Teachers had similar options.

The curriculum was set up for continuous individualized instruction that attempted to provide for individual student rates of progress. The curriculum was divided into the four subject areas of language arts, math, reading and science. Each of these major subject areas was further divided into sequential concept levels that, when combined, comprised the total six year

elementary curriculum.

Tsitrian (1973, p. 314) summarized the apparent success of the plan in the Furgeson School when he stated, "With so many options available to students and teachers, the Furgeson Plan won immediate acceptance from all of its participants (p. 315)."

An ESY program variation

The remaining two sections of this chapter will deal specifically with one particular ESY program variation that is especially pertinent to this study. The plan is generally referred to as a 45-15 ESY program.

The next section describes and defines a 45-15 ESY program and provides examples of the program as it has been implemented in three separate school systems. The first example discussed was the first 45-15 plan known to have been implemented system-wide in the country. The second example discussed was the first 45-15 plan known to have been implemented in the State of Michigan (in abbreviated and voluntary form), while the final example was the program implemented by the Western School District of Parma, Michigan which was the first district in Michigan to implement a mandated K-12 45-15 ESY program. This latter program was the primary focus of this study.

The final section of this chapter discusses previous

evaluations of student, professional staff, and community attitudes toward some 45-15 ESY programs that are in operation.

45-15 ESY Programs

A 45-15 ESY program generally is one which requires students to attend school in 45-day sessions and allows for 15-day vacations in each of the four seasons. The school district is divided into four geographical residence sections and the attendance of each of these groups is staggered so that at any one time only three of the four groups are in session (Refer to Appendix A). While attendance is usually mandated according to the residence group in which a family lives, exceptions are made in cases of extenuating circumstances.

The rationale behind the implementation of such a program tends to be an economic one, and thus, students are usually allowed to attend only their specified sessions and not accelerate their studies by attending more than four sessions a year.

Family vacation patterns are arbitrarily assigned, but three week vacations in each of the four seasons, plus the traditional Christmas and spring vacations and a week or so in the summer, gains high acceptance from the community.

The elementary teachers normally "lockstep" with their classes (teach when their class is in school and go on vacation

when their class is on vacation), but the high school situation can present some problems in terms of curriculum structure, scheduling of classes, teacher-student relationships, and the necessity, in some instances, of having multiple-entry classes. Multiple-entry classes are those in which two or more groups of students from different residence areas enter the class at different time (phases) during the course of the term.

Valley View's 45-15 plan

The Valley View Community Unit School District #365U of Will County, Illinois is located approximately thirty miles southwest of Chicago. It was the first district in the nation to have implemented a K-8, 45-15 ESY program. The towns of Romeoville and Bolingbrook lie within the district. Approximately twenty years ago, an elementary district (Valley View #96) was formed by combining six one-room schools into one elementary school with a student population of eighty-nine. The system has grown until the district now educates approximately 9,000 students in grades K-12. The school population increases had been very rapid and by 1970 the district faced a critical shortage of space for its students (Hermansen, 1971, p. 62). Since the district had exhausted the legal limit for taxing its residents, options other than building additional classrooms had to be considered. After

much deliberation and study, the option thought to be the best alternative was to reschedule the school year. Thus, by 1970, the 45-15 plan had been conceived and brought into existence for the district's students. At that time the district included only grades K-8. In 1972, the K-12 district was formed by combining Valley View District #96 and Valley View High School District #211, a dis-annexed section of Lockport Township High School District #205. As of the 1972-73 school year, all students K-12 were attending under the 45-15 plan.

The program provides for four geographical residence groups (A, B, C, D) whose families send their students to school on a staggered attendance basis. One group is always on vacation, while the other three groups are at various stages in their attendance pattern as a result of the 45-15 staggered system of operation. The school is in operation for approximately 240 days during the year, while each group is scheduled for about 180 class days of attendance. The use of a staggered operation provides the district with approximately one-third more usable classroom space.

Scheduling of students and teachers created some problems at all levels initially. In the elementary school, while most teachers "lockstepped" with their students, some formed "cooperative" groups of four teachers which assumed the responsibility for

approximately 120 students, only 90 of which were in attendance at any one time. This provided what was believed to be the necessary continuity for elementary students.

At the junior high level, a "multi-track" system was implemented so that a teacher could stay with the same groups of students throughout the year, even though, as a result of the staggered attendance pattern, the teacher might have several different groups of students during the day who were at different levels in their learning programs.

The high school departments developed and followed their own schedules within the guidelines of the program structure.

Northville's 45-15 plan

The Northville School District is located west of Detroit,

Michigan. It was the first school district to implement an abbreviated and voluntary form of a 45-15 ESY plan in Michigan.

Northville's situation can be contrasted with that of Valley View in several respects. First, literature concerning Northville's program emphasizes that the major rationale for the implementation of a 45-15 plan in the district was for the educational opportunities that would accrue (Person-o-metrics, undated, p. B-3). While it is indicated that the program was not implemented because of classroom shortages or for financial reasons, as was

the case in Valley View, it was realized that a 45-15 program does help to alleviate such problems. A second difference between the two districts was that Northville's program is completely voluntary, whereas the Valley View program had mandated attendance patterns.

In July of 1972, one hundred seventy-one K-5 students began their participation in Northville's voluntary 45-15 program in the Amerman Elementary School. By February of 1973, five hundred seventy students had been enrolled in the voluntary program for the 1973-74 school year (Person-o-metrics, undated, p. A-2).

Western's 45-15 plan

The Western School District of Parma, Michigan is located directly west of Jackson, Michigan. Western, according to a school district report (Western School District, undated, p. 1) was the first district in the State of Michigan to adopt and implement a mandatory 45-15 ESY program for a K-12 school system. The plan was implemented on July 5, 1973.

The Valley View and Western 45-15 programs are similar in their conception and operation. Both districts acknowledged that the implementation of their 45-15 plan had a basic economic rationale (the need for more classroom space), but each also recognized that the plan had additional merit in that it provided

equal or increased educational opportunities for the students.

Elementary and middle school teachers, as well as some of the secondary staff, lockstep with their students. According to an administration report (Western School District, undated p. 1) all teachers work under contracts of their own choosing which range in length of from 185 days to 245 days.

The elementary school program (K-5) in the Western District did not have to make extensive changes in curriculum structure, since the elementary teachers lockstepped with their students. The staggered attendance schedule did, however, make it necessary to develop a master room utilization schedule to handle the rotation of students and classrooms throughout each cycle.

The middle school (grades 6-7) staff also lockstepped with their students and room utilization schedules similar to those of the elementary had to be developed.

The secondary school (grades 8-12) presented significantly greater problems in scheduling and operation. Departments had to make determinations concerning things such as course length, whether courses could be better taught through the use of three-week, six-week, or nine-week modules, or whether a full semester (18 weeks), or even a full school year (36 weeks) was necessitated (Hendra, 1973, p. 18). Factors influencing these decisions included consideration of subject content, scope, and

sequence.

Other decisions had to be made concerning whether courses were to be single, dual, or multi-entry. The factors taken into consideration in making such decisions included the number of sections of each course to be offered, the numbers and combinations of students from each geographical residence area that wanted to take a course, the course subject itself, and the financial aspects involved.

It was indicated (Western School District, undated) that, as a result of the implementation of the 45-15 plan, the teaching staff began to "re-evaluate many of its present curriculum practices, and Degan serious consideration towards more individualized instruction and multi-grade level classes Percentage-2.

Related 45-15 Attitudinal Evaluations

The pertinent results of the attitudinal surveys concerning the 45-15 plans of the Valley View and Northville School Districts are summarized in this section. The attitudinal survey results concerning the Western School District's parents, students, and teaching staff will be discussed in detail in Chapters IV and V of this study.

Valley View 45-15 survey

The data discussed in this section of the study were gathered in the fall of 1971, prior to the actual experience of year-round schooling in the high school, but after approximately one year of experience in the program for the elementary (K-8). The group responses that are pertinent to this study included those of the school board members of Districts #96 (the elementary K-8 board), and #211 (the secondary school board for Romeoville High School grades 9-12), the high school professional staff, and the community.

The two school boards were separate entities at the time the questionnaires were used. A "Checklist of Priority Concerns" was used with both boards. The results showed that there were some distinct differences in their concerns about the 45-15 plan. The elementary board (#96) was primarily concerned with the program's impact on the community, while the secondary board (#211) indicated that its primary concern was the impact that the program would have on the educational operation itself, encompassing the areas of student development, school personnel, and administrative costs (Gove, 1972, p. 63). While there were both areas of agreement and disagreement among these two boards, and even though the elementary board was responding to the checklist from the standpoint of a board that had already experienced the 45-15

program for over a year, it was evident that other factors influenced their opinions. Gove (1972, p. 67) presented the following rationale for the discrepancies:

"Overall, then, it appears as if the elementary-junior high school board thinks first of the student and parent adjustment to year-round schooling at all priority levles /sic./. The high school board, perhaps considerate of the more specialized staff of teachers on the high school faculty and aware of tricky curricular adjustments to be made in the transition, showed more concern at the highest priority level with how the school system itself would be affected and changed by the 45-15 plan."

The high school faculty questionnaire was responded to by 106 out of 110 of the professional staff members. Overall, sixty percent of the high school faculty approved of the 45-15 plan (Gove, 1972, p. 64). While many gave "mixed" reactions to the plan, none of the respondents gave an outright "disapproval" to the plan. Definite distinctions were evident between the responses of men and women. In the case of reactions to the plan, seventy percent of the men tended to favor the plan, while sixty percent of the women had "mixed" reactions to it. Contract preference also showed differences of opinion between the sexes. While fifty-seven percent of the women expressed a desire for the 180 day contract, over one-half of the men indicated their desire for a full 244 day contract. Other differences involved opinions

Fifty-seven percent of the men expressed the opinion that they had a good to excellent understanding of the program, while sixty-three percent of the women believed that they had a fair to poor understanding of the 45-15 plan. Additionally, in response to the question of whether the respondent would look elsewhere for a job when the plan was implemented in the high school, thirty percent of the women indicated that they would take a "wait and see" attitude, while nineteen percent of the men indicated that they had the same attitude.

With the exception of two areas, the relationship between the teachers' ages and responses appeared to be insignificant (Gove, 1972, p. 106). The two exceptions included the responses of teachers aged twenty to twenty-four who believed that the 45-15 plan would increase the potential for student learning, and the responses of teachers aged twenty-five to twenty-nine who indicated, according to Gove (1972), in response to giving reasons for their reactions to the 45-15 plan, that they favored the plan "because it seemed to be feasible, relevant, and well-received at the elementary-junior high level \sqrt{p} . $106/\sqrt{10}$."

It was also indicated that the years of teaching experience mattered little in terms of responses to the questionnaire.

The community survey involved a random sampling of one hundred parents of children in grades nine, ten, and eleven. The data were gathered three-quarters of a year before the 45-15 plan was to be implemented in the high school. The respondents were selected from the populations of the two major towns of residence in the district. Seventy parents were from Bolingbrook (1971 population, 15,536) and thirty parents were from Romeoville (1971 population, 8,504). According to Gove (1972, p. 80) those two communities comprised nearly ninety-five percent of all of the families that had students in the Romeoville High School.

Significantly, eighty-four percent of the parents had exposure to the 45-15 plan, in that they had elementary or junior high children in the family that had experienced the 45-15 program. While they could not be categorized as a group regarding either supportive or non-supportive attitudes toward the 45-15 plan, it was found, as expressed by Gove (1972), "that their feelings toward year-round schooling were more polarized in either direction than their neighbors who had had no contact with the Plan \sqrt{p} , 81."

One interesting contrast was evidenced in the reaction to the 45-15 plan for grades K-12 in comparison to high school grades (9-12) only. While seventy-five percent rated the 45-15 plan overall as being from "average" to "excellent" for grades K-12, only fifty-two percent expressed the same reaction for a program for grades nine through twelve.

The number of years residence was viewed as not significantly affecting the communities' opinions about the plan.

Similarly, the relationship between the person who was responding (father, mother, both, or other) and the response to most questions was of little significance. However, there was a significant difference of opinion on the question regarding how the plan would affect the family vacation pattern. While seventy percent of the fathers indicated that they thought the plan would "adversely" affect their vacation patterns, only thirty-five percent of the mothers held the same opinion. When both parents answered the questionnaire together, sixty-five percent believed that the 45-15 plan would adversely affect their vacations.

In the area of student achievements, when asked if they would support the plan if achievement tests showed that students learned more under the plan, even though no money was saved, twenty-three parents were opposed. Ninety percent of those twenty-three parents were initially opposed to the plan.

Overall, there was little variation in responses between the two communities of Romeoville and Bolingbrook. While overall majority opinion seemed to favor the 45-15 plan, which was probably partially due to the families' good experience with the plan at the elementary and junior high level, Gove (1972) concluded that "it could not be affirmed that dislike of double sessions at the

high school convinced parents to favor the alternative of year-round schooling $/\overline{p}$. $8\overline{6}/.$ "

Finally, the responses seemed to indicate that parents, in deciding about the 45-15 plan for the high school, apparently listened most closely to their own children.

Northville 45-15 survey

The survey of attitudes regarding Northville's 45-15 ESY program involved three major groups. Those groups included teachers, "non-participating" parents, and "participating" parents. Since Northville's 45-15 program encompassed only one elementary building for the "voluntary" participation, there was a need to attempt to determine the attitudes of those in the community that had no exposure to the plan. Thus, the survey included "non-participating" as well as "participating" parents.

The teachers' survey was done after the first 45-15 cycle was completed. Seven teachers were involved in the 45-15 ESY program and responded to the questionnaires (Person-o-metrics, 1973). In regard to a question concerning the start of school during the middle of the summer, eighty-six percent (six teachers) indicated that they believed it was "no more difficult" than the start of a traditional school year, while one teacher believed that there was "some difficulty" (Person-o-metrics, 1973, p. C-3).

Most comments were favorable, but three of the teachers mentioned some concern about discomfort for the students and staff of hot summer days.

Six of the seven teachers indicated that they believed their students' development of basic skills was "about the same" as in a traditional year, while one person believed the students' growth to be somewhat higher.

All seven (100%) teachers believed that the fifteen day interim vacation and inservice was more conducive to their class-room instructional program.

Five teachers said that the 45-15 program had enabled them to provide a "more individualized program" than they had been able to during the traditional school year, while one indicated that it was about the same, and the other teacher's opinion was situated between the above two mentioned categories.

Many of the strengths and weaknesses of the program were also specified in comment form.

The favorable attitude of all seven teachers was reflected in a response of "yes" by all to the question of whether they would be willing to volunteer to be a part of the ESY program if it was to be continued another year.

The survey of "non-participating" parents' attitudes towards Northville's 45-15 ESY program involved 754 families

who were randomly selected and who were not participating in the program. It also involved all other non-participating families in Northville who were not among the 754 families personally interviewed. The families not in the random sample were provided with a questionnaire which could be mailed back to the researcher. For comparison, the mail-back responses of non-participating parents will be provided as percentages in parentheses after the percentages given for the random sample respondents in the non-participating parent group.

Almost equal numbers of "random sample" and "mail-back" respondents in the "non-participating" parents category believed that they were between the categories of "somewhat" and "well" informed in regard to the Northville 45-15 program. Only about eighteen percent (21%) felt that they needed more information (Person-o-metrics, 1973, pp. E-3 and E-14). Most preferred to received their information through newspapers and brochures from the school.

A combined total of close to sixty percent (75%) believed that the 45-15 program in operation was more desirable than a quarter-plan that had previously been considered.

Of those answering a question regarding why a person favored the 45-15 plan, the responses were somewhat equally divided between the categories of "It is voluntary." "The 45-15

schedule itself," and "Both" for the random—sample group,
while the "mail-back" group strongly favored the category of
"The 45-15 schedule itself."

When asked whether the program should be expanded beyond grades K-5, forty-eight percent (60%) responded positively, while twenty-eight percent (18%) said "No," and twenty-four percent (22%) were "Not certain."

The final question on the questionnaire asked if the respondents would consider enrolling their children in the program for the 1973-74 school year. Only thirty-seven percent (50%) answered "Yes," while forty-six percent (31%) answered "No" (or a qualified "no"), and about seventeen percent (19%) were "Not certain."

The "participating" parent questionnaire included five questions (Person-o-metrics, 1973, p. E-16) that were to be mailed back to the researcher by one hundred eleven families.

The respondent families all had children who had experienced Northville's 45-15 program for one cycle.

In response to a question regarding whether the family had been able to do more together as a family under the 45-15 ESY plan in comparison to a traditional school year, forty-one answered "Yes," one responded with 'No," and twenty-five saw "No Difference."

Thirty families believed that their child's attitude toward

school under the 45-15 plan, as compared to their attitude under a traditional program, was "Better," while two believed the attitudes toward school to be "Poorer," and eighteen felt that the attitudes were about the same.

Sixty-one families would like to have their child(ren) remain in the 45-15 ESY program, while four were "Not Certain," and one family was moving.

A question regarding whether the respondents had observed "any improvement in academic (school) effort" brought about the indication that twenty-seven respondents believed there had been an increase, while three thought that there had been a decrease.

Twenty-one thought that their children's academic achievement remained about the same as for a traditional school year.

An almost unanimous positive response was given to the question of whether they would recommend Northville's 45-15 ESY program to other parents in the district.

Summary

The purpose of this chapter was to present: (1) an historical overview of factors leading to school calendar reform, (2) a review of selected representative types of ESY programs, (3) a review of selected 45-15 ESY programs, and (4) a review of selected related studies concerning previous evaluations of student, professional

staff, and community attitudes toward 45-15 ESY programs.

While the literature reviewed for this study was selected so as to provide a representative overview of ESY programs in general, an attempt was made to provide a more specific focus on 45-15 ESY programs that had been, to various extents, implemented and evaluated.

The literature indicated that attempts to reform or revise the traditional school year calendar date back to the turn of this century. There was further evidence to suggest that these "reforms" were by no means limited to a small variety of program types, but that there were, on the contrary, practically as many types of ESY program variations as there were school districts that had implemented such programs. Initially, six major categories of ESY programs were discussed. These categories included the Trimester, Quadrimester, and Quinmester plans, as well as a Continuous School Year plan, a Multiple Trails plan, and a Flexible All-Year plan. Those six categories encompassed almost all of the major variations of ESY programs that have been devised. Finally, the last sections of this chapter concentrated on a specific type of ESY program that is usually referred to as the 45-15 ESY plan. Several school systems that had implemented 45-15 programs were discussed and the attitudinal surveys regarding those systems were summarized. While the data from

those surveys suggested that there was a generally favorable attitude toward the 45-15 plans as they were implemented in those systems, further objective evidence is needed concerning the Western School District's 45-15 ESY program. Such evidence is necessary in order to provide a rational basis for evaluating the impact of such a program, not only on the Western School District specifically, but also for any other school systems that are facing calendar reform and need an objective rationale for the implementation of a 45-15 ESY program. The remaining chapters of this study are an attempt to provide that basis.

CHAPTER III

DESIGN, METHODS, AND PROCEDURES

During November of 1973, the Western School District Board of Education appointed a Citizens Advisory Committee to help evaluate the 45-15 ESY program that had been implemented. as of July 5, 1973, in their school district. At the same time, the Board hired Dr. Rodney Roth, of Western Michigan University, to act as a consultant to the Citizens Advisory Committee. This writer, acting as Dr. Roth's research assistant, and in consulta tion with Dr. Roth and the Citizens Advisory Committee, developed and implemented the design, methods, and procedures necessary for the completion of this study. As such, this study was designed to determine the attitudes of the Western School District's students, teaching staff, and parents through the use of questionnaires for each of the respondent groups. This study was also designed to determine, through the use of grade-point averages (GPA's), the extent to which differences might exist in the students' academic performance between the traditional school year program (first semester, 1972-73), and the 45-15 ESY program (first semester,

1973-74).

This chapter will include an identification of the four populations and samples involved in the study, a discussion of the instrumentation used, the research design, the questions explored, the general procedures used for data collection, and a description of the statistical analyses.

Populations and Samples

There were four distinct populations from which samples were drawn for this study (refer to Appendix C). The first population was composed of all of the parents listed on the Western School District's mailing list. There were approximately 1, 333 families represented on the list which was continuously updated with the help of the local post offices. Approximately thirty percent (394) of the listed names of parents were selected for the survey by using a systematic sampling technique. A cover letter, signed by the chairman of the Citizens Advisory Committee, and the Parent Questionnaire were mailed to the 394 selected respondents on February 9, 1974. A follow-up letter and a separate signature card, to be returned separately and, therefore, anonymously after completing the questionnaire, were mailed on February 12, 1974. A final follow-up letter was mailed on

signature card as of that date. As of the final day for questionnaires to be returned (March 4, 1974), 314 parents had returned their questionnaires for an eighty percent rate of return.

The second population consisted of all of the elementary and middle school students in the Western School District. The third population included all of the secondary (8-12) students in the system. Sample classrooms of fourth through seventh grade students were drawn on a stratified random basis by grade level and residence group. Sample English classes of the eighth through tenth grade students were also drawn on the same basis. Eleventh and twelfth grade student samples were randomly selected on a stratified basis through the use of class lists arranged alphabetically for each residence group. The fourth through seventh grade student population consisted of 838 students. Forty-nine percent, or 414 elementary and middle school students were included in the randomly selected sample of classrooms. Of the 414 students in the fourth-seventh grade sample, 387 (93%) completed questionnaires. There were 898 students in the eight through twelfth grade population, of which 472 (53%) were included in the secondary sample. Eighty-four percent (398 students) of the secondary sample completed questionnaires.

Instrumentation

The Parent, Secondary Student, Fourth-Seventh Grade Student, and Teaching Staff Questionnaires were the main instruments of this study (refer to Appendix B). All data collected from these groups, with the exception of student grade-point averages, were collected by means of these questionnaires.

The questionnaires were formulated through the cooperative efforts of the Citizens Advisory Committee of the Western School District, their consultant, Dr. Roth, and this writer. The Citizens Advisory Committee was composed of community members who were representative of the total community. Four sub-committees of the Citizens Advisory Committee were formed and each one had the responsibility for developing a final draft of one of the questionnaires. Work was begun in November and the final forms of the questionnaires were ready for use by the first week in February. The questionnaires consisted of from fifteen to twenty questions that could be responded to by placing a check mark before the respondent's answer selected from among several alternative choices. A few "open-ended" items were also included on all questionnaires which allowed for additional written comments.

Design

The design of this study was formulated so as to facilitate

the collection of data regarding the identification of the attitudes of various respondent groups within the Western School District. The design also included the means for collecting student grade-point averages for program comparison. The questionnaire data were collected, tabulated, and then analyzed by chi square tests. Correlated <u>t</u>-tests were used for the grade-point average comparisons.

It was expected that such analyses would provide a more thorough knowledge and understanding of the attitudes of the various segments of the Western School District and provide an objective basis for evaluating the impact of the 45-15 ESY program on the District's students, teaching staff, and community.

All four respondent groups were surveyed during the first half of February. The parents were surveyed through the mail. The teaching staff was surveyed in individual buildings and with the help of a teachers! organization representative within each building. All students were surveyed personally by this writer in classroom groups or, in the case of eleventh and twelfth grade students, in small groups according to grade level and residence groupings.

Questions to be Explored

The objectives of this study were to determine the attitudes of the students, teaching staff, and community parents in the

Western School District in regard to the educational, economic, and personal issues relating to the mandated 45-15 program implemented in July of 1973.

More specifically, the study explored the following questions:

- What percentages of the various respondent groups favored or opposed the 45-15 ESY program as implemented in the Western
- 2. What were the response distributions for the various respondent groups in terms of the educational, economic, and/or personal questions on the questionnaires?
- 3. Were the attitudes of the parents dependent upon: (a) the residence group in which they lived, (b) the grade level of their children, or (c) the number of years that they had
- 4. Were the attitudes of the students dependent upon: (a) their grade level, or (b) the residence group in which they lived?
- Were the attitudes of the teachers dependent
 upon: (a) the number of years they had been

- employed in the WSD, (b) the grade level that they taught, or (c) the type of teaching assignment (lock-step, multi-entry) that they chose?
- 6. Was there a significant difference in the students GPA's between the traditional school year program of 1972-73 (first semester), and the 45-15 ESY program of 1973-74 (first semester)?

General Procedures for Data Collection

The questionnaires (Appendix B), the Cover Letter (Appendix D), and the Follow-up Letter and Signature Card (Appendix E) were printed and ready for use by February 1, 1974.

The Parent Questionnaires and the Cover Letter (along with a stamped, self-addressed return envelope) were sent in the first mailing to the 394 randomly selected parents in the District on February 9, 1974. On February 12, 1974, the Follow-up letter and the Signature Card were mailed to the same 394 parents. By February 25, 1974, approximately 225 Signature Cards, as well as approximately 294 questionnaires had been returned. On that date, a second follow-up letter (Appendix F) was mailed to those of the original 394 who had not returned their Signature Card. By March 4, the final day for questionnaire returns, twenty additional

questionnaires had been received for a total return of 314 questionnaires, or eighty percent of the parent sample.

The Signature Card was used to assure each parentrespondent complete anonymity.

Chi square tests were used to determine whether a significant difference existed between the first group of 294 parent respondents and the twenty "non-respondents" who returned their completed questionnaires after the second follow-up letter. No significant difference was observed (at the .05 level of probability) between the two groups on the two questions used for the analysis (questions #6 and #7).

The Student Questionnaires (one for fourth-seventh grades and one for eighth-twelfth grades) were personally administered by this writer in the randomly selected classrooms in grades four through ten, and in groups of less than thirty for those randomly selected eleventh and twelfth grade students. Ninety-three percent of the fourth-seventh grade student sample completed question-naires, while eighty-four percent of the secondary (8-12) student sample did so. Because of the 45-15 program's staggered student attendance schedule, groups A, B, and D were surveyed between February 7 and 13, while students in group C were surveyed, after coming back from their three week vacation break, on February 14 and 15.

The Teaching Staff Questionnaire was given to a representative of the teachers' professional organization in each building for distribution. One day later, this writer personally collected the questionnaires from each building representative.

Since a few of the teachers were also on staggered work schedules (lock-stepping), those teaching during the attendance of groups A, B, and D were surveyed during the week of February 4, 1974, and those teachers returning with group C students were surveyed on February 14 and 15. Out of 114 teachers in the system, 108 (94%) completed questionnaires.

As with the Parent Questionnaire, all other respondent groups were assured that their answers would remain anonymous.

On March 14, 1974, at a combined meeting of the Western Board of Education and the Citizens Advisory Committee, the survey results were presented through the use of percentages and summaries of written responses (refer to Appendix G).

Statistical Analyses

The procedures for the analyses were determined by the various objectives of the study and the nature of the respondent data. The first two "questions to be explored," that were discussed earlier in this chapter, dealt with percentage breakdowns for the responses to questionnaire items, and necessitated only the

tabulation and computation of the raw data into percentage form. Appendix G provides a complete tabulation of percentages regarding responses to all of the questions on all of the questionnaires, while Chapter IV discusses these percentages in greater detail. Questions three through five were analyzed by using the chi square test to determine whether any significant relationships existed between selected questionnaire items. Question six necessitated the use of a correlated <u>t</u>-test for matched groups to analyze the extent of difference in student GPA's between the first semester of 1972-73 (traditional school year), and the first semester of 1973-74 (45-15 ESY).

All chi squares and t-values obtained were reported along with their probability levels. The .05 level was utilized as the basis for determining statistical significance. Those chi square values that were not significant (those that were not at least significant at the .05 level) were not reported.

Summary

This field study was designed to determine the attitudes of the Western School District's students, teaching staff, and community parents through the use of questionnaires for each of the respondent groups. The study was also designed to determine the extent to which differences might exist in the students' academic performance between a traditional and a 45-15 ESY program.

Four populations were identified from which representative samples were to be drawn. From the parent population of approximately 1,333, three hundred ninety-four were randomly selected for the sample. Eighty percent, or 314 parents returned their questionnaires. Of the 898 secondary students in the school system's population, 472 were selected as a sample. Eighty-four percent (398) of the secondary students completed questionnaires. The fourth through seventh grade population was composed of 838 students, of which 414 were selected as a sample. Ninety-three percent, or 387 students, completed the Fourth Through Seventh Grade Questionnaires. Of the 114 teachers in the school system, 108, or ninety-four percent completed a questionnaire.

The instrumentation used to collect the data included four separate questionnaires (Appendix B) which were developed by the Western School District's Citizen Advisory Committee in consultation with Dr. Rodney Roth of Western Michigan University, and this writer.

Each respondent group completed their questionnaires during the month of February, 1974. The collection of the data was by mail for the parent group, by this writer's personal contact with the student groups, and by teacher association representative's contacts within the teachers' group. The data were first tabulated and presented in percentage form to a combined meeting of the Western School District Board of Education and the Citizens Advisory Committee. In addition, the data were statistically analyzed by using chi square tests for the questionnaires and by using correlated <u>t</u>-tests for the student grade-point averages in an attempt to answer the questions previously posed in this study.

All chi squares and \underline{t} -ratios obtained were evaluated in terms of a probability level of .05 to establish statistical significance.

CHAPTER IV

REPORT OF THE FINDINGS

Results

The results of this study are presented and discussed within the framework of the "six questions to be explored" that were previously set forth in Chapter III. The first two "questions," pertaining to response distributions for the items on each questionnaire, are pertinent to all four respondent groups and shall, therefore, be discussed within the context of each questionnaire. The other four "questions" are each applicable to only one specific respondent group and, thus, shall be discussed in the context of only that particular respondent group. A complete summary of all responses for all questionnaires, in terms of percentages and written responses, is presented in Appendix G.

A summary of the populations and samples referred to in this chapter is presented in Table 1.

TABLE 1. -- Summary of populations and samples

	Number in popu- lation	Number in sample	Sample as % of popula - tion	Number of Sample Returns	Return Rate
Parents	1333	394	30%	314	80%
Secondary Students	898	472	53%	398	84%
Fourth - Seventh Grade Students	838	414	49%	387	93%
Teachers	114	114	100%	108	94%

Parent Survey

Percentage summaries of parent responses

Three hundred ninety-four names were randomly selected from the parent population of 1,333 to provide a thirty percent sample of the population. Of this sample, 314, or eighty percent returned their questionnaires. Table 2 provides a demographic outline of the parent respondents.

The characteristics of the parent sample that are displayed in Table 2 include the following:

 Approximately one-quarter of the parent sample was represented in each of the residence sections. A chi square test determined that the observed differences in the proportions of respondents in the residence sections were not statistically significant at the .05 level of probability and, therefore, the differences could be attributed to chance.

TABLE 2. -- Characteristics of the parent sample.

Percentages of Parents Residing in Each Residence Section		Number of Years of Residence in School District		
in Each Residence	Section	dence in School Dist	rict	
Group A	30%	0 - 1 years	11%	
Group B	26%	2 - 5 years	27%	
Group C	21%	6 or more years	62%	
Group D	22%	•		
Didn't Know	2%			

Percentage of Parents with Children at Various Grade Levels*

One or more pre-school	
children	25%
Children in grades K-5	60%
Children in grades 6-7	29%
Children in grades 8-12	45%
School age children not	
enrolled in the WSD	8%
Have no children presently	
enrolled in the WSD	7%

*Percentages will total more than 100% due to possibility of more than one child per family.

A large majority of the parent respondents (62%)
 had lived in the school district for six or more

- years, while twenty-seven percent had lived in the district from two through five years, and eleven percent had lived in the district one year
- 3. The largest percentage of parent respondents (60%) had children in grades K-5, followed by forty-five percent with children in grades 8-12, and twenty-nine percent with children in grades 6-7. Approximately twenty-five percent of the respondents had pre-school age children. The difference between the percentage of respondents with school age children not enrolled in the Western School District (8%), and those respondents who had no children enrolled in the Western School District (7%) could indicate the percentage of school age children living in the school district who are attending private schools.

Table 3 presents a summary of the responses by parents regarding questions concerning the economics of the 45-15 ESY program.

According to the results presented in Table 3 regarding question number four, it is evident that a plurality of the parents surveyed (42%) were "uncertain" as to whether or not the 45-15

ESY program would save the school system money in the future. The next largest group of respondents included thirty-two percent who did not think that the program would save money, while the remaining twenty-six percent believed that the program would provide savings to the school system.

TABLE 3.--Percentage summary of parents' responses to cost related items on the parent questionnaire

	Question #	Yes	No	Uncertain
#4	Do you think that in the future the 45-15 program will save the school system money?	26%	32%	42%
#7	If money were available to construct the necessary buildings, would you desire to return to the nine-month schedule?	35%	42%	23%

In regard to question number seven, it can be noted from Table 3 that a plurality of the parents surveyed (42%) would not be in favor of returning to the traditional school year even if money were available to construct the necessary buildings. Thirty-five percent would desire to return to the traditional program if money were available for the construction of necessary buildings, while twenty-three percent were "uncertain."

A comparison between the original and present overall

attitudes toward the 45-15 ESY program is presented in Table 4.

TABLE 4.--Percentage summary of parents' responses regarding past and present overall attitudes toward the 45-15 ESY

Question #5			Yes	No	Uncertain
Did you originally favor the implementation of the 45-15 program?			47%	36%	16%
Question #6					
How do you 45-15 prog by the Wes					
Strongly Negative	Somewhat Negative	Mixed	Somey Positi		Strongly Positive
13%	12%	20%	26%		29%

Table 4 displays the results concerning question number five which indicates that a plurality of the parents (47%) originally favored the 45-15 ESY program. Thirty-six precent were originally opposed to the program, while sixteen percent were "uncertain."

The results for question number six, also found in Table

4, indicated that the combined total of positive responses regarding
the program had increased to a majority of fifty-five percent at the
time of the survey, as compared with a combined total of twentyfive percent of the responses that were "negative" and twenty percent that were "mixed" responses. It appears that the attitudes of

the parents toward the 45-15 ESY program became proportionally more positive once they and their children had completed the first semester of experience with the program.

Parent attitudes regarding the effect that the 45-15 ESY program had on the quality of education are displayed in Table 5.

TABLE 5.--Percentage summary of parents' responses regarding the quality of education under the 45-15 ESY program

Question #8

To what extent do you believe that the 45-15 program has affected the quality of education in the Western School District?

Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
10%	9%	5%	Greatly Improved
21%	29%	19%	Somewhat Improved
57%	40%	49%	About the Same
9%	16%	15%	Somewhat Reduced
3%	6%	12%	Greatly Reduced

The results presented in Table 5 show that a majority of parents of students in grades K-5, and a plurality of the parents of students in grades 6-7 and 8-12, agreed that the quality of education in the Western School District had remained "about the same" when comparing the 45-15 ESY and the traditional program. The majority and two pluralities included fifty-seven percent of the K-5 parents, forty percent of the 6-7 parents, and forty-nine percent of the 8-12 parents who believed that the quality of education remained "about the same" for both years. A combined total

of thirty-one percent of the parents of K-5 students and a combined total of thirty-eight percent of the parents of 6-7 students believed that the quality of education had "improved" under the 45-15 ESY program, while combined totals of twelve percent of the K-5 parents and twenty-two percent of the 6-7 parents believed that the quality of education had been "reduced." Conversely, the parents of students in grades 8-12 had a larger combined total who believed that the quality of education had been "reduced" (27%) as compared to the combined total who believed that the quality had "improved" (24%).

Parent attitudes regarding their children's level of interest in school under the 45-15 ESY program are presented in Table 6.

TABLE 6.--Percentage summary of parents' responses regarding student interest under the 45-15 ESY program

Question #9			
year unde			nterest in school this pared to last year's
Grades 1-5 16%	Grades 6-7 15%	Grades 8-12 22%	Decreased Interest in School this Year
56%	52%	50%	Interest about the Same During both Years

28%

Increased Interest this Year

27%

33%

The data displayed in Table 6 suggest that the parents of students in grades 1-5, 6-7, and 8-12 believed, by a simple majority, that their children's interest in school was about the same for both the 45-15 ESY and the traditional school year. Fifty-six percent of the 105 parents, fifty-two percent of the 6-7 parents, and fifty percent of the 8-12 parents held the view that their children's interest remained about the same for both school years. In addition, all three groups of parents (1-5, 6-7, and 8-12) had larger percentages of respondents that believed that there had been "increased" interest under the 45-15 ESY program than the percentages of respondents that thought that there had been "decreased" interest. Of the parents of 1-5, 6-7, and 8-12 students, twenty-seven percent, thirty-three percent, and twentyeight percent respectively believed there had been an "increase" in student interest under the 45-15 ESY program. In the same respective order, sixteen percent, fifteen percent and twenty-two percent though that student interest had decreased under the 45-15 program.

The results regarding how parents rated their children's achievement in school during the 45-15 ESY as compared to the traditional school year are displayed in Table 7.

According to the results presented in Table 7, a majority of parents of students in grades 1-5, 6-7, and 8-12 believed that

their children's achievement was "about the same" for both the 45-15 ESY and the traditional school year. Sixty-nine percent of the parents of students in grades 1-5, sixty-four percent of the 6-7 parents, and sixty-nine percent of the 8-12 parents indicated that they thought that their children's achievement was about the

TABLE 7.--Percentage summary of parents' responses regarding student achievement under the 45-15 ESY program

Ouestion #10

How would you rate your child(ren)'s achievement in school this year in comparison to last year?

Grades 1-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
21%	21%	14%	Higher this Year
69%	64%	69%	About the Same
10%	15%	16%	Lower this Year

same for both years. A total of twenty-one percent of the 1-5 parents and twenty-one percent of the 6-7 parents believed that their children's achievement was "higher" under the 45-15 ESY program, while ten percent and fifteen percent of the two parent groups respectively, thought that achievement was "lower." Just the opposite viewpoint, by a small margin, was expressed by the parents of students in grades 8-12. Sixteen percent believed that their children's achievement was "lower" under the 45-15 ESY program, while fourteen percent believed it to be "higher."

Table 8 presents the results of parent responses regarding

how the 45-15 ESY program affected the children socially.

TABLE 8.--Percentage summary of parents' responses regarding how the 45-15 ESY affected the children's social lives

Question #11

How has the 45-15 program affected your children socially?

les 6-7 C	irades 8-12	
14%	21%	Negatively
72%	69%	Unchanged
14%	10%	Positively
	14% 72%	14% 21% 72% 69%

As evidenced in Table 8, a large majority of parents thought that their children's social lives had not been changed as a result of the 45-15 ESY. Seventy-four percent of the parents of the K-5 students, seventy-two percent of the parents of students in grades 6-7, and sixty-nine percent of the parents with students in grades 8-12 believed that the 45-15 ESY program had left their children socially "unchanged." Of the parents of K-5 students, 6-7 students, and 8-12 students, ten percent, fourteen percent, and twenty-one percent respectively felt that the 45-15 ESY program had negatively affected their children's social lives, while in the same respective order, sixteen percent, fourteen percent and ten percent believed that their children's social lives had been affected in a positive manner. It is apparent that, aside from the fact that there is a plurality of "unchanged" responses

for all three groups, the parent attitudes regarding this item become progressively more positive the lower the grade level of their children. Conversely, the higher the grade level of their children, the more negative are the parents' attitudes concerning this item.

A summary of parent attitudes concerning whether or not the 45-15 ESY program interfered with their children's participation in extra curricular school activities is displayed in Table 9.

TABLE 9, --Percentage summary of parents' responses regarding the 45-15 ESY program's effect on student participation in extra-curricular school activities

Question #12

Has the 45-15 program interfered with your child(ren)'s participation in extra-curricular school activities?

	Grades 8-12	Grades 6-7	Grades K-5
Yes	23%	14%	11%
No	63%	69%	73%
Unchanged	13%	17%	16%

Table 9 indicates that a majority of parents believed that the 45-15 ESY program did not interfere with student participation in extra-curricular school activities. Seventy-three percent of the K-5 parents, sixty-nine percent of the 6-7 parents, and sixty-three percent of 8-12 parents believed that there was no interference.

Eleven percent of the parents of K-5 students, fourteen percent of the parents of 6-7 students, and twenty-three percent of the parents of 8-12 students felt that the 45-15 ESY program did interfere with their children's extra-curricular school activities. Sixteen percent, seventeen percent, and thirteen percent respectively, saw no change as far as interference with their children's extra-curricular activities. Of those who specified the types of interference involved, the greatest numbers mentioned problems concerning the difficulty of attending various extra-curricular events and/or summer camps and activities (nineteen respondents), or their displeasure with having to continually transport their children to and from school during their residence group's vacation breaks (thirteen respondents).

Parent responses regarding whether or not summer temperatures hindered their children's learning are summarized in Table 10.

TABLE 10.--Percentage summary of parents' responses regarding the effect of summer temperatures on student learning

Ouestion #13

Do you believe that summer temperatures have hindered your child(ren)'s learning?

Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
20%	21%	24%	Yes
53%	56%	45%	No
27%	23%	31%	Uncertain

According to the results displayed in Table 10, a majority of the parents of students in grades K-5, and 6-7, and a plurality of parents of students in grades 8-12 indicated that summer temperatures were believed not to have hindered their children's learning. Fifty-three percent of the parents of K-5 students thought that summer temperatures did not hinder learning, while fifty-six percent of the 6-7 parents, and forty-five percent of the 8-12 parents also expressed that viewpoint. A fairly even distribution occurred between the remaining two possible responses for each of the three parent groups. The K-5, 6-7, and 8-12 parents all had larger percentages (27%, 23%, and 31% respectively) of "uncertain" responses than the respective percentages of "yes" responses (20%, 21%, and 24%). One possible explanation for the large percentages of "uncertain" responses could be due to the fact that the students and parents from residence group D had not had any experience with the program during the summer months. This was due to the staggered schedule of attendance in which group D students didn't begin school until the second week in September.

Table 11 presents the results of parent responses concerning multi-entry classes. Multi-entry classes are those classes which contain students from more than one residence group. For instance, due to the staggered nature of the attendance schedule, it might be expedient to have a physical education class which would begin with fifteen students from group A, and then three weeks later, enroll an additional fifteen students from group B. Another three weeks later would find fifteen students from group C enrolling in the same class. Finally, three weeks later, when group D students were to begin, fifteen group D students would enter the class and the fifteen students from group A would begin their three week vacation break. Thus, at any one time in a multi-entry class, it would be possible to have students from three different residence groups enrolled in the class.

TABLE 11.--Percentage summary of parents' responses regarding whether multi-entry classes create problems for students

Question #14	Yes	No	Uncertain
If you have children in grades 8-12, have multi-entry classes created problems for them?	30%	40%	28%

The results displayed in Table 11 show that a plurality of the parents (40%) believed that multi-entry classes did not create problems for their children. Thirty percent of the parents felt that multi-entry classes created problems for secondary students, and another twenty-eight percent were "uncertain" about their answer. Of those who wrote additional written responses, it was generally

indicated that the teacher's time for each group within the class was too limited and/or that there was less teacher attention per student (eleven respondents), or that students were unable to obtain desired classes (eight respondents). Another ten respondents mentioned that it was either too difficult for the teacher or too confusing for the students.

A summary of parent responses regarding how they reacted to statements concerning advantages and disadvantages of the 45-15 ESY program is presented in Table 12.

TABLE 12.--Percentage summary of parents' responses regarding various advantages and disadvantages of the 45-15 ESY program

Question #15

Knowing that there are advantages and disadvantages to the 45-15 program, how do you now react to the following statements?

Yes 26%	No 29% 64%	Uncertain 45%	Provides a better education for students
8%	64%	28%	Poorer utilization of facilities
55%	32%	13%	Provides better opportunities for student/family travel and vacation
18%	61%	21%	Lower student interest and enthusiasm
59%	22%	19%	Less student boredom
34%	16%	50%	Costs more to operate
81%	9%	10%	Better than split shifts or overcrowding
69%	19%	12%	Better than increased taxes

The results displayed in Table 12 indicate that a majority

of parents, on all but two items, showed their acceptance of the 45-15 ESY program. On the other two items, a plurality of the respondents were "uncertain" as to how to respond to the statements. When given the opportunity to express their opinions about whether the 45-15 ESY program "provides a better education for students," forty-five percent responded with "uncertain," twenty-nine percent said "no." and twenty-six percent answered "yes." When asked if the program provided "poorer utilization of facilities, " sixtyfour percent said "no. " twenty-eight percent were "uncertain, " and eight percent answered "ves." Fifty-five percent believed that the 45-15 ESY program "provides better opportunities for student/ family travel and vacation, " while thirty-two percent disagreed by answering "no. " and thirteen percent were "uncertain." The statement. "lower student interest and enthusiasm" received sixtyone percent "no" responses, while twenty-one percent were "uncertain" and eighteen percent said "ves." Fifty-nine percent thought that there was "less student boredom" when under the 45-15 ESY program.

The "no" responses to that statement included twenty-two percent, while nineteen percent remained "uncertain." A large "uncertain" response of fifty percent was evidenced when the parents were asked if the 45-15 ESY program "costs more to operate." Thirty-four percent said "yes," and sixteen percent

answered "no." By a wide margin, the parents were convinced that the 45-15 ESY program was "better than split shifts or over-crowding." Eighty-one percent answered the above statement with a "yes," while ten percent were "uncertain," and only nine percent responded with "no." Almost as large a margin resulted when the parents responded to the statement, "better than increased taxes." Sixty-nine percent said that the 45-15 ESY program was better than increased taxes. Nineteen percent answered that statement with a "no," and another twelve percent responded with "uncertain." Other advantages and disadvantages were expressed as written responses, but were generally individual expressions. There were approximately twelve additional written responses that were positive about the program, while approximately thirty-three were negative. Another two were neutral, and/or didn't apply to the 45-15 ESY program.

Table 13 presents the results of parent responses concerning family vacations under the 45-15 ESY program.

According to the data presented in Table 13 regarding question number sixteen, a majority of the parents believed that the 45-15 ESY program had not created problems for their family in terms of planning for, and taking, vacations. Seventy-one percent of the parents stated that the 45-15 ESY program had not created problems for their family with respect to vacations.

Twenty-four percent indicated that the program did cause problems where family vacations were concerned, while five percent were not certain about an answer.

TABLE 13.--Percentage summary of parents' responses regarding family vacations

Ques	stion	Ye	s No	Uncertain
#16	Has the 45-15 program create problems for your family in pl ning for, and taking, vacations	an- 24	% 71%	5%
#17	Would your employer grant your request for vacation time during any season of the year?		27%	10%
#18	Have you taken family vacations during seasons other than summer in the past?	n 42%	59%	0%
#19	Have you taken family vacations during seasons other than summer during this school year?	a 32%	68%	0%
	If "yes," please check the appropriate season	Fall - (Sept	62% Nov.)	Winter - 38% (DecMarch)

In regard to question number seventeen displayed in Table 13, a majority of the parents (63%) answered that they thought their employers would grant their request for a vacation during any season of the year. Twenty-seven percent answered the above-mentioned question with "no," while ten percent had

"uncertain" responses.

The responses displayed in Table 13 for question number eighteen indicate that a simple majority of the families had not taken vacations during seasons other than summer in the past.

Forty-two percent of the families had taken vacations in seasons other than summer in the past.

The results presented for question number nineteen in Table 13 show that the percentage of families that took vacations during seasons other than summer during the 45-15 ESY (one semester) had declined. While a majority of sixty-eight percent said that they had not taken a vacation during seasons other than summer during the 45-15 ESY, thirty-two percent indicated that they had done so. Of that thirty-two percent, sixty-two percent of the respondents indicated that they took a family vacation between September and November, while thirty-eight percent of that group had taken vacations between December and March.

On a final "open ended" question, sixty percent of the parents indicated that they wanted to make additional comments or suggestions about the 45-15 ESY program. Of the number who responded, approximately sixty of the written responses were positive about some aspect of the 45-15 ESY program, while approximately 150 were negative, and about thirty-five were general statements or suggestions. The above-mentioned written

responses can be found in Appendix G.

Analyses of parent attitudes

The question was posed for this study regarding whether the attitudes of the parents were dependent upon: (a) the residence group in which they lived, (b) the grade level of their children, or (c) the number of years that they had lived in the district. In order to answer these questions, the questionnaire items were analyzed by using the chi square test on selected combinations of variables taken two at a time. The following will, therefore, discuss those significant relationships found between the variables (a, b, and c above) and the responses to certain questions on the questionnaire. Such analyses will provide some indication of the relationships that exist between the above-mentioned variables and the attitudes of the parents.

Analyses of parent responses by residence group

An analysis of the relationship between the residence group in which the respondent lived and other questions on the questionnaire revealed six relationships that were significant at less than the .05 level of probability.

One analysis was performed in order to determine if a significant relationship existed between the residence group in

which the respondents lived and their responses to the question,
"How do you now feel about the 45-15 program as implemented by
the Western School District?" The results are presented in
Table 14.

TABLE 14.--Relationship between residence group and parents' feelings about the 45-15 ESY program

Group	Strongly Negative	Somewhat Negative	Mixed	Somewhat Positive	Strongly Positive	Totals
A B C D	15 (17%) 6 (8%) 7 (11%) 9 (14%)	11 (13%) 8 (10%) 7 (11%) 11 (17%)	16 (18%) 13 (17%) 7 (11%) 23 (36%)	24 (27%) 26 (34%) 15 (24%) 11 (17%)	22 (25%) 24 (31%) 27 (43%) 10 (16%)	88 77 63 64
Totals	37	37	59	76	83	292
×	² = 28.218		df = 12		p = .005	

According to the findings presented in Table 14, it can be concluded that a significant relationship (p $\langle .05 \rangle$) exists between the respondents' attitudes concerning how they felt about the 45-15 ESY program and the residence group in which they lived. The percentage data indicate that while a majority of respondents from groups A, B, and C were "positive" about the program, a plurality of the respondents from group D had "mixed" feelings about the 45-15 ESY program.

When an analysis was made concerning the relationship

between the residence group of the respondents and the question,
"If money were available to construct the necessary buildings,
would you desire to return to the nine-month schedule?," the
results were as displayed in Table 15.

TABLE 15. --Relationship between residence group and parents' attitudes toward returning to nine-month schedule if money were available to construct the necessary buildings

Group	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
A	33 (38%)	38 (44%)	15 (17%)	86
В	18 (24%)	34 (47%)	21 (29%)	73
C	20 (32%)	32 (51%)	11 (17%)	63
D	32 (49%)	14 (22%)	19 (29%)	65
Totals	103	118	66	287
	$x^2 = 18.609$	df =	6	p = .005

The findings presented in Table 15 indicate that a significant relationship (p < .05) exists between the residence group in which the respondents lived and how they responded to the question, "If money were available to construct the necessary buildings, would you desire to return to the nine-month schedule?" The percentage data show that a plurality of the respondents in groups A and B, and a majority of those in group C, were not inclined to want to return to a traditional program even if money were made available for new buildings. The opposite was true for group D respondents.

Table 16 presents the results of the analysis concerning the relationship between the residence group of the parents and their responses to the question, "To what extent do you believe that the 45-15 program has affected the quality of education \sqrt{f} or grades six and seven \sqrt{f} in the Western School District?"

TABLE 16.--Relationship between residence group and the parents' views regarding the effect that the 45-15 ESY had on the quality of education for grades six and seven

Group	Improved	Same	Reduced	Totals
A	7 (31%)	11 (48%)	5 (22%)	23
В	7 (37%)	11 (58%)	1 (5%)	19
С	14 (61%)	5 (22%)	4 (18%)	23
D	4 (21%)	7 (37%)	8 (43%)	19
Totals	32	34	18	84
	$x^2 = 15.014$	df = 6	p = .	020

According to the findings in Table 16, it can be concluded that a significant relationship (p \langle .05) exists between the residence group in which the respondents lived and how they felt about the effect of the 45-15 ESY program on the quality of education for grades six and seven. The percentage data revealed that a majority of the respondents from group C believed that the 45-15 ESY program had "improved" the quality of education in the system, while a plurality of respondents from groups A, and a majority of the

respondents from group B, thought that the quality had remained the same for both years (45-15 ESY and traditional school year). A plurality of group D respondents took the point of view that the quality of education had been "reduced" during the 45-15 ESY program. Thus, the data indicated that residents of group C, and to a lesser extent, residents of groups A and B, tend to view the 45-15 ESY program as having a more positive effect on the quality of education for grades six and seven than do those respondents living in group D.

The results of the analysis concerning the relationship between the parents' residence group and whether parents believed that multi-entry classes presented problems for their children in grades 8-12 are presented in Table 17.

It can be concluded from the findings presented in Table 17 that a significant relationship (p < .05) exists between the residence group in which the parents lived and their attitudes regarding whether or not multi-entry classes caused their children problems in grades 8-12. An interpretation of the percentage data revealed that while a plurality of respondents from group A were inclined to believe that multi-entry classes caused their children problems, a plurality of respondents from group B, and a majority of the respondents from group C, took the opposite point of view. A majority of group D respondents were "uncertain" in regard to

the question.

TABLE 17. --Relationship between residence group and responses to the question, "If you have children in grades 8-12, have multi-entry classes created problems for them?"

Group	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
A	16 (47%)	10 (29%)	8 (24%)	34
В	14 (37%)	16 (42%)	8 (21%)	38
C	9 (23%)	21 (53%)	10 (25%)	40
D	3 (15%)	6 (30%)	11 (55%)	20
Totals	42	53	37	132
x ² =	14.925	df =	6	p = .021

The percentage data thus revealed that residence group A respondents were more inclined, than were respondents from groups B, C, and D, to believe that multi-entry classes caused their children problems.

Table 18 displays the results of an analysis regarding the relationship between the residence group of the parents and a question as to whether the respondents thought that the 45-15 ESY program provided "poorer utilization of facilities."

The findings presented in Table 18 indicate that a significant relationship (p < .05) exists between the residence group in which the parents lived and how they viewed the utilization of the system's facilities. The percentage data revealed that a majority of respondents from groups A, B, and C rejected the statement that the 45-15 ESY program had resulted in "poorer utilization of facilities," while a majority of group D respondents were "uncertain" about their answer. As such it appears that no one group of respondents believed significantly more so than another group that there had been poorer utilization of the facilities under the 45-15 ESY program. However, group D respondents were much more "uncertain" regarding the question than were those respondents in groups A, B, and C.

TABLE 18. -- Relationship between parent residence group and responses to the statement, "poorer utilization of facilities"

Group	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
A	9 (11%)	48 (61%)	22 (28%)	79
В	4 (5%)	53 (73%)	16 (22%)	73
C	6 (10%)	42 (72%)	10 (17%)	58
D	2 (4%)	25 (46%)	27 (50%)	54
Totals	21	168	75	264
x	2 = 20.157	df =	6 p =	.003

Table 19 presents the findings concerning the relationship between the respondents' residence group and whether the respondents believed that the 45-15 ESY program provided "less student boredom."

The findings displayed in Table 19 indicate that a significant

relationship (p < .05) exists between the residence group in which the respondents lived and their attitudes concerning the statement "less student boredom." A review of the percentage data suggests that a majority of respondents from groups A, B, and C, and a plurality of respondents from group D, believed that there was "less student boredom" under the 45-15 ESY program. Group D respondents differ somewhat from the other groups in that there are more "uncertain" responses in group D than are found in groups A, B, and C.

TABLE 19.--Relationship between residence group and parents' responses to the statement, "less student boredom"

Group	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
Α	46 (56%)	25 (30%)	11 (13%)	82
В	49 (65%)	14 (19%)	12 (16%)	75
С	36 (63%)	13 (23%)	8 (14%)	57
D	28 (47%)	9 (15%)	22 (37%)	59
Totals	159	61	53	273
x ²	= 18.877	df = 6	p =	.004

Analyses of parent attitudes by number of years residence

An examination of the parent attitudes by the number of years that they had resided in the Western School District produced significant relationships between two sets of questions. The results of an analysis concerning the relationship between the number of years of residence in the district and the question regarding the respondents original feelings about the 45-15 ESY program are presented in Table 20.

TABLE 20.--Relationship between number of years of residence and parents' responses to the question, "Did you originally favor the implementation of the 45-15 ESY program"

Years of Residence	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
0-1 years	9 (30%)	9 (30%)	12 (40%)	30
2-5 years	42 (53%)	28 (35%)	10 (13%)	80
6 years or more	88 (48%)	69 (38%)	26 (14%)	183
Totals	139	106	48	293
x ² =	14.315	df = 4	:	p = .006

An examination of the findings presented in Table 20 indicates that a significant relationship (p $\langle .05\rangle$) exists between the number of years that a respondent had lived in the district and the respondents' original feelings about the 45-15 ESY program. The percentage data revealed that while a majority of the "2-5 year" group, and a plurality of the "6 years or more" group were originally "positive" about the 45-15 ESY program, a plurality of the "0-1 year" respondent group were "uncertain" about their

original feelings in the matter. There was, however, no significant relationship found between the number of years' residence and the question regarding the parents' feelings about the program at the time of the survey.

The findings of an analysis concerning the relationship between the number of years' residence and the parents' comparative views of their children's achievement in grades 1-5 under the traditional versus the 45-15 ESY program are presented in Table 21.

TABLE 21.--Relationship between number of years of residence and parents' responses to the question, "How would you rate your child(ren)'s achievement in school (grades 1-5) this year in comparison to last year?"

Years of Residence	Higher	Same	Lower	Totals
0-1 years	9 (47%)	6 (32%)	4 (21%)	19
2-5 years	8 (16%)	36 (73%)	5 (10%)	49
6 years or more	17 (18%)	71 (74%)	8 (8%)	96
Totals	34	113	17	164
x ² =	14.207	df = 4		p = .007

The results presented in Table 21 indicate that a significant relationship (p \langle .05) exists between the number of years that a respondent had lived in the district and how the respondent-parents viewed their children's achievement in grades 1-5 when comparing

the traditional school year with the 45-15 ESY. The percentage data reveal that while a plurality of those respondents who had lived in the district for one year or less thought that their children's achievement was higher under the 45-15 ESY program than under a traditional program, a majority of those respondents who had lived in the school district either "2-5 years," or "6 years or more," viewed their children's achievement as "about the same" for both the traditional and the 45-15 ESY programs.

Analyses of parent attitudes by their children's level in school

Significant relationships were found during the analyses of parents' attitudes with their children's grade level in school in two instances.

Table 22 displays the results of an analysis regarding the relationship between parents' attitudes according to their children's grade level (K-5, 6-7, or 8-12) and how they responded to the question regarding the effect of the 45-15 ESY program on the quality of education.

The findings displayed in Table 22 show that a significant relationship (p $\langle .05 \rangle$ exists between the parents' attitudes regarding the effect of the 45-15 ESY program on the quality of education and the grade level of their children. Further study of the percentage data reveals that a majority of the parents of K-5 students, and a

plurality of the parents of students in grades 6-7, and 8-12, believe that the quality of education has "remained about the same" (traditional versus 45-15 ESY). However, while more parents of the "K-5" and "6-7" students view the quality of education as "improved" rather than "reduced," a slightly larger percentage of parents of "8-12 grade" students view the quality of education as "reduced" rather than "improved."

TABLE 22.--Relationship between grade level of children and parents' responses to the question, "to what extent do you believe that the 45-15 ESY program has affected the quality of education in the Western School District?"

	Greatly	Somewhat	About the	Somewhat	Greatly	
Grades	Improved	Improved	Same	Reduced	Reduced	Totals
K-5	17 (10%)	38 (21%)	101 (57%)	16 (9%)	6 (3%)	178
6-7	8 (9%)	25 (29%)	34 (40%)	14 (16%)	5 (6%)	86
8-12	7 (5%)	27 (19%)	68 (49%)	21 (15%)	17 (12%)	140
Totals	32	90	203	28	28	404
x	² = 20.558		df =	8	p = .0	08

The results of an analysis concerning the relationship between the grade level of the children and the parents' responses to whether the 45-15 ESY program has interfered with their children's participation in extra-curricular school activities is presented in Table 23.

According to the results presented in Table 23, it is indicated

that a significant relationship (p < .05) exists between the grade level of the children and the parents' views of their children's participation in extra-curricular activities. The percentage data reveal that a majority of parents of students in all three grade levels believe that the 45-15 ESY program does not interfere with their children's extra-curricular activities. However, a slightly higher percentage of parents of "8-12" grade students believe that the 45-15 ESY program does interfere with their children's extra-curricular activities as compared to those parents of "K-5" and "6-7" grade students.

TABLE 23.--Relationship between grade level of children and parents' responses to the question, "has the 45-15 program interfered with your child(ren)'s participation in extra-curricular school activities?"

Grades	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
K-5	19 (11%)	130 (73%)	28 (16%)	177
6-7	12 (14%)	60 (69%)	15 (17%)	87
8-12	33 (23%)	90 (63%)	19 (13%)	142
Totals	64	280	62	406
	$x^2 = 9.835$	df =	1	p = .043

Secondary Student (8-12) Survey

Percentage summary of secondary student (8-12) responses

From a total secondary student (grades 8-12) population of

898, a sample of 472 students was selected. The sample represented fifty-three percent of the secondary student population.

Eighty-four percent (398) of the sample completed questionnaires.

Table 24 presents a summary of the characteristics of the secondary student respondents.

TABLE 24. -- Characteristics of secondary student sample

Percentage of Students per Grade Level			Percentage of Student of Each Sex		
8th	25%	Male	47%		
9th	19%	Female	53%		
10th	20%				
11th	21%				
12th	15%				
Ē	Percentage of Students	rom each Residence	e Group		
	Group A	24%			
	Group B	27%			
	Group C	25%			

The characteristics of the secondary student sample that are displayed in Table 24 include the following:

- The percentages of students per grade level in the sample are proportionate to the total number of students per grade level.
- A majority of the students were females (53%), while the remaining forty-seven percent were males.

 Approximately one-quarter of the secondary students in the sample were represented in each of the four residence sections.

Table 25 presents a summary of the responses by secondary students regarding several questions concerning their general attitude about the 45-15 ESY program.

TABLE 25.--Percentage summary of secondary students' responses regarding students' general attitudes toward the 45-15 ESY program

Ouestion #4

Which of the following statements would best describe your feelings about the 45-15 program in the Western School District?

38%	Like it
43%	Mixed feelings
14%	Don't like it
5%	Can't say

Question #5

Which of the following statements would best describe your feelings about the 45-15 program in comparison to the traditional school year program that you attended last year?

41%	Like 45-15 better than traditional (9 months school,
	3 month vacation)
29%	Like both about the same
30%	Don't like 45-15 as well as the traditional program

According to the results displayed in Table 25, question number four, a plurality of the secondary student respondents indicated that they had 'mixed feelings' about the 45-15 ESY

program. While forty-three percent had "mixed feelings," thirty-eight percent stated that they "like" the program, fourteen percent "don't like" the program, and five percent couldn't answer the question.

The results for question number five in Table 25 indicate, however, that a plurality of the secondary students like the 45-15 ESY program better than the traditional program. Forty-one percent of these students like the 45-15 ESY better than the traditional school year, while thirty percent don't like the 45-15 ESY as well as the traditional school year, and twenty-nine percent like both years about the same.

The results of two comparisons regarding quantity and quality of instruction are presented in Table 26.

Table 26 displays the results concerning question number six which indicates that a majority of the secondary students believed that they received about the same amount of instruction during both the 45-15 ESY and the traditional school year. Sixty percent of the students felt that they received about the same amount of instruction during both years, while twenty-three percent thought that they received less during the 45-15 ESY, and seventeen percent said that they received more instruction during the new program.

The results of question number nine in Table 26 indicate

that a majority of the secondary student respondents believed that their teachers were doing "about the same job of teaching" them during the 45-15 ESY as they had during the traditional school year. While the sixty-eight percent majority felt that the teaching quality was about the same for both years, seventeen percent believed that their teachers were doing a better job of teaching under the 45-15 ESY program, and fourteen percent thought just the opposite.

TABLE 26.--Percentage summary of secondary students' responses regarding quality and quantity of instruction

Question #6

Do you think you are getting more instruction from your teachers this year in comparison to last year?

17%	More this year
60%	About the same as last year
23%	Less this year

Question #9

Which of the following would best describe your opinion of the way your teachers are teaching you this year in comparison to last year?

17%	Doing a better job teaching me this year
68%	Doing about the same job of teaching me this year
	as last year
14%	Doing a worse job of teaching me this year

Secondary students! "likes" and "dislikes" regarding the 45-15 ESY program are presented in Table 27.

TABLE 27.--Percentage summary of secondary students' responses regarding "likes" and "dislikes" concerning the 45-15 ESY program

Questions #7 and #8 (combined)

Which of the following would you say are your major "likes" ("dislikes") of the 45-15 school program as compared to the traditional school year? (You may check more than one)

61%	Shorter vacations, coming more often	41%	Vacation breaks too short, no long summer
55%	Less boredom with school		vacation
	or vacation	13%	More boredom in school
12%	Opportunity to learn more	12%	Less opportunity to learn
5%	More knowledge retention	31%	Forget more during vacations
46%	Smaller class size		
11%	More attention from teachers	20%	Less attention from teachers
14% 13%	More interesting classes Others	17% 29%	Less interesting classes Others

Percentages will total more than 100% because students were encouraged to check more than one item for each question

Table 27 shows that when the secondary students expressed their major likes of the 45-15 ESY program in response to question number seven, sixty-one percent of the secondary students checked "shorter vacations, coming more often," fifty-five percent check "less boredom with school or vacation," and forty-six percent mentioned "smaller class size." Smaller percentages of students checked "more interesting classes" (14%), "opportunity to learn more" (12%), "more attention from teachers" (11%), and "more

knowledge retention" (5%). Other written responses (13%) about the secondary students' major "likes" regarding the program included items mentioning how they liked the alternating school and vacation situation, and/or liked to have vacations in all four seasons (eleven respondents), and that there was more opportunity for individuals to progress at their own rate (five respondents). Approximately seventeen other written responses were given under seven different answer categories.

The summary of responses to question number eight, shown in Table 27, indicates that the secondary students! responses regarding major "dislikes" included forty-one percent who thought that "vacation breaks \(\subseteq \text{vere} \) too short; no long summer vacation," thirty-one percent who stated that they "forget more during vacations," and twenty percent who believed that they received "less attention from teachers." Another seventeen percent said that they thought that the classes were "less interesting," while thirteen percent stated that there was "more boredom in school," and twelve percent felt that there was "less opportunity to learn." Twenty-nine percent expressed additional written opinions. Some of the categories with the largest number of similar responses included twenty-five students who "miss my friends from different groups," seventeen who "don't like having to attend school during the summer," and fourteen students who "miss or don't hear about

certain school activities when on vacation, and/or dislike having to come back during vacation." One group of ten respondents disliked "not having a long summer for work and/or for vacation," while another group of ten respondents stated that they "dislike and/or wish to eliminate multi-entry classes." Eleven other categories included about twenty-six additional responses.

Student responses regarding whether the 45-15 ESY program has caused them any problems that they did not have during the traditional school year are presented in Table 28.

TABLE 28.--Percentage summary of secondary students' responses concerning new problems caused by the 45-15 ESY program

Question #10	Yes	No
Has going to school under the 45-15 program caused you any problems that you did not have last year under the traditional school program	39%	61%

As indicated in Table 28, a majority (61%) of the secondary students responding to question number ten stated that they did not encounter any new problems as a result of the 45-15 ESY. Thirty-nine percent of the students had an opposing viewpoint and believed that going to school under the 45-15 ESY program had caused them problems that they had not had under the traditional program. Of the thirty-nine percent who indicated that they did encounter

problems as a result of the 45-15 ESY program, thirty-four respondents said that it "interferes with finding and/or keeping a job," twenty-nine students "dislike not having long summer vacations and/or /it / limits summer activities," and seventeen respondents said that it "makes it difficult for /their/family to plan activities and/or vacations." Twelve respondents stated that they "miss my friends in other groups," eleven "miss or don't hear about certain school activities when on vacation and/or dislike having to come back during vacations," and nine students think that it is "difficult to obtain desired classes and/or schedule classes." Included in nine other categories were twenty-four other written responses.

Student attitudes regarding the availability of classes are summarized in Table 29.

As is evidenced for question number eleven in Table 29, a majority of the secondary students stated that they were able to schedule those classes that they needed to fulfill their educational requirements for graduation. The above-mentioned majority was sixty-four percent, while twenty-two percent were "uncertain" regarding their answer to question number eleven, and fourteen percent thought that they were not able to schedule the classes they needed.

Question twelve results displayed in Table 29 indicate that

a majority of fifty-three percent of the students believed that they were able to schedule the classes that they wanted. Thirty-eight percent disagreed with the majority's viewpoint, and nine percent were "uncertain."

TABLE 29.--Percentage summary of secondary students' responses regarding availability of classes

Que	stion #	Yes	No	Uncertain
#11	Were you able to schedule classes that you needed to fulfill your educational requirements?	64%	14%	22%
#12	Were you able to schedule classes that you wanted?	53%	38%	9%
#13	How do you feel 45-15 has affected the availability of electives?			
	23% More electives offered 19% Fewer electives offered 58% About the same			

The results presented in Table 29 for question number thirteen show that a majority (58%) of the secondary students believed that the availability of electives has remained "about the same" for both the 45-15 ESY and the traditional year. Twenty-three percent thought that there were more electives offered during the 45-15 ESY, while nineteen percent believed that there were fewer electives to choose from under the 45-15 ESY as compared

to the traditional school year.

A summary of the percentage of secondary students that had experienced a multi-entry class and their attitudes toward such classes is presented in Table 30.

TABLE 30.--Percentage summary of secondary students' responses to a question regarding multi-entry classes

Question #14	Yes	No
Have you had a multi-entry class?	86%	14%
Question #14A		
If yes, do you feel multi-entry classes h	nave;	
(a) Provided greater learning oppor	rtunity	13%
(b) Hindered your learning opportu	nity	35%
(c) Have had no effect		52%

The results displayed in Table 30 for question number fourteen point out that a majority of eighty-six percent of the secondary students have had at least one multi-entry class.

Fourteen percent had not had experience with a multi-entry class.

When asked how they felt about those multi-entry classes that they had (question 14A, Table 30), a majority of students (52%) believed that multi-entry classes had no effect on their learning opportunity. Thirty-five percent thought that multi-entry classes "hindered" their learning opportunity, while thirteen percent

believed that multi-entry classes "provided greater learning opportunity."

Table 31 displays the results of student responses to questions concerning vacations, part-time employment, extracurricular activities, and school "spirit."

TABLE 31.--Percentage summary of secondary students' responses to questions regarding vacations, part-time student work, extra-curricular activities and school "spirit"

Question #15		Y	es	No	Uncertain
Are your parents able to take vacations from work at the s time as your school vacation they wish to?	ame	5	1%	32%	17%
Question #17	Yes	No	Do	n't Work	Uncertain
Has the 45-15 program made it more difficult for you to work in a part-time job this year?	26%	24%		47%	3%
Question #18		Υe	s	No	Uncertain
Has the 45-15 program made more difficult for you to take part in school sports and/or other activities this year?	it	23	%	68%	8%
Question #19	Increa	sed	Dec	reased	Unchanged
What effect do you think the 45-15 program has had on school spirit?	22%	0		28%	51%

According to the results for question number fifteen, found

in Table 31, a fifty-one percent majority of secondary student respondents thought that their parents would be able to take vacations from work during scheduled school vacations under the 45-15 ESY program. Thirty-two percent disagreed, while seventeen percent were "uncertain."

The results for question number seventeen, also found in Table 31, indicate that a plurality of secondary students (47%) are not employed. However, twenty-six percent of the students believed that the 45-15 ESY made it more difficult to work in a part-time job, while twenty-four percent didn't think that working on a part-time job was any more difficult under the 45-15 ESY than it had been during the traditional school year. Three percent of the students were "uncertain" as to an answer for the question.

The responses to question number eighteen, found in Table 31, indicated that a majority of sixty-eight percent of the secondary students believed that the 45-15 ESY program had not made it any more difficult to take part in "school sports and/or other activities" than had been the case during the traditional school year. Twenty-three percent held the opposite view, while eight percent were "uncertain." Of the twenty-three percent who answered "yes," by far the largest number of written responses (58) explained that they "miss or don't hear about certain school activities when on vacation and/or dislike having to come back during vacation for

those activities." A second category included nineteen respondents who stated that "transportation presents a problem for extra-curricular activities." Three other categories included approximately nine additional written responses.

In regard to question number nineteen, Table 31, a majority of fifty-one percent of the secondary students felt that "school spirit" had been "unchanged" from the traditional school year to the 45-15 ESY. Twenty-eight percent believed that "school spirit" had "decreased," while twenty-two percent thought that it had "increased."

Data on student friendships are summarized in Table 32.

TABLE 32.--Percentage summary of secondary students' responses regarding student friendships

Question #16

Which of the following statements best describes your friendships this year?

63%	Kept most of my same friends
21%	Lost some old friends; gained some new friends
16%	Lost most of my old friends because they are
	in different groups

The results displayed in Table 32 suggest that a majority (63%) of the secondary students in the sample believed that they kept most of their same friends during the 45-15 ESY that they had had during the traditional school year. Twenty-one percent

indicated that they had lost some old friends, but had gained some new ones, while sixteen percent felt that they had lost most of their old friends as a result of the 45-15 ESY program.

In response to an opportunity to make additional written responses (question number twenty) regarding changes desired for the next school year, 214 respondents had negative remarks about the 45-15 ESY program, forty-four secondary students had constructive suggestions for changing the program or remarks that were not relevant to the 45-15 ESY program, and sixteen respondents had positive remarks.

Analyses of secondary student responses

A specific question posed by this study was to analyze whether the attitudes of the students were dependent upon: (a) their grade level, or (b) the residence group in which they lived. In order to answer the above question, chi square tests were utilized in order to determine whether significant relationships existed between items taken from the Secondary Student Questionnaire. The following, therefore, includes a presentation of the significant relationships that were found to exist during the analyses.

Analyses of secondary student attitudes by grade level

Analyses of secondary student attitudes by the students' grade level produced seven significant relationships that were presented for discussion.

The results of an analysis regarding the relationship between the students' grade level and the students! feelings about the 45-15 ESY program are presented in Table 33.

TABLE 33.--Relationship between grade level of students and students' responses to the question, "which of the following statements would best describe your feelings about the 45-15 program in the Western School District?"

Grade	Like	Mixed	Dislike	Can't Say	Totals
8	47 (48%)	35 (36%)	8 (8%)	8 (8%)	98
9	33 (43%)	30 (39%)	9 (12%)	4 (5%)	76
10	26 (33%)	32 (41%)	19 (24%)	2 (3%)	79
11	26 (31%)	42 (50%)	13 (15%)	3 (4%)	84
12	18 (31%)	33 (56%)	6 (10%)	2 (3%)	59
Totals	150	172	55	19	396
	$x^2 = 23.257$	ć	lf = 12	p = .(026

The findings presented in Table 33 indicate that a significant relationship (p < .05) exists between the students' grade level and how the students responded regarding their feelings about the 45-15 ESY program. The percentage data indicate that while a plurality of the eighth and ninth grade students stated that they "liked" the 45-15 ESY program, a plurality of the students in grade 10, and a majority of the students in grades 11 and 12, had "mixed" feelings about the program.

Table 34 presents the results of an analysis concerning the relationship between student grade level and the students' perception of the amount of instruction under the 45-15 ESY program in comparison to the traditional school year.

TABLE 34.--Relationship between grade level of students and students' responses to the question, "do you think you are getting more instruction from your teachers this year in comparison to last year?"

Grade	More	Same	Less	Totals
8	26 (27%)	58 (59%)	14 (14%)	98
9	13 (17%)	53 (70%)	10 (13%)	76
10	9 (12%)	44 (58%)	23 (30%)	76
11	12 (14%)	46 (54%)	27 (32%)	85
12	7 (12%)	35 (59%)	17 (29%)	59
Totals	67	236	91	394
	$x^2 = 21.354$	df =	8	p = .006

The results in Table 34 point out that a significant relationship (p \langle .05) exists between the grade level of the students and their opinions about the amount of instruction that they believe they are getting from their teachers under the 45-15 ESY program in comparison to the traditional school year. Further study of the

percentage data suggests that a majority of the students at each grade level believe that the amount of instruction is about the same for both years. However, a larger percentage of the eighth and ninth grade students generally felt that they were getting "more" instruction, rather than "less," under the 45-15 ESY program, while the reverse was true for the students in grades 10, 11 and 12.

The findings of an analysis concerning the relationship between the grade level of students and their views regarding a comparison between the quality of teaching under the 45-15 ESY and traditional programs are presented in Table 35.

TABLE 35.--Relationship between grade level of students and students' responses to the question, "which of the following would best describe your opinion of the way your teachers are teaching you this year in comparison to last year?"

Grade	Better	Same	Worse	Totals
8	31 (32%)	54 (56%)	12 (12%)	97
9	10 (14%)	56 (76%)	8 (11%)	74
10	10 (13%)	57 (74%)	10 (13%)	77
11	12 (14%)	59 (69%)	14 (16%)	85
12	5 (9%)	41 (72%)	11 (19%)	57
Totals	68	267	55	390
	$x^2 = 21.864$	df = 8	1	p = .005

According to the results displayed in Table 35, a significant

relationship (p < .05) exists between the grade level of the secondary students and their opinions comparing the quality of teaching for the 45-15 ESY and the traditional school year. Additional study of the percentage data suggests that a majority of all grade levels think that the quality of teaching remained about the same for both years. The remaining percentages of student attitudes appear to generally change from the situation where a larger percentage of eighth grade students evaluated the teaching quality under the 45-15 ESY program as "botter," rather than "worse," to the opposite situation where a larger percentage of twelfth grade students evaluated the teaching quality under the 45-15 ESY program as "worse," rather than "better."

The results of an analysis to determine the relationship between student grade level and students' opportunity to schedule "necessary" classes are presented in Table 36.

The findings presented in Table 36 make it apparent that a significant relationship (p < .05) exists between the grade level of the secondary students and their perceptions of the opportunity to schedule "necessary" classes. The percentage data reveal that while a majority of the students in grades nine through twelve were able to obtain what they thought to be "necessary" classes, the eighth grade responses included a large percentage of students who answered that they were "uncertain."

TABLE 36.--Relationship between student grade level and students' responses to the question, "were you able to schedule classes that you needed to fulfill your educational requirements?"

Grade	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
8	41 (43%)	14 (15%)	41 (43%)	96
9	52 (68%)	9 (12%)	15 (20%)	76
10	49 (63%)	15 (19%)	14 (18%)	78
11	61 (72%)	11 (13%)	13 (15%)	85
12	51 (85%)	6 (10%)	3 (5%)	60
Totals	254	55	86	395
	$x^2 = 43.874$	df = 8	р	\(. 001

Table 37 presents an analysis regarding the relationship between student grade levels and the students' opportunity to schedule 'desired' classes.

TABLE 37.--Relationship between student grade level and students' responses to the question, "were you able to schedule classes that you wanted?"

Grade	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
8	59 (61%)	18 (19%)	20 (21%)	97
9	40 (53%)	31 (41%)	5 (7%)	76
10	36 (46%)	38 (48%)	5 (6%)	79
11	52 (61%)	30 (35%)	3 (4%)	85
12	22 (37%)	34 (57%)	4 (7%)	60
Totals	209	151	37	397
	$x^2 = 41.814$	df = 8	р	(· ⁰⁰¹

Examination of the findings presented in Table 37 appear to indicate that a significant relationship (p $\langle .05 \rangle$) exists between the grade level of students and their perception of the opportunity to schedule "desired" classes. The percentage data indicate that a majority of students in grades 8, 9, and 11 believed that they were able to schedule "desired" classes, while a plurality of students in grade 10, and a majority of students in grade 12, indicated that they were not able to schedule their "desired" classes.

The results of an analysis concerning the relationship between student grade level and the students' perceptions of the availability of elective classes are presented in Table 38.

TABLE 38.--Relationship between student grade level and students' perceptions of the availability of elective classes.

Grade	More	Less	Same	Totals
8	16 (17%)	10 (11%)	66 (71%)	92
9	14 (18%)	17 (22%)	45 (59%)	76
10	15 (19%)	20 (26%)	42 (55%)	77
11	27 (32%)	14 (16%)	44 (52%)	85
12	18 (31%)	13 (22%)	27 (47%)	58
Totals	90	74	224	388
	$x^2 = 18.082$	df = 8	р	= .021

The data presented in Table 38 indicate that a majority of the secondary students in grades 8-11, and a plurality of students in twelfth grade, believed that the availability of electives has remained the same for both the 45-15 ESY and the traditional school year. A larger percentage of students in grades 8, 11, and 12 believe that "more" electives are available as opposed to "less," while the reverse is true for those students in grades 9 and 10.

The findings of an analysis concerning the relationship between student grade level and students' perceptions of the effect of multi-entry classes is presented in Table 39.

TABLE 39.--Relationship between student grade level and students' perceptions concerning the effects of multi-entry classes on learning

Grade	Improved	Hindered	No Effect	Totals
8	14 (18%)	15 (19%)	48 (62%)	77
9	10 (15%)	17 (26%)	39 (59%)	66
10	9 (13%)	24 (36%)	34 (51%)	67
11	5 (7%)	36 (47%)	35 (46%)	76
12	6 (11%)	27 (48%)	23 (41%)	56
Totals	44	119	179	342
x ² =	21.634	df = 8	p =	.006

Table 39 indicates that a significant relationship (p < .05) exists between the grade level of students and student perceptions of the effects of multi-entry classes on learning opportunities.

Additionally, the percentage data indicate that a majority of the students in grades 8, 9, and 10 believe that multi-entry classes

have "had no effect" on their learning. On the other side, however, the eleventh and twelfth graders, by a small plurality, believed that multi-entry classes "hindered" their learning.

Analyses of secondary student attitudes by residence group

The analyses of secondary student attitudes by the residence group in which the students lived produced three significant relationships that were selected for discussion.

The results of an analysis concerning the relationship between the residence group of students and their feelings about the 45-15 ESY program are presented in Table 40.

TABLE 40.--Relationship between student residence group and students' feelings about the 45-15 ESY program

Group	Like	Mixed	Dislike	Can't Say	Totals
A B C D	37 (39%) 49 (46%) 41 (42%) 23 (24%)	44 (46%) 52 (49%) 34 (35%) 42 (44%)	13 (14%) 4 (4%) 18 (18%) 20 (21%)	2 (2%) 2 (2%) 5 (5%) 10 (11%)	96 107 98 95
Totals	150 x ² = 32.168	172 df	55	19 P (-	396 001

Examination of the results found in Table 40 shows that a significant relationship (p \langle .05) exists between the residence group in which a student lived and the students' feelings about the 45-15

ESY program. The percentage data seem to indicate that a plurality of students in groups A, B, and D had "mixed" feelings about the program, while a plurality of the students in group C stated that they "like" the program. Additionally, the students in groups A, B, and C tend to be more positive about the 45-15 ESY program than those students residing in section D.

Table 41 displays the findings of an analysis concerning the relationship between the residence group of students and their feelings comparing the 45-15 ESY program with the traditional program.

TABLE 41. --Relationship between student residence group and students' feelings about the 45-15 ESY program in comparison to the traditional school year program

Group	Better	Same	Worse	Totals
A B C D	48 (49%) 54 (50%) 35 (36%) 25 (26%)	24 (25%) 33 (31%) 27 (28%) 33 (35%)	25 (26%) 20 (19%) 36 (37%) 37 (39%)	97 107 98 95
Totals $\mathbf{x}^2 =$	162	117 df = 6	118 p :	397 = .002

According to the results summarized in Table 41, a significant relationship (p $\langle .05 \rangle$) exists between the residence group of the students and their feelings regarding a comparison of the 45-15 ESY and traditional programs. The percentage data indicate that a plurality of students residing in group A, and a majority of group B students, believed that the 45-15 ESY program is better than the traditional school year. A slight plurality of students residing in groups C and D, however, believed that the traditional program was better.

The findings of an analysis regarding the relationship between the residence group of the secondary students and their perceptions of the amount of instruction that they received from their teachers when comparing the 45-15 ESY and the traditional programs are presented in Table 42.

TABLE 42.--Relationship between student residence group and students' perceptions of the amount of instruction received during the 45-15 ESY program in comparison to the traditional school year program

Group	More	Same	Less	Totals
A	20 (21%)	49 (52%)	26 (27%)	95
В	22 (21%)	69 (65%)	15 (14%)	106
C	11 (11%)	66 (67%)	22 (22%)	99
D	14 (15%)	52 (55%)	28 (30%)	94
Totals	67	236	91	394
	$x^2 = 13.000$	df = 6	p =	.043

The data presented in Table 42 indicate that a significant relationship (p $\langle .05 \rangle$ exists between the residence group of the

students and their perceptions of the amount of instruction that they think they received during both the 45-15 ESY and the traditional school year. The percentage data suggest that a majority of students in all four residence groups believed that the amount of instruction was about the same for both years. While a larger percentage of students in groups A, C, and D believed that there was "less," rather than "more," instruction during the 45-15 ESY, group B students held the opposite opinion.

Fourth through Seventh Grade Survey

Percentage summary of fourth-seventh grade respondents

Of the 838 students in the fourth through seventh grade population, 414 (49%) were randomly selected by classes as the sample for this study. Ninety-three percent, or 387 students, completed the questionnaire. Table 43 provides a summary of the characteristics of the fourth-seventh grade student sample.

The characteristics of the fourth through seventh grade student sample that are presented in Table 43 include the following:

- The percentages of fourth through seventh grade students
 per grade level and per residence group are proportionate to the total number of those students in each of
 the grade levels and in each residence section.
- 2. A majority of the fourth through seventh grade students

in the sample were males (55%), while the remaining forty-five percent were females.

TABLE 43.--Characteristics of fourth through seventh grade sample

Percentage of Students Residing in each residence group		Percentage of St	
Group A	26%	Grade 4	26%
Group B	22%	Grade 5	27%
Group C	27%	Grade 6	23%
Group D	25%	Grade 7	24%
<u>P</u>	ercentage of St	udents by Sex	
	Male	55%	
	Female	45%	

Table 44 displays a summary of the responses by the fourthseventh grade students regarding several questions about vacations during the 45-15 ESY.

The results displayed in Table 44 for question number four indicate that a majority of the fourth-seventh grade students (54%) liked the 45-15 ESY vacations better than the vacations of the traditional school year. Twenty-eight percent liked the vacation periods for both years "about the same," while eighteen percent didn't like the 45-15 ESY vacations as well as the traditional school year vacations.

A small plurality of students (34%) believed that their

parents could "sometimes" take their vacations at the same time as school vacations during the 45-15 ESY, as evidenced by the results presented in Table 44 for question number eleven. Thirty-two percent of the students answered the question with "yes," while twenty-one percent said "no," and fourteen percent didn't know.

TABLE 44.--Percentage summary of fourth-seventh grade students' responses regarding vacations during the 45-15 ESY program

Question #4

How well do you like the vacation periods (breaks) this year in comparison to last year?

18%	Don't like it as well as last yea
28%	Like them about the same
54%	Like it better than last year

Question #11

Are your father and mother able to take their vacation from work at the same time as you have your school vacation, if they want to?

Yes	No	Sometimes	Don't Know
32%	21%	34%	14%

A summary of the fourth-seventh grade students' general attitudes about the 45-15 ESY is presented in Table 45.

The results of question number five, displayed in Table 45, show that a slight plurality of fourth-seventh grade students (40%) were more "excited" about school during the 45-15 ESY than they

were during the traditional school year. Thirty-eight percent of the student respondents disagreed and stated that they were not "excited" about school "this year," while twenty-two percent didn't know how to answer the question.

TABLE 45.--Percentage summary of fourth-seventh grade students' general attitudes about the 45-15 ESY

Y	es	No	Don't Know
4	0%	38%	22%
Yes	No	About the Sa	Don't me Know
58%	17%	23%	2%
	4 Yes		40% 38% About Yes No the Sa

Question number twelve, found in Table 45, was probably a better question to be used to differentiate the students' general attitudes concerning the 45-15 ESY. A majority of fifty-eight percent of the students answered that they did have "more fun this year in school than /they/ had last year." Twenty-three percent thought that they had about the same amount of "fun" for both years, while seventeen percent answered with "no," and only two percent didn't know.

The results of a comparison concerning the quantity of instruction that students thought that they received during the

45-15 ESY and the traditional school year are presented in Table
46.

TABLE 46.--Percentage summary of fourth-seventh grade students' responses regarding quantity of instruction

Onestion #6

Do you think that you are getting more instruction from your teacher this year in comparison to last year?

Yes	No	About the Same	Don't Know
37%	14%	43%	6%

According to the results displayed in Table 46 for question number six, a plurality of the students in fourth-seventh grades believed that the amount of instruction that they received when comparing the 45-15 ESY with the traditional school year was "about the same" (43%). Thirty-seven percent thought that they were receiving more instruction under the 45-15 ESY program, while fourteen percent disagreed, and another six percent didn't know.

Table 47 presents a summary of the results of the students' responses concerning questions pertaining to their academic achievement and learning.

Table 47 results indicate that, for question number seven, a plurality of the fourth-seventh grade students (47%) believed that the 45-15 ESY had enabled them to "remember more and forget less"

as compared to the traditional school year. Twenty-two percent said "no," while twenty-one percent believed that there was no difference in their ability to learn and retain what they had learned when comparing the two years. Eleven percent didn't know the answer to the question.

The results for question number ten, also found in Table 47, show that a plurality of the students (47%) believed that their academic grades were "about the same" for both the 45-15 ESY and the traditional school year. Forty-five percent of the fourth-seventh grade students thought that their grades were better during the 45-15 ESY, while nine percent stated that their grades were lower during the 45-15 ESY.

TABLE 47.--Percentage summary of fourth-seventh grade students' responses regarding their learning and academic achievement

Question #7

Has going to school year-round enabled you to "remember more and forget less" as compared to last year?

Yes No		About the Same	Don't Know	
47%	22%	21%	11%	

Question #10

How do your grades this year compare with your grades last year?

9%	Grades are lower
	Grades are about the same
45%	Grades are better

A summary of student responses regarding whether the 45-15 ESY program has caused them any new problems or changed their after-school activities is presented in Table 48.

TABLE 48.--Percentage summary of fourth-seventh glade students!
responses regarding whether the 45-15 ESY had caused new
problems or changes in after-school
activities

Question	Yes	No	Don't Know
Question #8	,,		
Has going to school year-round created new problems for You?	24%	64%	13%
Question #9			
Have your after school activities been changed because you are now going to school the year-round	27%	65%	8%

As indicated in Table 48, in regard to question number eight, a majority of students in the fourth-seventh grades did not believe that going to school year-round had created new problems for them. Sixty-four percent answered "no," while twenty-four percent believed that the 45-15 ESY had created new problems for them. Thirteen percent were uncertain. Of those who responded with a "yes" to that question, eight students mentioned through written responses that they "can't go on vacations with my parents," while six respondents stated that they "miss my old friends and/or I don't get to see

them as often." Another six students mentioned that they "dislike not having long summer vacations and/or the program hinders summer activities." Fourteen other written responses were divided among eleven other answer categories.

Table 49 displays a summary of the students' responses to questions concerning their friends' attitudes toward the program and their own friendships.

TABLE 49.--Percentage summary of fourth-seventh grade students' responses regarding friendships and friends' attitudes toward the 45-15 ESY

Question #13

How do you think that your friends feel about year-round school?

20%	They don't like it
32%	They like it
48%	Don't know

Question #14

Which of the following statements would best tell me of your friendships this year in school?

43%	Kept most of my same friends
39%	Lost some old friends; gained some new friends
18%	Lost most of my friends because they are in a
	different group

The results displayed for question number thirteen in Table 49 indicate that a plurality of the fourth-seventh grade students in the sample (48%) didn't know how their friends felt about the 45-15

ESY. Thirty-two percent of the students surveyed said that they thought that their friends liked the new program, while twenty percent believed that their friends didn't like the 45-15 ESY program.

In regard to question number fourteen, displayed in Table 49, a plurality of the student respondents (43%) thought that they had kept most of their same friends during the 45-15 ESY. Thirty-nine percent said that they had "lost some old friends, \(\frac{1}{2}\text{but} \) gained some new friends," while eighteen percent believed that, as a result of the 45-15 ESY, they had lost most of their friends because they were in different residence groups.

When given an opportunity to express additional written responses concerning the things that they would like to see added to the school program for next year, seventy-nine respondents expressed negative feelings about the 45-15 ESY program, nineteen had positive feelings or comments, and another seventy-seven students made constructive suggestions for changing the program or made remarks that were not pertinent to the 45-15 ESY program.

Analyses of fourth-seventh grade attitudes by grade level

The analyses of the fourth through seventh grade students' attitudes by the students' grade level provided four significant relationships that were presented for discussion.

The results of an analysis concerning the relationship

between student grade level and the amount of instruction that students perceived that they were getting from their teachers are presented in Table 50.

TABLE 50.--Relationship between student grade level and students' responses to the question, "do you think that you are getting more instruction from your teacher this year in comparison to last year?"

Grade	Yes	No	Same	Don't Know	Totals
4	37 (36%)	11 (11%)	41 (40%)	13 (13%)	102
5	48 (47%)	12 (12%)	39 (38%)	4 (4%)	103
6	37 (42%)	8 (9%)	38 (43%)	5 (6%)	88
7	21 (23%)	21 (23%)	47 (51%)	3 (3%)	92
Totals	143	52	165	25	385
$x^2 = 27.170$		df = 9		p = .	.001

According to the findings presented in Table 50, a significant relationship (p < .05) exists between the grade level of the students and the amount of instruction that they perceived they were receiving from their teachers under the 45-15 ESY as compared to the traditional school year. The percentage data indicate that while a plurality of the fourth and sixth graders, and a majority of the seventh graders, believed that they were receiving "about the same" amount of instruction under the 45-15 ESY program in comparison to the traditional school year, a plurality of the fifth graders believed that they were receiving "more" instruction under

the 45-15 ESY program.

Table 51 presents the results of an analysis of the relationship between student grade level and student views of whether the 45-15 ESY has changed their after-school activities.

TABLE 51.--Relationship between student grade level and students' responses to the question, "have your after-school activities been changed because you are now going to school the year-round?"

Grade	Yes	No	Don't Know	Totals
4 5 6 7	40 (39%) 21 (20%) 17 (19%) 26 (28%)	49 (48%) 74 (72%) 65 (74%) 64 (68%)	13 (13%) 8 (7%) 6 (7%) 4 (4%)	102 103 88 94
Totals	104	252	31	387
	$x^2 = 20.403$	df = 6		p = .020

As is indicated in Table 51, a significant relationship (p < .05) exists between student grade level and student opinions regarding whether the 45-15 ESY has changed their after-school activities. The percentage data in Table 51 show that a majority of the students in grades 5, 6, and 7, and a plurality of students in fourth grade, did not think that their after-school activities have changed as a result of the 45-15 ESY program. However, students in fourth grade were somewhat more inclined to answer "yes" to the question than were the students in the other grade levels.

Table 52 displays the results of an analysis of the relationship between student grade level and student views of a comparison between their academic grades for the traditional and the 45-15 ESY programs.

TABLE 52.--Relationship between student grade level and students' responses to the question, "how do your grades this year compare with your grades last year?"

Grade	Lower	Same	Higher	Totals
4	7 (7%)	46 (45%)	49 (48%)	102
5	4 (4%)	40 (39%)	59 (57%)	103
6	7 (8%)	43 (49%)	38 (43%)	88
7	15 (16%)	51 (55%)	27 (29%)	93
Totals	33	108	173	386
	² = 21.109	df	= 6	p = .002

The findings displayed in Table 52 make it possible to conclude that a significant relationship (p <.05) exists between the grade level of students and their perceptions of how their grades for the 45-15 ESY compare with their grades for the traditional school year. The percentage data suggest that a plurality of fourth graders, and a majority of the fifth graders, believed that their grades were "higher" during the 45-15 ESY program, while a plurality of the sixth graders, and a majority of the seventh graders, believed that their grades remained "about the same"

for both years.

The results of an analysis concerning the relationship between student grade level and the students' opinions of their friendships are presented in Table 53.

TABLE 53.--Relationship between student grade level and students¹ attitudes concerning the status of friendships

Grade	Kept Most	Lost Some Gained Some	Lost Most Due to Groups	Totals
4	44 (43%)	38 (37%)	20 (20%)	102
5	40 (40%)	46 (46%)	15 (15%)	101
6	29 (33%)	40 (46%)	18 (21%)	87
7	53 (56%)	25 (27%)	16 (17%)	94
Totals	166	149	69	384
х	c ² = 13.154	df = 6		p = .041

It can be concluded from the results displayed in Table 53 that a significant relationship (p <.05) exists between the students' grade level and their opinions about the status of their friendships. According to the percentage data presented in Table 53, it appears that while a plurality of fourth graders, and a majority of seventh graders, believed that they kept most of their same friends from the traditional to the 45-15 ESY, a plurality of the fifth and sixth graders felt that they "lost some old friends, /but/ gained some new friends."

Analyses of fourth through seventh grade student attitudes by residence group

Six significant relationships resulting from the analyses of the fourth through seventh grade students attitudes with the residence group in which the students lived are presented for discussion in this section.

Table 54 presents an analysis of the relationship between the residence group of the students and their expressed degree of "excitedness" about the 45-15 ESY.

TABLE 54, --Relationship between student residence group and students' responses to the question, "lare you excited about school this year?"

Group	Yes	No	Don't Know	Totals
A B C	30 (30%) 47 (55%) 47 (46%) 29 (30%)	46 (46%) 22 (26%) 38 (37%) 41 (42%)	25 (25%) 17 (20%) 17 (17%) 27 (28%)	101 86 102 97
Totals	153 = 19.572	147 df = 6	86	386

The results displayed in Table 54 indicate that a significant relationship (p \langle .05) exists between the residence group of the fourth-seventh grade students and whether they are "excited" about the 45-15 ESY. While the percentage data in Table 54 show that a

plurality of students in groups A and D stated that they were not "excited" about school "this year" (45-15 ESY), a majority of students from group B, and a plurality of students from group C, indicated that they were "excited" about the 45-15 ESY.

An analysis concerning the relationship between the residence group of students and the amount of instruction that they perceive they are getting from their teachers provided results as shown in Table 55.

TABLE 55.--Relationship between student residence group and students' responses to the question, "do you think that you are getting more instruction from your teacher this year in comparison to last year?"

Group	Yes	No	Same	Don't Know	Totals
A	29 (29%)	14 (14%)	47 (47%)	10 (10%)	100
В	39 (46%)	2 (2%)	40 (47%)	4 (5%)	85
C	44 (43%)	15 (15%)	39 (38%)	5 (5%)	103
D	31 (32%)	21 (22%)	39 (40%)	6 (6%)	97
Totals	143	52	165	25	385
x	2 = 22.052		df = 9	p = q	.009

The results of the analysis shown in Table 55 indicate that a significant relationship (p \langle .05) exists between the residence group in which the fourth-seventh grade students lived and their perceptions of the comparative amount of instruction that they received from their teachers during the 45-15 ESY versus the

traditional school year. Additional study of the percentage data indicated that a plurality of students from residence groups A, B, and D tended to believe that they received about the same amount of instruction during both the 45-15 ESY and the traditional school year. A plurality of students from group C, however, thought that they had received "more" instruction during the 45-15 ESY.

Table 56 presents the results of an analysis of the relationship between the students' residence group and their responses concerning whether the 45-15 ESY program had created new problems for them.

TABLE 56.--Relationship between student residence group and students' responses to the question, "has going to school yearround created new problems for you?"

Group	Yes	No	Don't Know	Totals
A B	25 (25%) 11 (13%)	62 (62%) 70 (81%)	14 (14%) 5 (6%)	101
C	29 (28%) 26 (27%)	62 (60%) 53 (55%)	12 (12%) 18 (19%)	103 97
Totals	91	247	49	387
	$x^2 = 17.456$	df =	6	p = .008

Examination of the results presented in Table 56 indicates that a significant relationship (p (.05) exists between the residence group in which a student lived and the students' responses regarding

whether the 45-15 ESY program had created any new problems for them. An additional examination of the percentage data shows that all four groups of students had a majority of students who didn't think that the 45-15 ESY program had created new problems for them. However, the percentage of students in residence group B with the above-mentioned attitude was much larger than were the percentages for students in groups A and C, and especially those in group D.

The results of an analysis concerning the relationship between the fourth-seventh grade students' residence group and their attitudes about the amount of "fun" they were having during the 45-15 ESY are displayed in Table 57.

TABLE 57. --Relationship between student residence group and students' responses to the question, "do you have more fun this year in school than you had last year?"

Group	Yes	No	Same	Don't Know	Totals
A	60 (60%)	16 (16%)	23 (23%)	1 (1%)	100
В	60 (70%)	6 (7%)	17 (20%)	3 (3%)	86
С	56 (54%)	19 (18%)	28 (27%)	0 (0%)	103
D	47 (48%)	25 (26%)	21 (22%)	4 (4%)	97
Totals	223	66	89	8	386
	$x^2 = 20.233$		df = 9	р :	017

According to the results displayed in Table 57, a significant

relationship (p < .05) exists between the residence group in which the student respondents lived and their opinions about the amount of "fun" that they had during the 45-15 ESY in comparison to the traditional school year. The percentage data show that a majority of the students from groups A, B, and C, and a plurality of group D students, believed that they had more fun during the 45-15 ESY than during the traditional school year. Group D students, however, were more inclined to disagree with the majority than were the students from the other three residence sections.

Table 58 presents the results of an analysis concerning the relationship between the students' residence section and their perceptions of their friends feelings about the 45-15 ESY.

TABLE 58.--Relationship between student residence group and students responses to the question, "how do you think that your friends feel about year-round school?"

Group	Dislike	Like	Don't Know	Totals
A	25 (25%)	36 (36%)	40 (40%)	101
В	7 (8%)	34 (40%)	45 (52%)	86
С	24 (23%)	28 (27%)	51 (50%)	103
D	22 (23%)	27 (28%)	48 (49%)	97
Totals	78	125	184	387
\mathbf{x}^2	= 13.122	df =	6	p = .041

The results presented in Table 58 indicate that a significant

relationship (p < .05) exists between the students' residence group and their perceptions of how their friends feel about the 45-15 ESY. The percentage data show that a plurality of of students in groups A and D, and a majority of students in groups B and C, "don't know" how their friends feel about the program. The next highest percentage of students, in all four groups, stated that they think their friends "like" the 45-15 ESY program. Group B students seemed to be more inclined to say that they thought that their friends "liked" the program, as opposed to saying their friends "disliked" the 45-15 ESY, than were the students from group A, C, and D.

An analysis of the relationship between the students' residence group and how the 45-15 ESY program affected their friendships provided the results as found in Table 59.

TABLE 59.--Relationship between student residence group and students' responses to the question, "which of the following statements would best tell me of your friendships this year in school?"

		Lost Some,	Lost Most	
Group	Kept	Gained	Due to	Totals
	Most	Some	Groups	
A	46 (46%)	42 (42%)	12 (12%)	100
В	42 (49%)	33 (39%)	10 (12%)	85
С	50 (49%)	34 (33%)	18 (18%)	102
D	28 (29%)	40 (41%)	29 (30%)	97
Totals	166	149	69	384
	$x^2 = 19.037$	df = 6		p = .004

The results of the analysis presented in Table 59 point out that a significant relationship (p < .05) exists between the residence group of the students and their views on the effect that the 45-15 ESY program has had on student friendships. Further study of the data in percentage form indicates that a plurality of the students in groups A, B, and C believed that they had kept most of their same friends. In group D, however, a plurality of the students thought that they had "lost some old friends, / but / gained some new friends."

Teaching Staff Survey

Percentage summary of teacher respondents

All 114 teachers in the Western School District were surveyed by questionnaire. Of the 114 total, 108 completed questionnaires for a ninety-four percent return rate. A summary of the characteristics of the teacher sample is presented in Table 60.

The characteristics of the teaching staff sample that are presented in Table 60 include the following:

 A majority of the teachers have taught five years or less in the Western School District (combined total of fifty-eight percent), while a combined total of fortythree percent have taught six years or more in the system. A majority of the teachers in the system are female (66%), while thirty-four percent are males.

TABLE 60. -- Characteristics of the teacher sample

Percentages of Teac		Percentage of Teach		
Tenure in the Syste	m	by Sex		
One year or less	13%			
2-3 years	19%	Male	34%	
4-5 years	26%	Female	66%	
6-10 years	28%			
More than 10 years	15%			
Percentage of Teachers		Percentage of Teachers		
by Age		by Grade Level		
Under 30	44%	Elementary (K-5)	42%	
30-50	47%	Middle (6-7)	19%	
Over 50	9%	High School (8-12)	39%	
Percentage of Teach	ers	Percentage of Teachers		
by Type of Contract		by Length of Contra	ct	
Lockstep	62%	185 days or less	59%	
Multi-entry	38%	186-225 days	17%	
•		More than 225 days	24%	

- 3. A plurality of the teachers are between the ages of thirty and fifty (47%). Forty-four percent of the teachers in the system are under thirty years of age, while nine percent are over fifty years old.
- 4. A plurality of the teachers in the system are elementary teachers (42%), while thirty-nine percent are high school teachers (grades 8-12), and nineteen percent are

- middle school teachers (grades 6-7).
- 5. A majority of sixty-two percent of the teachers lockstep with their pupils (have their teaching and vacation schedule "locked in," or the same as one of the residence group's schedule), while thirty-eight percent teach multi-entry classes.
- 6. A majority of fifty-nine percent of the teachers in the system are contracted for 185 days or less. Twentyfour percent teach more than 225 days, while seventeen percent are contracted for between 186 and 225 days.

Table 61 displays a summary of the number of days that the teachers in the system said they would like to contract for in future years.

TABLE 61.--Percentage summary of teachers' responses regarding desired length of contract in future years

Que	stion	185 or less	186-225	More than 225
#7	How many days do you think that you would generally like to contract for in future years?	57%	24%	19%

The results displayed in Table 61 for question number seven indicate that a majority of the teachers in the system would like to

contract for 185 days or less in future years. While fifty-nine percent of the teachers were on 185 day or less contracts for the first 45-15 ESY (1973-74), fifty-seven percent stated that they would desire the same length contract in future years. To continue the comparison, seventeen percent of the teachers were contracted for 186-225 days at the time of this survey, but twenty-four percent stated that they would like that length of contract in the future. While twenty-four percent of the teachers were contracted for more than 225 days during the 1973-74 ESY, only nineteen percent thought that they would like that length of contract in the future.

A summary of the teachers! past and present attitudes toward the 45-15 ESY is presented in Table 62.

TABLE 62. -- Percentage summary of teachers' responses regarding past and present attitudes toward the 45-15 ESY

Question #8	······································		Yes	No	Was Uncertain	
	vor the impler 5 program?	mentation	74%	9%	17%	
Question #9	Question #9					
,	rour feelings r ed by the Wes				ogram as	
Strongly Positive	Somewhat Positive	Mixed		omewhat egative	Strongly Negative	
49%	26%	16%	1/4	7%	Negative	

According to the results found in Table 62 for question number eight, a majority of seventy-four percent of the teachers in the system were originally in favor of the 45-15 ESY program. Seventeen percent were "uncertain" originally, while only nine percent originally opposed the implementation of the program.

The results displayed for question number nine in Table 62 show that a combined total of seventy-five percent were "positive" about the program at the time of this survey, while sixteen percent had "mixed" feelings about the program, and a combined total of ten percent were "negative."

Table 63 presents a summary of teachers' attitudes regarding how the 45-15 ESY has affected the quality of education in the system and how the program has affected students' learning.

TABLE 63.--Percentage summary of teachers' responses regarding the 45-15 ESY's effect on quality of education and students' learning

Que	stion #10	Unchanged	Improved	Reduced		
#10	How do you feel the program has affecte quality of education Western School Dist	the 52% nthe	38%	10%		
#11	Which of the following most closely represents your belief concerning how the 45-15 program affects students' learn:					
	49% 6%	nproves learning (akes little differer ecreases learning ncertain	nce			

The results presented in Table 63 for question number ten show that a majority of the teachers in the Western School District system believe that the quality of education was "unchanged" from the traditional to the 45-15 ESY. Fifty-two percent of the teachers saw no change in the quality of education between the two years, while thirty-eight percent believed that the quality of education had "improved" and ten percent thought that it had been "reduced,"

The results of question number eleven displayed in Table 63, indicate that a plurality of 49% of the teachers thought that the 45-15 ESY program made "little difference" in students' learning. Thirty-seven percent believed that student learning was improved as a result of the program, while eight percent were "uncertain" as to an answer, and six percent thought that the 45-15 ESY program had decreased student learning.

The responses to question number 12, in effect, verified the responses to the question concerning the number of teachers who "lock-stepped" or taught "multi-entry" classes (found in Table 60) and will, therefore, not be dealt with again in this section.

Table 64 presents the results of teachers' responses to a question dealing with the types, methods, or styles of teaching that the teachers had developed as a result of the implementation of the 45-15 ESY.

TABLE 64.--Percentage summary of teachers' responses regarding changes in teaching as a result of the 45-15 ESY

Ouestion #13

In what way(s) have you changed your teaching style or methods as a result of the implementation of the 45-15 ESY program?

- 38% Used somewhat more individualized materials and methods than previously
- 33% Used small group methods more frequently than large group
- 29% Individualized instruction as much as possible
- 27% Devised new materials for use other than standard tests or materials
- 23% Devised "Mini-course" structure for subject content
- 22% Little or no change
- 5% Used large group methods more frequently than small
- 14% Other

Percentages will total more than 100% because teachers were allowed to select more than one choice.

The results for question number thirteen which are displayed in Table 64 point out that as a result of the 45-15 ESY, thirty-eight percent of the teachers "used somewhat more individualized materials and methods than previously," thirty-three percent "used small group methods more frequently than large groups," twenty-nine percent "individualized instruction as much as possible," twenty-seven percent "devised new materials for their use other than standard tests or materials," twenty-three percent "devised "mini-course" structure for subject content to fit nine-week

modules," and twenty-two percent said that they had made "little or no change." In addition, five percent stated that they "used large group methods more frequently than small groups," and fourteen percent of the teachers (twelve respondents)suggested, in written form, other individual items concerning their teaching methods or style.

Teachers' beliefs regarding the 45-15 ESY programs' ability to make school more interesting for students are summarized in Table 65.

TABLE 65.--Percentage summary of teachers' responses regarding the opportunity afforded by the 45-15 ESY program to make school more interesting for students

Question #14

Which of the following most closely represents your beliefs regarding the ability of the 45-15 program to increase the opportunity to make school more interesting for Western's students?

64% Increases opportunities to make school more interesting

20% Makes little difference

9% Decreases opportunities

7% Uncertain

As evidenced by the results for question number fourteen in Table 65, a majority of the teachers (64%) believed that the 45-15 ESY program increased the opportunities to make school more interesting for the students. Twenty percent of the teachers thought

that the program made "little difference" in that respect, while
nine percent stated that the program "decreases opportunities" to
make school more interesting, and seven percent were "uncertain."

Table 66 provides a summary of teachers' opinions regarding various areas of student improvement.

TABLE 66.--Percentage summary of teachers' responses regarding various statements concerning student improvement

Question #15				
Do students appear to do better under to opposed to the nine month schedule as				
following?	Yes	No	Uncertain	
Fewer absences	27%	32%	40%	
Less discipline problems	48%	32%	19%	
Better classroom participation	47%	22%	30%	
Higher achievement	26%	24%	50%	
Better social adjustment	24%	32%	44%	

According to the results summarized in Table 66, when teachers were asked to compare the 45-15 ESY program with the traditional program in terms of the statement "fewer absences," a plurality of forty percent were "uncertain" as to an answer, while thirty-two percent stated that the statement was not true, and twenty-seven percent said that there were "fewer absences." A plurality of forty-eight percent thought that there were "fewer discipline problems," whereas thirty-two percent said "no," and nineteen percent were "uncertain." When asked if there was

"better classroom participation," a plurality of forty-seven percent answered "yes," thirty percent were "uncertain," and twenty-two percent said "no." A majority of fifty percent of the teachers were "uncertain" when asked if there was higher student achievement under the 45-15 ESY program. Twenty-six percent of the teachers believed that there was higher achievement under the program, while twenty-four percent disagreed. In regard to the statement, "better social adjustment," a plurality of the teachers (44%) selected the "uncertain" category, while thirty-two percent said "no," and twenty-four percent answered "yes."

The results of another opportunity for teachers to select statements which best expressed their feelings about the 45-15 ESY program are presented in Table 67.

The results displayed in Table 67 show a wide variety of opinions. A hierarchy of these expressions, by percentages, revealed that seventy-eight percent believed that the program provided "more varied opportunities for student/family travel." sixty-five percent thought that there was "better retention of learning; less review needed," sixty-three percent felt that there was "less student and/or teacher boredom," and forty-eight percent thought that there was "higher student interest, fand/or enthusiasm." Thirty-six percent of the teachers in the system stated that they were "less able to attend graduate school," and

twenty-six percent thought that the 45-15 ESY program "decreased effective communication between administrators and staff."

Twenty-five percent of the teachers believed that the program

"provides better education for students," while twenty percent

ng

Ques	tion #16
	Express your feelings about the 45-15 program. (You may check more than one)
78%	More varied opportunities for student/family travel
65%	Better retention of learning; less review needed
63%	Less student and/or teacher boredom
48%	Higher student interest, enthusiasm
36%	Less able to attend graduate school
26%	Decreased effective communication between administrators and staff
25%	Provides better education for student
20%	Improved communication between administrators and professional staff
9%	Less varied opportunities for student/family travel
7%	Provides inadequate education for students
6%	Less retention of student learning; need for more review
3%	More able to attend graduate school
2%	Lower student interest, enthusiasm
1%	More student and/or teacher boredom
8%	Others

stated that there was "improved communication between adminis trators and professional staff." The category of "less varied opportunities for student/family travel" was selected by nine

percent of the teachers, with seven percent choosing the statement, "provides inadequate education for students." Six percent of the teachers viewed the 45-15 ESY program as providing "less retention of student learning; need more review," three percent thought that they were "more able to attend graduate school," and two percent believed that the program brought about "lower student interest, \(\sum_{\alpha} \text{nd} / \text{or} \) enthusiasm." Only one percent of the teachers thought that the program created "more student and/or teacher boredom." Another eight percent of the teachers had individual feelings that they expressed as written responses.

Table 68 displays the results of teachers' responses to questions regarding their graduate education.

TABLE 68.--Percentage summary of teachers' responses regarding their graduate education

Que	stion	Yes	No	Uncertain
#17	Would you be interested in taking additional graduate courses to help you overcome any problems that you encountered as a result of the 45-15 program?	47%	26%	26%
#18	Do you think that the 45-15 program will seriously hinder your ability to enroll in graduate courses for professional improvement?	27%	56%	17%

According to the results displayed for question number

seventeen in Table 68, a plurality of the teachers (47%) stated that they were interested in taking additional graduate courses to overcome problems encountered as a result of the 45-15 ESY program. The remaining respondents were evenly divided (26% each) between "no" responses and "uncertain" responses.

The results for question number eighteen, found in Table 68, indicate that a majority of the teachers (56%) did not think that the 45-15 ESY would seriously hinder their ability to enroll in graduate classes. Twenty-seven percent of the teachers believed that the program would hinder them in that respect, while seventeen percent were "uncertain."

Finally, the opportunity to offer written suggestions or comments produced fifty-four responses that were either constructive suggestions and/or comments, or were not applicable to the 45-15 ESY program, forty-three responses that were negative, and four responses that were positive.

Analyses of teacher attitudes by number of years tenure

One of the two significant relations presented for discussion in this section was found in an analysis of the relationship between the number of years teachers had been employed in the system and the teachers' original feelings about the implementation of the 45-15 ESY program. Table 69 presents the results of that analysis.

TABLE 69.--Relationship between number of years employed by the system and teachers' responses to the question, "did you favor the implementation of the 45-15 program?"

Years Employed	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
Employed	100			
l year or less	5 (38%)	5 (38%)	3 (23%)	13
2-3 years	16 (80%)	1 (5%)	3 (15%)	20
4-5 years	25 (89%)	1 (4%)	2 (7%)	28
6-10 years	21 (72%)	3 (10%)	5 (17%)	29
10 years or more	11 (69%)	0 (0%)	5 (31%)	16
Totals	78	10	18	106
$x^2 = 21.715$		df = 8		p = .005

The results presented in Table 69 indicate that a significant relationship (p \langle .05) exists between the number of years that teachers have been employed in the system and their original feelings about the implementation of the 45-15 ESY program. The percentage data reveal that while a majority of teachers with two or more years tenure in the system were strongly in favor of the implementation, those teachers that were employed in the system for one year or less were basically equally divided as to their original feelings about the program.

Table 70 displays the results of an analysis concerning the relationship between the number of years teachers had been employed in the system and their responses to the statement, "less discipline problems."

TABLE 70. --Relationship between number of years employed by the system and teachers' responses to the statement, "less discipline problems"

Years Employed	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
l year or less	0 (0%)	7 (70%)	3 (30%)	10
2-3 years	9 (45%)	7 (35%)	4 (20%)	20
4-5 years	14 (50%)	9 (32%)	5 (17%)	28
6-10 years	19 (66%)	4 (14%)	6 (21%)	29
10 years or more	6 (50%)	5 (42%)	1 (8%)	12
Totals	48	32	19	99
$x^2 = 15.6$	df = 8		p = .044	

According to the results presented in Table 70 a significant relationship (p \langle .05) exists between the number of years teachers were employed in the system and their opinions regarding whether there were fewer discipline problems during the 45-15 ESY as compared to the traditional school year. The percentage data show that while a plurality of teachers with 2-3 years tenure, and a majority of teachers with four or more years' tenure, believed that there were fewer discipline problems during the 45-15 ESY, a majority of those teachers who had taught in the system for one year or less (and who probably had no basis for comparison) took the opposite point of view.

Analysis of teacher attitudes by grade level taught

Table 71 presents the results of the one significant relationship selected for discussion in this section. It was an analysis of the relationship between the grade level taught by the teachers and the teachers' original feelings about the implementation of the 45-15 ESY program.

TABLE 71. --Relationship between grade level taught and teachers' responses to the question, 'did you favor the implementation of the 45-15 program?

Grade Level	Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals	
Elementary	29 (64%)	6 (13%)	10 (22%)	45	
Middle School	14 (70%)	4 (20%)	2 (10%)	20	
High School	35 (85%)	0 (0%)	6 (15%)	41	
Totals 2	78	10	18	106	
$x^2 = 9.714$		df = 4	p ≈ .046		

The results in Table 71 appear to indicate that a significant relationship (p \langle .05) exists between the teachers' grade level and their feelings about the implementation of the 45-15 ESY program. The percentage data indicate that a majority of all of the teachers at the various level were favorable to the implementation of the program. The middle school and elementary teachers were favorable to the program but, at the same time, had a larger combined percentage of negative or "uncertain" responses to the

question than did the high school teachers.

Analysis of teacher attitudes by type of teaching assignment

The only meaningfuly relationship found for discussion in this section resulted from the analysis of the relationship between the type of teaching assignment of teachers and their views concerning the statement suggesting that there was "better classroom participation" under the 45-15 ESY program. Table 72 displays the results of that analysis.

TABLE 72. --Relationship between type of teaching assignment (multi-entry or lockstep) and the teachers' responses to the statement, "better classroom participation"

Assignment		Yes	No	Uncertain	Totals
Multi-entry		25 (64%)	9 (23%)	5 (13%)	39
Lockstep		22 (37%)	13 (22%)	24 (41%)	59
Totals		47	22	29	98
	$x^2 = 9.689$		df = 2	p :	: .008

The findings presented in Table 72 indicate that a significant relationship (p $\langle .05 \rangle$) exists between the type of teaching assignment (whether multi-entry or lockstep) and the teachers' responses to the statement that there is "better classroom participation" under the 45-15 ESY program as compared to the traditional school year

program. The percentage data indicate that the big difference between the two groups appeared to be that while a substantial majority of the "multi-entry" teachers believed that the 45-15 ESY program resulted in "better classroom participation," a plurality of the "lockstep" teachers were "uncertain" about their response to the question.

Grade-Point Average Analysis

The question was posed in Chapter III of this study concerning whether there was "any significant difference" in the students' GPA's between the traditional school year program of 1972-73 (first semester), and the 45-15 ESY program of 1973-74 (first semester). In order to determine the answer to that question, 252 students in grades seven through twelve were randomly selected by grade level. This total comprised twenty-three percent of the total number of students in grades seven through twelve.

Table 73 presents an analysis of the relationship between the students first semester GPA's of the 1972-73 traditional school year and those same students first semester GPA's for the 1973-74 45-15 ESY.

According to the findings displayed in Table 73, no significant difference exists between the combined gradepoint averages earned by the seventh-twelfth graders during the

TABLE 73. --Relationship between students' first semester GPA's of the 1972-73 traditional school year and those same students GPA's for the first semester of the 1973-74 45-15 ESY

Grade	1	972-73			1973 -74	74				
	N	М	SD	N	М	SD	df	<u>t</u>	р	
7	45	2.996	.696	45	2.913	.729	44	1.229	.226	
8	48	2.660	.826	48	2.519	.796	47	2.555	.014*	
9	37	2.681	.759	37	2.627	.730	36	.745	.461	
10	45	2.732	.603	45	2.632	.615	44	1.611	.104	
11	44	2.655	.645	44	2.789	.816	43	-1.484	.145	
12	33	2.733	.607	33	2.982	.657	32	-2.506	.017*	
Combine	d 252	2.734	.722	252	2.723	.761	251	.360	.719	

*Indicates those that were significant at the .05 level of probability

first semester of the traditional school year and the combined GPA's earned by the same students during the first semester of the 45-15 ESY. The mean GPA for these students decreased by only .011 between the first semester of the traditional school year and the first semester of the 45-15 ESY.

Further study of Table 73 shows that significant differences (at the .05 level or better) in GPA's occurred at only two of the six grade levels investigated. A significant difference (p < .05) was found to exist between the eighth graders' GPA's for the first semester of the traditional school year (1972-73) (when they were seventh graders), and their first semester GPA's of the 45-15

ESY (1973-74). In addition, the results indicated that the mean GPA of the eighth grade students had decreased .141 between those two first semesters. A second significant difference (p < .05) was found to exist between the GPA's earned by the twelfth graders during their first semester of the 1972-73 traditional school year and the GPA's earned during their first semester of the 1973-74 ESY. The analysis revealed that the GPA mean for the twelfth grade students had increased .249 between their first semester as eleventh graders under the traditional school year and their first semester as twelfth graders under the 45-15 ESY.

Summary

In response to the second question posed for this study in Chapter III, this chapter has presented information regarding how the various respondent groups responded to the educational, economic, and/or personal questions in the survey. More specifically, and in response to the first question posed for this study, the evidence presented in this chapter has indicated that there was a generally favorable overall attitude toward the 45-15 ESY program as implemented by the Western School District in all of the four respondent groups that were surveyed. At least a plurality of respondents in all four samples (parents, secondary students

(8-12), fourth-seventh grade students, and teachers) indicated that they had positive feelings about the 45-15 ESY program.

In answer to the third question posed for this study in Chapter III, when statistically significant relationships were found in the analyses of parent attitudes, the attitudes were more frequently dependent upon the residence group in which they lived (six significant relationships), rather than upon either the grade level of their children (two significant relationships), or the number of years that they had lived in the school district (two significant relationships).

The fourth question posed for this study asked whether the attitudes of the students were dependent upon: (a) their grade level, or (b) the residence group in which they lived. The answer to the fourth question is that when statistically significant relationships were found to exist in the secondary student group, their attitudes were more often dependent upon their grade level (seven instances), than upon their residence group (three instances). The attitudes of the fourth-seventh graders, in those cases where statistically significant relationships were found, were, by a small margin, more frequently dependent upon the residence group in which they lived (six instances), rather than on their grade level (four instances).

Question number five, posed for this study in Chapter III,

asked whether the attitudes of the teachers were dependent upon:

(a) the number of years they had been employed in the Western

School Di strict, (b) the grade level that they taught, or (c) the

type of teaching assignment (lockstep or multi-entry) that they

chose. In the four analyses of teacher attitudes where statistically
significant relationships were found, the teachers! attitudes were

somewhat more dependent upon the number of years that they had

been employed in the system (two instances), than on the grade

level that they taught (one instance), or the type of teaching assignment that they held (one instance).

Finally, in regard to the sixth question posed for this study, a correlated t-test determined that no significant difference existed between the combined seventh through twelfth grade students' first semester GPA's of the 1972-73 traditional school year and those same students' first semester GPA's for the 1973-74 45-15 ESY. However, significant differences (p < .05) were found to exist for the GPA's of students in both eighth and twelfth grades. The eighth graders showed a slight, but statistically significant, decrease in the mean GPA for their group, while the seniors showed a slight, but statistically significant, increase in their groups' mean GPA.

CHAPTER V

SUMMARY, CONCLUSIONS, AND IMPLICATIONS

Summary

A review of the literature regarding the attitudinal surveys of selected 45-15 ESY programs suggested that there was a generally favorable attitude toward the programs as they were implemented in those school systems. A similar generally favorable attitude was evidenced in this survey of the parents, students, and teachers of the Western School District.

The basic purpose of this study was to identify, in the actual field situation, the attitudes of various respondent groups within the Western School District of Parma, Michigan. A second purpose of the study was to make a comparison of the academic performance of the students between the traditional school year and the 45-15 ESY. This was accomplished through the use of student grade-point averages (GPA's). As such, two types of data were collected. Attitudinal data were collected through the use of four different questionnaires (refer to Appendix B). Grade-point averages were collected and compiled from the CA-60 files of

randomly selected students in grades 7-12.

The attitudinal data were presented as percentages for the responses to each question on all four forms of the questionnaires. The data were then analyzed, using chi square tests, to determine whether significant relationships existed between questionnaire items on each of the questionnaires. The variables used as a basis for the chi square tests on the Parent Questionnaire included: (a) the residence group in which they lived, (b) the grade level of their children, and (c) the number of years that they had lived in the district. The variables used as a basis for the Secondary Student and for the Fourth through Seventh Grade Student Questionnaires included: (a) student grade level, and (b) the residence group in which they lived. For the Teacher Questionnaire analyses, the variables were as follows: (a) the number of years they had been employed in the school district, (b) the grade level that they taught, and (c) the type of teaching assignment (lockstep or multientry) that they chose.

The student GPA data were analyzed using correlated \underline{t} -tests to determine whether significant differences existed between the students' first semester GPA's of the 1972-73 traditional school year and those same students' first semester GPA's of the 1973-74 45-15 ESY.

All chi squares and \underline{t} values were presented along with the

precise probability levels at which they could occur by chance. The
.05 level was used as a basis for determining statistical significance.

Three hundred ninety-four parents, representing thirty percent of the listed parent population in the Western School District, were randomly selected as one of the samples for this survey.

Approximately fifty-three percent of the secondary students, and forty-nine percent of the fourth through seventh grade students, represented the student populations of 898 and 838 students respectively. One hundred fourteen teachers comprised the teacher sample, and represented one hundred percent of the total teacher population.

The basis instruments used in this study were the four questionnaire forms (refer to Appendix B) developed jointly by the Western School District's Citizen Advisory Committee, in consultation with Dr. Rodney Roth of Western Michigan University, and this writer.

Conclusions

A discussion of the results of this study has been organized according to each respondent group surveyed, with two additional sections for the comparison of student GPA's and a comparison of selected parent, student, and teacher attitudes.

Parent survey

The parent survey revealed that a majority of the parents surveyed in the Western School District had expressed a favorable attitude toward the 45-15 ESY program as implemented by the District. The analyses revealed that significant relationships existed between certain variables (questions) that were investigated. These differences in parent attitudes were found to more frequently be dependent upon the residence group in which they lived (possibly due to socio-economic factors), rather than upon either the grade level of their children, or on the number of years that they had

Student surveys

The student group (secondary and fourth-seventh) surveys indicated that a plurality of the secondary students, and a majority of the fourth-seventh grade students, expressed a favorable attitude toward the 45-15 ESY program. Statistically significant relationships were found to exist as a result of the analyses of student questionnaire items. While the secondary students' attitudes were more often dependent upon their grade level, the fourth-seventh grade students' opinions were, by a slight margin, more frequently dependent on the residence group in which they lived.

Teacher survey

The survey of teachers revealed that a very large majority of them expressed favorable attitudes regarding the 45-15 ESY.

Teachers' attitudes were more frequently dependent on the number of years employed by the system, than on the grade level taught, or on the type of teaching assignment that they held.

Student grade-point averages

The 45-15 ESY program appeared to have little or no effect on the academic achievement of students. An analysis of the randomly selected student GPA's (grades 7-12) between the first semester of 1972-73 (traditional school year) and the same students' GPA's for the first semester of 1973-74 (45-15 ESY) revealed that no significant difference existed between the combined seventh-twelfth grade students' GPA's for those two semesters. Small, but significant differences did exist, however, for eighth graders (slight decrease in GPA's), and for twelfth graders (slight increase in GPA's).

Comparison of selected parent, student, and teacher attitudes

At least a plurality of the respondents from all four of the groups surveyed favored the 45-15 ESY. The teaching staff

appeared to be the most "positive" about the program, followed in order by the parents, the fourth-seventh grade students, and then the secondary (8-12) students.

A majority of the teachers and of the parents of students in grades K-5, and a plurality of the parents of students in grades 6-12, believed that the "quality of education in the Western School District" was unaffected as a result of the implementation of the 45-15 ESY.

While a majority of the parent respondents believed that their children's interest in school had remained about the same for both the 45-15 ESY and the traditional school year, a majority of the teachers in the system believed that the 45-15 ESY program "increases /the/ opportunity to make school more interesting" for students.

A plurality of the teachers thought that the 45-15 ESY program "makes little difference" in regard to student learning. A similar question for the parent sample regarding their children's "achievement" in school during the 45-15 ESY in comparison to the traditional school year, resulted in a majority of the parent respondents believing that student achievement was "about the same" for both years.

The parent sample and both student samples (4-7 grade and 8-12 grade) had a majority of respondents who stated that the

45-15 ESY had not interfered with the students' extra-curricular (or "after school") activities.

At least a plurality of both the parent and the secondary student respondents believed that multi-entry classes have either "had no effect" on their learning (majority of student responses) or had not created problems for the students (plurality of parent responses).

A majority of the parents and secondary students, and a plurality of the fourth-seventh grade students, stated that the 45-15 ESY program had created little or no problem for them in terms of taking family vacations.

A majority of the secondary students, and a plurality of the fourth-seventh grade students, stated that they thought that they had received about the same amount of instruction from their teachers during the 45-15 ESY as they had during the traditional school year.

A majority of both the secondary student sample and the fourth-seventh grade sample thought that the 45-15 ESY had not created any new problems for them as compared to the traditional school year.

Finally, a majority of the secondary students, and a plurality of the fourth through seventh grade students, thought that they had kept most of their same friends even though the 45-15

ESY program required a staggered schedule of attendance for students in the four residence groups.

Implications

The primary purpose of this study was to determine the attitudes of the Western School District's students, teachers, and parents. It was believed that by surveying the attitudes of those groups, a more thorough knowledge and understanding of the educational, individual, and community needs could be achieved. It was thought that the determination of attitudes would provide an objective basis for evaluating the impact of the 45-15 ESY program on the students, teachers, and parents of the Western School District and, as such, provide an objective rationale for any future decisions regarding the continuation of the 45-15 ESY program.

In the opinion of this writer, the findings of this study provided a valid indication of the attitudes of the four respondent groups regarding short-term exposure to the 45-15 ESY program and, therefore, could provide the Western School District with an objective rationale for the continuation of the 45-15 ESY program. In addition, this study could provide other school systems in the state and nation with an objective basis for the implementation of 45-15 ESY programs.

Recommendations

Because this study was conducted and completed after only one semester of operation of the 45-15 ESY program in the Western School District, it would seem wise to complete one or more similar surveys at specified intervals in future years. Certainly, as the various problems of the present program are determined, acknowledged, and alleviated, replications of this study could further aid in the evaluation of the program's impact and value. This process would increase the knowledge about, and understanding of, the program and would necessarily provide a logical and rational basis for any future decisions regarding the 45-15 ESY.

REFERENCES

- American Association of School Administrators. Nine plus: The year-round school. Washington, D. C.: Author, 1970.
- American Association of School Administrators. Year-round school. Washington, D. C.: Author, 1960.
- Engh, J. Why not year-round schools. Saturday Review, 1966, 49 (38), 82-84.
- Freeland Community Schools. STAY (Start teaching all year).
 Freeland, Michigan: Author, 1970.
- Gatewood, T. E. The year-round school: A plan for action. (Booklet A: What's happening and where). New London, Conn.: Croft Educational Services, Inc., 1973.
- Gatewood, T. E. The year-round school: A plan for action.
 [Booklet B: Studying, planning, and implementing). New
 London, Conn.: Croft Educational Services, Inc., 1973.
- Gatewood, T. E. The year-round school: A plan for action.

 (Booklet C: Selling the plan). New London, Conn.: Croft Educational Services, Inc., 1973.
- Gove, J. R. Feasibility study of the 45-15 plan for year-round operation of a public high school served by an elementary district (Valley View #96, Will County, State of Illinois) already on the 45-15 plan. Final report submitted to the U. S. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, Office of Education, National Center for Educational Research and Development, Regional Research Program, Oct. 27, 1972. (Project No. 1-E-114), Romeoville, Illinois: Author, 1972.
- Hendra, R., Dunnuck K., & Collins, D. Year-round schools come to Michigan. <u>Michigan School Board Journal</u>, 1973, 20 (10), 18-19, 27.
- Hermansen, K. L., & Gove, J. R. The year-round school: The 45-15 breakthrough. Hamden, Conn.: Linnet Books, 1971.

- Holt, H. B. Year-round schools and system shock. Phi Delta Kappan, 1973, 54, 310-311.
- Mc Graw, P. Junior doesn't have to bale hay anymore. Compact, 1973. 7 (5), 11-12.
- National Education Association. The all year school. Report of the National Education Association. Washington, D. C.: Author. 1962.
- National Education Association. The all year school. Research memo of the National Education Association Research Division. Washington, D. C.: Author, 1964.
- National Education Association. The rescheduled school year.
 Research Summary 1968-52. Washington, D. C.: Author,
 1972.
- Ned Hubbel and Associates. Attitudes toward year-round schools in Prince William County, Virginia. Port Huron, Mich.: Author, 1972.
- New York State Education Department, Office of Research and Evaluation. Extended school year designs: An introduction to plans for rescheduling the school year. Albany, N. Y.: Author, 1966.
- Northville Board of Education. Year-round school: Is it feasible? Northville, Mich.: Author, 1970.
- Pennsylvania Department of Education, Bureau c. Administrative Leadership Services. <u>Year-round school</u>. Harrisburg, Pa.: Author, 1971.
- Person-O-Metrics, Inc. Annotated bibliography of extended school year materials. Reproduced with permission of Office of Program Development, Division of Research, Planning and Evaluation, New Jersey Dept. of Education. Dearborn Hgts., Mich.: Author, 1972.
- Person-O-Metrics, Inc. Extended school year: Cost benefits of <u>a 45-15 elementary program (45-15 ESY)</u>. Dearborn, Hgts., <u>Mich.</u>: Author, 1973.

- Person-O-Metrics, Inc. Extended school year: Curriculum (45-15 ESY). Dearborn Hgts., Mich.: Author, 1973.
- Person-O-Metrics, Inc. Extended school year interim evaluation: 45-15 ESY, Northville Public Schools. Dearborn Hgts., Mich.: Author, January, 1973.
- Phi Delta Kappa, Inc. The Gallup polls of attitudes toward education, 1969-1973. Bloomington, Ind.: Author, 1973.
- Roth, R. Extended school year in Michigan. An interim report prepared for the State of Michigan, Department of Education, Experimental and Demonstration Centers Program. Kalamazoo. Mich.: Western Michigan University, 1973.
- Rifkin, N. S. A round-up on year-round schools. Today's Education, 1973, 63 (7), 58-64.
- Tsitrian, J. The Furgeson Plan for all-year school. Phi Delta Kappan, 1973, 54, 314-315.
- U. S. Congress. House. Committee on Education and Labor.
 Year-round schools. Hearings before the General Subcommittee on Education, 92nd Cong., 2nd sess., 1972.
- U. S. News and World Report. New trend: Year-round schools. Washington, D. C.: Author, 1971, 71 (4), 35-57.
- Utica Community Schools. The optional five-term year-round educational plan: A step toward implementing plans for extending the regular school year (Phase II: The communication phase). Utica, Mich.: Author, 1971.
- Western School District Board of Education. Western School
 District special report. A report of the Western School
 District Board of Education. An unpublished paper. Parma,
 Mich.: Author, April, 1973.

APPENDICES Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

APPENDIX A .-- Western School District 1973-74 45-15 ESY Calendar

1973

			-						_				
Ju	ıly	August	Se	ptemb	er	C	ctobe	r	No	vemb	er	Dec	ember
5	26	16	7	10	28	1	19	22	9	12	30	3	21*

Group Group Group Group AAAAAAAAAAAAAA

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD

cccccccccccc DDDDDDDD

1974

January	February	March	April	May	June	July	August
3 23 24	13 14	8 11 29*	8 26 29	17 20	7 10 28*	8 26	16

Group Group AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

AAAAAAAAAAAAA

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB CCCCCCC

Group Group CCC CCCCCCCCC DDDDDDDDDDDDD DDDD CCC DDDDDDDDD

CCCC DDDD DDDDDDDDD

*Simultaneous vacations for all four groups included the following periods of time:

Christmas ----- December 22 - January 2 Spring----- March 30 - April 7 Fourth of July----- June 29 - July 7

APPENDIX B.--Western School District Evaluation Project Parent Questionnaire

1. What group (residence section) of the District do you live in?

-	A B C D Don't Kn
2.	Approximately how many years have you lived in the Wester: School District?
	0-12-56 or more
3.	Please place an "X" in front of any one or more of the following categories which would described your family.
	A. Have one or more pre-school age children in the Western School District
	B. Have one or more children enrolled in elementary grades K-5 in the Western Schools
	C. Have one or more children enrolled in middle school grades 6-7 in the Western Schools
	D. Have one or more children enrolled in high school grades 8-12 in the Western Schools
	E. Have one or more children, other than pre-school, that are not enrolled in the Western Schools
	F. Have no children presently enrolled in the Western Schools
4.	Do you think that in the future the 45-15 program will save the school system money?
	Yes No Uncertain
5.	Did you originally favor the implementation of the 45-15 program?
	YesNoUncertain
6.	How do you now feel about the $45-15$ program as implemented by the Western School District?
	Strongly Negative Mixed Somewhat Positive Somewhat Negative Strongly Positive
7.	If money were available to construct the necessary buildings, would you desire to return to the nine-month schedule? YesNoUncertain
	Questions 8-13 should be responded to according to the grade

level(s) of your child(ren). For example, if you have one child in the 5th grade, and one child in the 8th grade, you would respond once under the "Grades K-5" column and once under the "Grades 8-12" column. Please respond in only those answer columns that apply to the grade level(s) of your child(ren).

8.	To what extent do you believe the 45-15 program has affected
	the quality of education in the Western School District?

Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
			Greatly Improved
			Somewhat Improved
**************		-	About the Same
			Somewhat Reduced
	-	-	Greatly Reduced
Transmould see		ild/man\la intan	ast in school this

9. How would you rate your child(ren)'s interest in school this year under the 45-15 program as compared to last year's traditional program?

Grades 1-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	Decreased interest
			in school this year
			Interest about the same during both years
	***************************************		Increased interest this year

10. How would you rate your child(ren)'s achievement in school this year in comparison to last year?

Grades 1-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
			Higher this year
			About the same
			Lower this year

11.	. now has the	45-15 program	arrected your	children socially?
	Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
				Negatively Unchanged Positively
12.		5 program inte tra-curricular		ır child(ren)'s parti- ies?
	Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
				Yes No Unchanged
	If "Yes," ple	ase specify	·	
13.	child(ren)'s l	earning?	-	have hindered your
	Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
				Yes No Uncertain
14.		ildren in grade ems for them?	es 8-12, have r	multi-entry classes
	Yes	No	Uncertain	
	If "Yes," plea	se specify		
15.		here are advar n, how do you		dvantages to the
	Yes No Unce	rtain		
			s a better educ utilization of f	cation for students acilities

	Yes No Uncertain	Provides better opportunities for student/family travel and vacation Lower student interest and enthusiasm Less student boredom Costs more to operate Better than split shifts or overcrowding Better than increased taxes Other (Please specify below)
16.	Has the 45-15 prograplanning for, and taki Yes	
17.	Would your employer during any season of t	
18.	Have you taken family summer in the past? Yes	vacations during seasons other than
19.	Have you taken family summer during this sYesN	
	If "Yes," please chec Fall (Sept Nov. Winter (Dec Ma	
20.	Do you have any sugges 45-15 year-round prop	stions or comments about Western's gram?
	YesN	0
	If "Yes," please speci	ify.
	VICTO	

APPENDIX B.--Western School District Evaulation Project Secondary Student Questionnaire

٠.	89101112
2.	Are you a:MaleFemale
3.	What "group" (residence section) of the school district do you live in? _A _B _C _D _Don't Know
4.	Which of the following statements would best describe your feelings about the 45-15 program in the Western School District? Like ItMixed FeelingsDon't Like itCan't Say
5.	Which of the following statements would best describe your feelings about the 45-15 program in comparison to the traditional school year program that you attended last year?
	Like 45-15 better than traditional (9 month school, 3 month vacation) Like both about the same Don't like 45-15 as well as the traditional program
6.	Do you think you are getting more instruction from your teachers this year in comparison to last year? More this yearAbout the same as last yearLess this year
7.	Which of the following would you say are your major "likes" of the 45-15 school program as compared to the traditional school year? (You may check more than one) Shorter vacations, coming more often Less boredom with school or vacation Opportunity to learn more More knowledge retention Smaller class size More attention from teachers More interesting classes Others: (Please specify)

8.	Which of the following would you say are your major "dislikes" of the 45-15 school program as compared to the traditional school year? (You may check more than one) Vacation breaks too short, no long summer vacation More boredom in school Less opportunity to learn Forget more during vacations Less attention from teachers Less interesting classes Others: (Please specify)
9.	Which of the following would best describe your opinion of the way your teachers are teaching you this year in comparison to last year?
	Doing a better job teaching me this year Doing about the same job of teaching me this year as last year Doing a worse job of teaching me this year
10.	Has going to school under the 45-15 program caused you any problems that you did not have last year under the traditional school program? Yes No If "Yes," please explain.
11.	Were you able to schedule classes that you needed to fulfill your educational requirements? YesNoUncertain
12.	Were you able to schedule the classes that you wanted? YesNoUncertain
13.	How do you feel 45-15 has affected the availability of electives? More electives offeredFewer electives offeredAbout the same
14.	Have you had a multi-entry class?YesNo

	If "Yes," do you feel multi-entry classes have Provided greater learning opportunity Hindered your learning opportunity Have had no effect
15.	Are your parents able to take their vacations from work at the same time as your school vacations if they wish to? YesNoUncertain
16.	Which of the following statements best describe your friendships this year? Kept most of my same friends Lost some old friends; gained some new friends Lost most of my old friends because they are in different groups
17.	Has the 45-15 program made it more difficult for you to work in a part-time job this year? YesNoDon't WorkUncertain
18.	Has the 45-15 program made it more difficult for you to take part in school sports and/or other activities this year? YesNoUncertain
	If "Yes," please explain.
19.	What effect do you think the 45-15 program has had on school spirit?
20.	What things were wrong with the 45-15 program this year that you would like to see changed for next year? Please list below any comments that you may wish to make.

APPENDIX B.--Western School District Evaluation Project Fourth through Seventh Grade Questionnaire

What grade are you in?

٠.	
2.	Who answered these questions? A Boy A Girl
3.	What "group" do you live in? Group AGroup CGroup BGroup DDon't Know
4.	How well do you like the vacation periods (breaks) this year in comparison to last year?
5.	Are you excited about school this year?YesNoDon't Know
6.	Do you think that you are getting more instruction from your teachers this year in comparison to last year? Yes No About the Same Don't Know
7.	Has going to school year-round enabled you to "remember more and forget less" as compared to last year? Yes No About the Same Don't Know
8.	Has going to school year-round created new problems for you
9.	Have your after school activities been changed because you are now going to school the year-round? _YesNoDon't Know
10.	How do your grades this year compare with your grades last year? Grades are lower Grades about the same Grades are better

11.	Are your father and mother able to take their vacation from work at the same time as you have your school vacation, if they want to? YesNoSometimesDon't Know
12.	Do you have more fun this year in school than you had last year?
	YesNoAbout the SameDon't Know
13.	How do you think that your friends feel about year-round school? They don't like itThey like itDon't Know
14.	Which of the following statements would best tell me of your friendships this year in school? Kept most of my same friends Lost some old friends; gained some new friends Lost most of my friends because they are in a different group
15.	What things would you like to see added to the school program for next year?

APPENDIX B.--Western School District Evaluation Project Teaching Staff Questionnaire

1.	How many school years have you been employed in the Western Schools? (Count any part of a year as a full year) 1 2-3 4-5 6-10 More than 10
2.	What is the sex of the person completing this questionnaire? MaleFemale
3.	What is your age?Under 3030-50Over 50
4.	What level do you teach?ElemMiddle SchHigh School
5.	Did you''lockstep'' under this year's contract?YesNo
6.	How many days are you contracted for during this school year185 or less186-225More than 225
7.	How many days do you now think that you would generally like to contract for in future school years? 185 or less186-225More than 225
3.	Did you favor the implementation of the 45-15 program? YesNoUncertain
₽.	What are your feelings now regarding the 45-15 program as implemented by the Western School District? Strongly Positive Somewhat Negative Somewhat Positive Mixed Strongly Negative
10.	How do you feel the 45-15 program has affected the quality of education in the Western School District? UnchangedImprovedReduced
1.	Which of the following most closely represents your beliefs concerning how the 45-15 program affects students' learning? Improves learningMakes little differenceDecreases learningUncertain

12.	Do you teach any "multi-entry" classes?No
13.	In what way(s) have you changed your teaching style or methods as a result of the implementation of the 45-15 program?
14.	Which of the following most closely represents your beliefs regarding the ability of the 45-15 program to increase the opportunity to make school more interesting for Western's students?
15.	Do students appear to do better under the 45-15 program as opposed to the 9 month schedule as exemplified by the following? Fewer absenses Yes No Uncertain Less Discipline problems Yes No Uncertain Better classroom participation Yes No Uncertain Higher achievement Yes No Uncertain Better social adjustment Yes No Uncertain
16.	Express your feelings about the 45-15 program. (You may check more than one) Provides better education for students Provides inadequate education for students Better retention of learning; less review needed Less retention of student learning; need for more review More varied opportunities for student/family travel and vacations Less varied opportunities for student/family travel and vacations

	Higher student interest, enthusiasm
	Lower student interest, enthusiasm
	Less student and/or teacher boredom
	More student and/or teacher boredom
	Improved communication between administrators and
	professional staff
	Decreased effective communication between administrators
	and staff
	More able to attend graduate school
	Less able to attend graduate school
	Others: (Please specify)
17.	Would you be interested in taking additional graduate courses to help you overcome any problems that you encountered as a result of the 45-15 program? YesNoUncertain
18.	Do you think that the 45-15 program will seriously hinder your ability to enroll in graduate courses for professional improvement?
	YesNoUncertain
19.	Do you have any suggestions or comments which would improve $\tt Western^ts\ 45-15\ program?$
	YesNo
	If "Yes," please specify

APPENDIX C .-- Summary of Populations and Samples

	Number in Population	Number in Sample	Sample as % of Population	Number of Sample Returns	Return Rate
Parents	1333	394	30%	314	80%
Secondary Students	898	472	53%	398	84%
Fourth- Seventh Grade Students	838	414	49%	387	93%
Teachers	114	114	100%	108	94%

APPENDIX D . -- Letter to Parents

WESTERN SCHOOL DISTRICT

1400 S. Dearing Rd.

Parma, Michigan 49269

February 9, 1974

Dear Parents:

As you know, the Western School District has been involved in a unique school program this year. Since our district is one of only a few school systems in the nation to offer a 45-15 year-round program, the Western Board of Education asked for a Citizens Advisory Committee to evaluate that program.

The Citizens Advisory Committee began its work last November by electing officers, reviewing questionnaires provided by the Research, Evaluation, Development, Experimentation Center from Western Michigan University, and then developing their own questionnaires. Your opinions will provide important information concerning our type of school program and will play an important part in the evaluation of our 45-15 program.

With the above in mind, the Citizens Committee is asking for your help to complete the attached questionnaire. This was developed by the Community Sub-Committee of the Citizens Committee for 45-15 program evaluation and it is intended to allow you to express your opinion about the 45-15 program in our school district. Your responses to this questionnaire will be completely anonymous. Please do not sign the questionnaire.

We would appreciate it if you would now spend just a few minutes to fill out the enclosed questionnaire as accurately and as completely as possible and then return it to Dr. Rodney Roth, Consultant from Western Michigan University, by February 15, 1974. A self-addressed, stamped envelope has been enclosed for your convenience. If you have no children enrolled in the Western School District, please check 3F and return the questionnaire.

Thank you for your cooperation and participation in this effort.

Sincerely,

Carl J. Benes, Chairman
Mrs. Frances Jett, Vice Chairman
Mrs. Mary Trumble, Secretary
Dave Gines, Chairman of Community Sub-Committee
Alun Bevan, Chairman of Student Sub-Committee
Mrs. Mildred Murphy, Chairman of Non-Teaching Staff Sub-Committee
Charles Savage, Chairman of Teachers Sub-Committee

APPENDIX E . -- Letter to Parents

WESTERN SCHOOL DISTRICT

1400 S. Dearing Rd. Parma, Michigan 49269

February 12, 1974

Dear Parents:

Recently, you were one of 400 randomly selected families in the district to receive a questionnaire concerning the evaluation of the Western School District's 45-15 year-round program.

Since you are one of only a small number of families in the district to receive the questionnaire, it is very important that you complete and return the questionnaire by February 15, 1974.

If you have already sent the questionnaire back to Dr. Roth, we would like to thank you for your time and efforts and ask that you sign the enclosed self-addressed postcard and mail it to him. This will still guarantee that your responses on the questionnaire will remain completely anonymous, but it will allow him to eliminate your name from the list of those who have not yet completed and returned the questionnaire.

If you have not completed and returned the questionnaire, would you please do so as soon as possible, and then, a day or so later, sign and return the postcard to Dr. Roth. Your opinions are a very important part of this evaluation.

Thanks again for your help in this matter.

Sincerely,

Carl J. Benes, Chairman

Mrs. Frances Jett, Vice Chairman

Mrs. Mary Trumble, Secretary

Dave Gines, Chairman of Community Sub-Committee

Alun Bevan, Chairman of Student Sub-Committee

Mrs. Mildred Murphy, Chairman of Non-Teaching Staff Sub-Committee Charles Sayage, Chairman of Teachers Sub-Committee

Address Side	
	Dr. Rodney Roth, Director Research, Evaluation, Development, Experimentation (REDE) Center College of Education Western Michigan University Kalamazoo, Michigan 49001
Message Side	
	Dated
De	ar Dr. Roth:
Qı	I have completed and mailed the 45-15 Parent estionnaire to your office.
	Signature
po	If you have not completed and returned the estionnaire, would you please do so as soon as sible, and then, a day or two later, sign and ill this postcard.
	Thank you.

APPENDIX F . -- Letter to Parents

WESTERN SCHOOL DISTRICT

1400 S. Dearing Rd.

Parma, Michigan 49269

February 25, 1974

Dear Parents:

Recently, you were one of 400 randomly selected families in the district to receive a questionnaire concerning the evaluation of the Western School District's 45-15 year-round program. A few days later you received a follow-up letter and a postage paid, self-addressed return postcard.

Because of the importance to the validity of this survey, and since you were one of only a small number of families in the district to receive the questionnaire, it is very important that you complete and return the questionnaire to Dr. Roth as soon as possible (REDE Center, College of Education, Western Michigan University, Kalamazoo, Mich., 49001). For your convenience a stamped, self-addressed envelope was enclosed with the questionnaire sent to you earlier.

Thanks again for your help in this matter

Sincerely.

The Citizens Advisory Committee
The Reverend Carl J. Benes, Chairman

APPENDIX G. --Western School District Evaluation Project Parent Questionnaire

- What group (residence section) of the District do you live in? 1. 22% D 2% Don't Know 30% A 26% B 21% C
- 2. Approximately how many years have you lived in the Western School District?

11% 0-1 27% 2-5 62% 6 or more

- Please place an "X" in front of any one or more of the following categories which would describe your family.
 - 25% Have one or more pre-school age children in the Western School District.
 - В. 60% Have one or more children enrolled in elementary grades K-5 in the Western Schools
 - 29% Have one or more children enrolled in middle C. school grades 6-7 in the Western Schools
 - 45% Have one or more children enrolled in high school D. grades 8-12 in the Western Schools
 - 8% Have one or more children, other than pre-school, Ε. that are not enrolled in the Western Schools
 - F. 7% Have no children presently enrolled in the Western Schools
- Do you think that in the future the 45-15 program will save the school system money? 42% Uncertain

26% Yes 32%No

5. Did you originally favor the implementation of the 45-15 program?

47% Yes 36% No. 16% Was Uncertain

- How do you now feel about the 45-15 program as implemented by the Western School District? 26% Somewhat Positive 13% Strongly Negative 12% Somewhat Negative 20% Mixed 29% Strongly Positive
- 7. If money were available to construct the necessary buildings, would you desire to return to the nine-month schedule? 23% Uncertain 35% Yes 42% No

Questions 8-13 should be responded to according to the grade level(s) of your child(ren). For example, if you have one child in the 5th grade, and one child in the 8th grade, you would respond once under the "Grades K-5" column and once under the "Grades 8-12" column. Please respond in only those answer columns that apply to the grade level(s) of your child(ren).

8. To what extent do you believe that the 45-15 program has affected the quality of education in the Western School District?

Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	•
10%	9%	5%	Greatly Improved
21%	29%	19%	Somewhat Improved
57%	40%	49%	About the Same
9%	16%	15%	Somewhat Reduced
3%	6%	12%	Greatly Reduced

 How would you rate your child(ren)'s interest in school this year under the 45-15 program as compared to last year's traditional program?

Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	_
16%	15%	22%	Decreased interest in school this year
56%	52%	/-	Interest about the same during both years
27%	33%		Increased interest this year

10. How would you rate your child(ren)'s achievement in school this year in comparison to last year?

Grades 1-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
21%	21%	14%	Higher this year
69%	64%	69%	About the Same
10%	15%	16%	Lower this year

11. How has the 45-15 program affected your children socially?

Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
10%	14%	21%	Negatively
74%	72%	69%	Unchanged
16%	14%	10%	Positively

12. Has the 45-15 program interfered with your child(ren)'s participation in extra-curricular school activities?

Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
11%	14%	23%	Yes
73%	69%	63%	No
16%	17%	13%	Unchanged

If "Yes," please specify.

- Makes it difficult to attend scouts, sports activities, cheerleading practice, social events, Band, Driver's Education, GAA, summer camp, and/or other summer activities. (19)
- Continuous transporting of students for school activities during breaks is a problem. (13)
- Free time is not actually free time when student actively participates in extra-curricular activities. (2)
- 4. No because of opportunity, but because of lack of interest while on vacation. (2)
- Not at this level (elementary and middle school) so much, but we anticipate problems for grades 8-12.
- 6. Child preferred to take mini-courses rather than band.
- 7. Unable to participate because of lack of transportation.
- 8. Inconvenience of having to stay home during vacation.
- 9. No, but the family has had to plan around our child.
- 13. Do you believe that summer temperatures have hindered your child(ren)'s learning?

Grades K-5	Grades 6-7	Grades 8-12	
20%	21%	24%	Yes
53%	56%	45%	No
27%	23%	31%	Uncertain

 If you have children in grades 8-12, have multi-entry classes created problems for them?
 30% Yes
 40% No
 28% Uncertain

If "Yes," please specify.

- Teacher's time for each group is limited; less teacher attention per student. (11)
- 2. Unable to obtain desired classes. (8)

- 3. Presents a problem in band, geometry, woodshop, algebra II, math, chemistry, and foreign languages. (7)
- Too difficult to teach this type of class. (5) 4.
- Confusion when each new group enters class. (5)
- 6. Teacher was more interested in progress of most advanced students.
- Students are at different places in the books. 7.
- More "Incompletes" for grades.
- 9. Don't know what multi-entry classes are.
- 10. Distractions from other groups in class.
- 11. Depends on teachers' ability to handle it.
- 12 Presents a learning problem for the students.
- 13. Art supplies are used up by the time groups C and D start.
- 14. No problem in band.
- 15. Withdrew my children before they could be affected.
- 16. Teachers spend too much time away from classrooms.
- 15. Knowing that there are advantages and disadvantages to the 45-15 program, how do you now react to the following statements?

Yes	No	Uncertain	
26%	29%	45%	Provides a better education for students
8%	64%	28%	Poorer utilization of facilities
55%	32%	13%	Provides better opportunities for student/
			family travel and vacation
18%	61%	21%	Lower student interest and enthusiasm
59%	22%	19%	Less student boredom
34%	16%	50%	Costs more to operate
81%	9%	10%	Better than split shifts or overcrowding
69%	19%	12%	Better than increased taxes

Other: (Please specify below)

- 1. Increased taxes seen forthcoming anyway. (3)
- 45-15 is O.K. for elementary and middle school grades. 2. but not for high school. (3)
- Dislike busing children away from their neighborhood 3. school and friends. (2)
- 45-15 was supposed to reduce class sizes, but it hasn't. (2)
- Interferes with student employment. (2)
- Too soon to evaluate student achievement, (2) 6.
- Rather pay more taxes and have traditional program. (2) 7.

- 8. Needs of the children weren't considered. (2)
- Only one uninterrupted 9-week block for C group-provides only a "hit or miss" education.
- 10. Our taxes will increase due to inflation -- not necessarily because of 45-15.
- 11. Separates friends.
- 12. Cost of 45-15 has never been fully disclosed.
- 13. Children seem to be able to work on summer jobs during the weeks they are off.
- 14. Taxes doubled over last year.
- 15. Difficult for working mothers to find babysitters.
- 16. Decrease in class sizes have increased teacher-student relationships.
- 17. There are grading difficulties when more than one teacher has the same class.
- 18. Scheduling of classes is a problem.
- 19. Vacation breaks hinder some courses.
- We can always work our vacation schedule into the school 20. break. .
- Western School District is administratively unable to 21. conduct the program.
- 22. Better able to find babysitters.
- 23. Shorter vacations may help poorer students to retain more.
- 24. System has become much more contemporary.
- 25. District should be split up into smaller units.
- 26. No busing.
- 27. They wanted this system for the teachers' standpoint, not the parents/students.
- 28. Paving teachers with 3 to 7 students in a class is poor management.
- 29. Probably needs more study.
- 30. Quality of education is reduced.
- 31. Provides better opportunity for student jobs.
- Dislike split-grade situations in elementary. 32.
- 33. Disrupts family unit.
- 34. Our problem may be due more to a change of schools (elementary to middle school) than to 45-15.
- Teachers need to maintain more discipline. 35.
- 16. Has the 45-15 program created problems for your family in planning for, and taking, vacations? 5% Uncertain

24% Yes 71% No

17. Would your employer grant your request for vacation time during any season of the year? 63% Yes 27% No 10% Uncertain

18. Have you taken family vacations during seasons other than summer in the past?

42% Yes

59% No

0% Uncertain

19. Have you taken family vacations during seasons other than summer during this school year?

32% Yes

68% No

0% Uncertain

- If "Yes," please check the appropriate season.
 62% Fall (Sept. Nov.) 38% Winter (Dec. March)
- Do you have any suggestions or comments about Western's 45-15 year-round program?
 60% Yes
 40% No

If "Yes," please specify.

- 1. Feel positive about 45-15. (23)
- 2. Return to regular 9-month school year. (12)
- 3. Eliminate multi-entry classes. (10)
- 4. Difficult to evaluate the program since an entire year has not been completed. (10)
- Don't feel that 45-15 is providing the best education for our children. (6)
- Like the 3-week breaks--children get a rest and don't get bored. (6)
- 7. Time and/or study are needed to iron out the difficulties and improve upon the good points. (6)
- Would be interested in hearing a "cost" evaluation of 45-15 in comparison to the traditional year. (5)
- 9. Residence groups should alternate schedules each year. (5)
- Some teachers were unprepared to teach courses that they hadn't taught before. (5)
- 11. Quality of education is questionable or reduced. (4)
- 12. Separates friends and/or hinders social activities. (4)
- 13. Believe that air-conditioning is a must. (4)
- 14. Desire better student discipline. (4)
- 15, Our child likes school. (4)
- 16. Need our children for summer work. (3)
- Doesn't work well in elementary. Students forget a lot a lot during breaks. (3)
- 18. More care should be taken on hot days. Teachers and students should be informed of signs and teatment for heat exhaustion and heat strokes. (3)
- 19. Dislike split-grade class situations in the elementary. (3)

- 20. We are negative because our children are unhappy. (3)
- Students are forced to take "Mickey Mouse" courses because they can't work more important classes into their schedule--not all 45-15's fault. (3)
- 22. Give more thought to graduation and commencement. (3)
- 23. There is a little problem in planning things at times. (2)
- 24. The program should be evaluated in terms of its impact on the scholastic achievement of the students first. (2)
- 25. Taxes are not used in proper ways or in the best interest of students. (2)
- 26. Rumors say that the program is costing a great deal more than expected. (2)
- 27. It divides the school system into social segments -- is a type of segregation and may be unconstitutional. (2)
- 28. Buses running all year doesn't help gas shortage. (2)
- Creates scheduling problems for students attending career classes at the community college. (2)
- Deters students from working during summer months at full-time jobs. (2)
- We're sending our children to a private school where they're getting a superior education. (2)
- 32. Would rather build the necessary facilities. (2)
- 33. Children learn more and are less bored. (2)
- 34. More emphasis should be placed on reading at the secondary level. (2)
- 35. Sports are a problem -- too much running around when not in school. (2)
- 36. Want to see the results of this survey. (2)
- Go back to basics -- they waste rooms when they split subjects (English split into debate, reading, language, etc.).
- Politically motivated with no real concern for cost, students, and parents. (2)
- Unable to take any vacation due to children participating in sports when their group is not in session. (2)
- 40. The actual learning time is too "broken up." (2)
- 41. Availability of courses is a concern. (2)
- Believe that some questions on the questionnaire don't allow for factors other than 45-15 affecting negative or positive changes. (2)
- 43. Decision to implement 45-15 was too hasty. (2)
- 44. The school district has a lack of concern for children's problems. (2)
- 45. Works well in elementary grades -- not for high school. (2)
- 46. Unity of district is greatly reduced.

- 47. First time that my children have attended Western--they feel that they have good learning opportunities.
- 48. Unless the Board can show considerable savings, we should go back to the traditional program.
- 49. Too much change for students to cope with -- the old way was better.
- Believe that Kindergarteners should not be allowed to start in the 45-15 program unless they have reached five years of age before September 1.
- 51. Students should attend school as close to home as possible.
- 52. Even though it was stated that students would have the same teacher for a subject throughout the school year, one math class had a new teacher after the first 9 weeks. How many other falsehoods were told to convince the public that 45-15 would not impede students' education.
- 53. Increase number of field trips.
- 54. Hope that the residence sections remain the same over the coming years.
- 55. Other districts are not on vacation at the same times.
- Family structure needs strengthening with longer periods of togetherness which the summer vacation (3 months) provides.
- 57. 45-15 provides better utilization of facilities.
- 58. 3-R's should be required, even though not taking a college prep course.
- 59. Babysitters have been hard to get for working mothers due to the short term (3 weeks) that the children need one.
- 60. Believe that too few a number of people are involved in making the decisions.
- 61. Our child likes multi-entry classes better than regular classes.
- 62. Hot weather is no problem.
- 63. 45-15 is O.K. for the well adjusted and good learners.
- 64. When the schools were designed and built it was understood that additions to existing buildings could be made, rather than having to build new buildings. This fact was not taken into consideration when additional classrooms were needed.
- 65. Bus everyone in order to break up neighborhood problem.
- 66. Like to see more realistic life situations for training (marriage, taxes, etc.).
- Don't believe our kindergartener gets a firm enough foundation before vacation breaks. Hinders retention of skills.
- 68. Family vacation schedule can easily be worked around school schedule.

- 69. Questionnaires should have been sent to everyone in the district.
- 70. Students will be too young to get a job when they graduate.
- School should start later with Daylight Savings Time during winter weather.
- 72. More problems with 45-15 than with traditional program.
- 73. Some buses are overcrowded, while other are half empty.
- 74. The vacation breaks seem to provide relief for both the
- 75. The school administrators, through their efforts, have made it work.
- 76. Hope that the information (questionnaires) for decision-making is generated in time for proper consideration.
- 77. There are more problems than the school board is willing to admit.
- 78. State tests should be conducted twice this year for an evaluation of student learning.
- 79. Program is an asset in building stronger family relationships.
- 80. More difficult for teachers to teach multi-entry classes.
- 81. Curriculum is the main problem.
- 82. A positive approach to the problem at hand is important regardless of the type of calendar.
- 83. Seems to be a high turnover of teachers--too many teachers for one class.
- 84. Get off of Daylight Savings Time.
- 85. A system is no better than the teachers who make it work.
- 86. Evaluation is too late to help my child.
- 87. Would be interested in seeing teachers' responses.
- 88. Longest vacations shouldn't occur in the winter.
- 89. Disappointed in my child's achievement this year.
- 90. We did not have to take our children out of school during those years before 45-15 was implemented.
- 91. Would like some homework units sent home during vacations.
- 92. Have more shut-down in summer months.
- 93. Have been impressed with caliber of teaching staff.
- 94. Creates more family problems.
- 95. Elementary students should be able to attend neighborhood schools.
- 96. Equalize class sizes (Phy. Ed.).
- 97. Discontinue classes with fewer than 6 students.
- Program eliminates most of prime time for summer activities.
- 99. Reduce the number of classes by eliminating "junk" classes.
- 100. Taxpayers should have a vote on whether or not major changes are to be made in a school system.

- 101. Need better 8-12 scheduling.
- 102. Provide flexibility so that twins and siblings are not in the same elementary classroom.
- 103. Don't scrap the program because of a few loud dissenters.
- 104. Keep up the good work.
- 105. Don't see as many teenagers on the street as they are now able to get jobs that were not open to them before.
- 106. Upsets children's sleeping and eating habits.
- 107. Believe that a lot of time is wasted each time a group starts a new session.
- 108. Continue 45-15, or combine with adjacent districts that have adequate facilities and programs.
- 109. Empahsize education, not vacations. Improve the education first.
- 110. What happens to a family that has to move during the school year?
- 111. Believe that there is great educational merit to 45-15, not that it provides a "better" education.
- 112. Congratulate the Board for trying.
- 113. Don't think that the faculty challenges the intelligent
- 114. Our child "loves it," but we are unhappy with what it's doing to him.
- 115. Teachers aren't doing as much as they should to help students adjust.
- 116. Are other schools going to go along with this plan too?
- 117. Would like a more complete evaluation concerning what is being done about multi-entry classes at the high school level.

APPENDIX G. --Western School District Evaluation Project Secondary Student Questionnaire

1. What grade are you in this year?
25% 8th 19% 9th 20% 10th 21% 11th 15% 12th

2. Are you a: 47% Male

53% Female

3. What "group" (residence section) of the school district do you live in?

24% A 27% B 25% C 24% D 0% Don't Know

- 4. Which of the following statements would best describe your feelings about the 45-15 program in the Western School District? 38% Like It 43% Mixed Feelings 14% Don't Like It 5% Can't Say
- 5. Which of the following statements would best describe your feelings about the 45-15 program in comparison to the traditional school year program that you attended last year? 41% Like 45-15 better than traditional (9 month school, 3 month vacation)
 - 29% Like both about the same
 - 30% Don't like 45-15 as well as the traditional program.
- 6. Do you think you are getting more instruction from your teachers this year in comparison to last year? 17% More this year 60% About the same as last year 23% Less this year
- Which of the following would you say are your major "likes" of the 45-15 school program as compared to the traditional school year? (You may check more than one) 11% Shorter vacations, coming more often
 - 55% Less boredom with school or vacation
 - 12% Opportunity to learn more
 - 5% More knowledge retention
 - 46% Smaller class size
 - 11% More attention from teachers
 - 14% More interesting classes
 - 13% Others: (Please specify)
 - 1. Like alternating school and vacation situation. (7)

- More opportunity for individual to progress at own rate and/or learn. (5)
- 3. Get to know new people and/or make new friends. (4)
- 4. Like vacations in all seasons. (4)
- Provides good opportunity for finding and/or keeping outside jobs. (3)
- Allows a student to come in during breaks for independent study and/or to make up work. (2)
- 7. Less boredom with school and/or vacations. (2)
- 8. Less pressure.
- Dislike alternating vacations -- desire long summer vacation.
- 10. More resource materials are available.
- Which of the following would you say are your major "dislikes" of the 45-15 school program as compared to the traditional school year? (You may check more than one)
 - 41% Vacation breaks too short; no long summer vacation
 - 13% More boredom in school
 - 12% Less opportunity to learn
 - 31% Forget more during vacations
 - 20% Less attention from teachers
 - 17% Less interesting classes
 - 29% Others: (Please specify)
 - 1. Miss my friends from different groups, (25)
 - 2. Don't like having to attend school during the summer. (17)
 - Miss or don't hear about certain school activities when on vacation and/or dislike having to come back during vacation. (14)
 - Dislike not having a long summer for work and/or vacation. (10)
 - 5. Dislike and/or eliminate multi-entry classes. (10)
 - Difficult to get desired classes and/or need better scheduling. (6)
 - 7. More confusion and/or more difficult to learn. (4)
 - 8. Less attention from teachers and/or classes are too big. (4)
 - 9. Interferes with finding and/or keeping a job. (3)
 - 10. Dislike graduation situation. (2)
 - 11. Vacation breaks interrupt school work. (2)
 - 12. Some vacations are too long and/or become boring.
 - 13. Can't progress at own rate in some classes.
 - 14. Hinders social life.
 - 15. Reduces school spirit.
 - 16. Don't like having several different teachers for one course.

- Which of the following would best describe your opinion of the way your teachers are teaching you this year in comparison to last year?
 - 17% Doing a better job teaching me this year
 - 68% Doing about the same job of teaching me this year as last year
 - 14% Doing a worse job of teaching me this year
- 10. Has going to school under the 45-15 program caused you any problems that you did not have last year under the traditional school program?

39% Yes 61% No

If "Yes," please explain:

- 1. Interferes with finding and/or keeping a job. (34)
- Dislike not having long summer vacation and/or limits summer activities. (29)
- Makes it difficult for family to plan activities and/or vacations. (17)
- 4. Miss my friends in other groups. (12)
- Miss or dont' hear about certain school activities when on vacation and/or dislike having to come back during vacation. (11)
- Difficult to obtain desired classes and/or schedule classes.
 (9)
- 7. Dislike graduation situation. (6)
- 8. Dislike and/or eliminate multi-entry classes. (5)
- 9. More confusion and/or more difficult to learn. (4)
- 10. Forget what was learned while on breaks. (3)
- Creates extra burden on student at school and/or at home.
 (2)
- 12. All work has to be done in short periods of time.
- Difficult and/or unfair to have to make up assignments when family has to go away.
- Transportation to extra-curricular activities is a problem.
- 15. Doing worse academically this year.
- 11. Were you able to schedule classes that you needed to fulfill your educational requirements?

64% Yes

14% No

22% Uncertain

12. Were you able to schedule classes that you wanted?
53% Yes 38% No 9% Uncertain

- 13. How do you feel 45-15 has affected the availability of electives?
 - 23% More electives offered
 - 19% Fewer electives offered
 - 58% About the same
- 14. Have you had a multi-entry class? 86% Yes 14% No

If "Yes. " do you feel multi-entry classes have:

- 13% Provided greater learning opportunity
- 35% Hindered your learning opportunity
- 52% Have had no effect
- 15. Are your parents able to take their vacations from work at the same time as your school vacations if they wish to? 51% Yes 32% No 17 % Uncertain
- 16. Which of the following statements best describe your friendships this year?
 - 63% Kept most of my same friends
 - 21% Lost some old friends; gained some new friends
 - 16% Lost most of my old friends because they are in different groups
- 17. Has the 45-15 program made it more difficult for you to work in a part-time job this year? 26% Yes 24% No 47% Don't Work 3% Uncertain
- 18. Has the 45-15 program made it more difficult for you to take

part in school sports and/or other activities this year?
23% Yes 68% No 8% Uncertain

If "Yes," please explain.

- Miss or don't hear about certain school activities when on vacation and/or dislike having to come back during vacation for those activities. (58)
- Transportation presents a problem for extra-curricular activities. (19)
- 3. Makes it difficult to find and/or keep a job. (5)
- Makes it difficult for family to plan activities and/or vacations. (3)
- 5. Restricts girls extra-curricular activities.
- 19. What effect do you think the 45-15 program has had on school spirit?

22% Increased 28% Decreased 51% Unchanged

- 20. What things were wrong with the 45-15 program this year that you would like to see changed for next year? Please list below any comments that you may wish to make.
 - Have negative feelings about 45-15 and/or return to traditional program. (34)
 - 2. Dislike and/or eliminate multi-entry classes. (34)
 - Difficult to obtain desired classes and/or need better scheduling. (26)
 - 4. Need air-conditioning and/or too hot during summer. (21)
 - 5. Would like longer vacations -- especially in the summer. (17)
 - 6. Positive feelings about 45-15. (16)
 - Dislike attending achool during the summer and/or limits summer activities. (15)
 - Miss or don't hear about certain school activities when on vacation and/or dislike having to come back during vacation. (15)
 - 9. Would like more electives. (9)
 - Classes are too big and/or not enough attention from teachers. (9)
 - Allow students to change attendance groups freely and/or accelerate. (7)
 - 12. Like to have school start earlier each day in the summer and/or be shortened. (6)
 - 13. Miss my friends in different groups. (6)
 - 14. Dislike changing rooms and/or teachers every 3 weeks. (5)
 - 15. Teachers didn't know how to teach multi-entry classes and/or did a poor job. (5)
 - 16. Interferes with summer job and/or college entry. (5)
 - 17. Tend to foreget what was learned in class while on breaks.
 (5)
 - 18. Would like more classes with different groups in them (multi-entry). (4)
 - Some groups didn't have same advantages as other groups.
 (4)
 - 20. Like to see something done about graduation situation. (3)
 - 21. Makes it difficult to find and/or keep a job. (3)
 - 22. Don't like length of courses (9 week courses), (3)
 - 23. Alternate group vacation schedules. (3)
 - 24. Quality of education has been reduced. (3)
 - Have fewer "Mickey Mouse" courses and/or more interesting courses. (3)
 - 26. Would like choice of teachers. (2)
 - 27. Balance class sizes and/or group sizes. (2)
 - 28. Transportation is a problem for extra-curricular activities. (2)

- 29. Too much homework during vacations. (2)
- 30. Parents were not well enough informed.
- 31. Would like to see more opportunities to work on an individual basis.
- Teachers, administration, and/or Board should show more interest in making 45-15 work.
- 33. Need more teachers.
- 34. Reduced school spirit.

APPENDIX G.--Western School District Evaluation Project Fourth through Seventh Grade Questionnaire

What grade are you in?
 26% 4th 27% 5th 23% 6th 24% 7th

Who answered these questions?
 55% A Boy 45% A Girl

3. What "group" do you live in?
26% Group A 27% Group C
22% Group B 25% Group D

How well do you like the vacation periods (breaks) this year in comparison to last year?
 18% Don't like it as well as last year
 28% Like them about the same
 54% Like it better than last year

Are you excited about school this year?
 40% Yes 38% No 22% Don't Know

- Do you think that you are getting more instruction from your teacher this year in comparison to last year?
 37% Yes 14% No 43% About the Same 6% Don't Know
- 7. Has going to school year-round enabled you to "remember more and forget less" as compared to last year?
 47% Yes 22% No 21% About the Same 11% Don't
- Has going to school year-round created new problems for you?
 24% Yes 64% No 13% Don't Know

If "Yes," please explain:

- 1. Can't go on vacations with my parents. (8)
- Miss my old friends in different groups and/or don't get to see them as often. (6)
- 3. Dislike not having long summer vacations and/or hinders summer activities. (6)
- 4. Have negative feelings about 45-15. (2)
- 5. Makes it difficult to find and/or keep a job. (2)
- 6. Interferes with family plans and activities. (2)

- 7. Grades are lower this year.
- 8. Wanted to go to my own neighborhood school.
- 9. Return to the traditional school year.
- 10. Causes you to forget what you learn when you go on breaks.
- 11. Too hot in the summer.
- 12. Parents have to get a babysitter.
- 13. School work is harder this year.
- 14. Would like more work and/or school.
- 9. Have your after school activities been changed because you are now going to school the year-round?

27% Yes 65% No 8% Don't Know

- How do your grades this year compare with your grades last year?
 - 9% Grades are lower
 - 47% Grades are about the same
 - 45% Grades are better
- Are your father and mother able to take their vacation from work at the same time as you have your school vacation, if they want to?

32% Yes 21% No

21% No 34% Sometimes 14%

14% Don't Know

- 12. Do you have more fun this year in school than you had last year? 58% Yes 17% No 23% About the Same 2% Don't Know
- 13. How do you think that your friends feel about year-round school?
 20% They don't like it 32% They like it 48% Don't Know
- 14. Which of the following statements would best tell me of your friendships this year in school?
 - 43% Kept most of my same friends
 - 39% Lost some old friends; gained some new friends
 - 18% Lost most of my friends because they are in a different group.
- 15. What things would you like to see added to the school program for next year?
 - Negative feelings about 45-15 and/or return to traditional school year. (33)
 - 2. Have positive feelings about 45-15. (18)
 - 3. Need air-conditioning and/or too hot on summer days. (17)
 - Want more sports and/or other activities for elementary boys and girls. (15)

- 5. Want longer lunch time and/or recess time. (15)
- 6. Want longer and/or more vacations. (15)
- 7. Want different administrators and/or Board members. (8)
- Would like swimming in the summer and/or swimming pool. (7)
- 9. Would like better food for lunch. (7)
- 10. Would like more work and/or school. (6)
- Would like cleaner and/or better buildings and/or equipment. (6)
- 12. Want more courses and/or activities from which to choose. (5)
- Would like more and/or new buildings, rooms, and/or equipment. (5)
- Want more snow and/or heat days. (3)
- 15. Change the time that school is in session during winter and/or summer. (3)
- 16. Would like a new middle school. (2)
- 17. Would like to be able to see my friends from other groups.
- 18. Want a better opportunity to choose classes.
- 19. Want better teachers.
- 20. Transportation is a problem for extra-curricular activities.
- 21. Want to see better films.
- 22. Like my teachers.
- Would like to have different groups (residence) in same class.
- Put all elementary students (from one area) in the same school.
- 25. Would like to have less school work.

APPENDIX G.--Western School District Evaluation Project Teaching Staff Questionnaire

- How many school years have you been employed in the Western Schools? (Count any part of a year as a full year).
 13% 1 19% 2-3 26% 4-5 28% 6-10 15% More than 10
- What is the sex of the person completing this questionnaire?
 34% Male
 66% Female
- 3. What is your age?
 44% Under 30 47% 30-50 9% Over 50
- 4. What level do you teach?
 42% Elementary 19% Middle School 39% High School
- 5. Did you 'lockstep' under this year's contract? 62% Yes 38% No
- How many days are you contracted for during this school year?
 59% 185 or less 17% 186-225 24% More than 225
- How many days do you now think that you would generally like to contract for in future years?
 185 or less 24% 186-225
 19% More than 225
- Did you favor the implementation of the 45-15 program?
 74% Yes
 9% No
 17% Was Uncertain
- 9. What are your feelings now regarding the 45-15 program as implemented by the Western School District?
 49% Strongly Positive
 26% Somewhat Positive
 16% Mixed
 3% Strongly Negative
- 10. How do you feel the 45-15 program has affected the quality of education in the Western School District? 52% Unchanged 38% Improved 10% Reduced
- 11. Which of the following most closely represents your beliefs concerning how the 45-15 program affects students' learning? 37% Improves learning 6% Decreases learning 49% Makes little difference 8% Uncertain
- 12. Do you teach any "Multi-entry" classes? 37% Yes 63% No

- 13. In what way(s) have you changed your teaching style or methods as a result of the implementation of the 45-15 program? 23% Devised "Mini-course" structure for subject content to fit nine week modules
 - 29% Individualized instruction as much as possible
 - 38% Used somewhat more individualized materials and methods than previously
 - 5% Used large group methods more frequently than small
 - 33% Used small group methods more frequently than large
 - 27% Devised new materials for use other than standard tests or materials
 - 22% Little or no change
 - 14% Other:
 - Attempted to individualize instruction. (2) 1.
 - Changed because of interest -- not because of program (2) 2.
 - 3. Attempted to prepare learning centers, packets, tapes, contracts, etc. (2)
 - Used 3 week assignment sheets and rotated through 4. classroom groups.
 - 5. Had no set method or style.
 - 6. Split general and college prep students.
 - Now teaching a different level -- changed many things. 7.
 - Devised 3-week units to provide for multi-entry. 8.
 - 9. No money, therefore, what new materials?
- 14. Which of the following most closely represents your beliefs regarding the ability of the 45-15 program to increase the opportunity to make school more interesting for Western's students?
 - 64% Increases opportunities to make school more interesting 20% Makes little difference
 - 9% Decreases opportunities

 - 7% Uncertain
- 15. Do students appear to do better under the 45-15 program as opposed to the 9 month schedule as exemplified by the following?

Fewer Absences

27% Yes 32% No 40% Uncertain Less Discipline Problems 48% Yes 32% No 19% Uncertain

Better Classroom

Participation 47% Yes 22% No 30% Uncertain Higher Achievement 26% Ye Better Social Adjustment 24% Ye

26% Yes 24% No 50% Uncertain 24% Yes 32% No 44% Uncertain

- 16. Express your feelings about the 45-15 program. (You may check more than one)
 - 25% Provides better education for students
 - 7% Provides inadequate education for students
 - 65% Better retention of learning; less review needed
 - 6% Less retention of learning; need for more review
 - 78% More varied opportunities for student/family travel
 - 9% Less varied opportunities for student/family travel
 - 48% Higher student interest, enthusiasm
 - 2% Lower student interest, enthusiasm
 - 63% Less student and/or teacher boredom
 - 1% More student and/or teacher boredom
 - 20% Improved communication between administrators and professional staff
 - 26% Decreased effective communication between administrators and professional staff
 - 3% More able to attend graduate school
 - 36% Less able to attend graduate school
 - 8% Others: (Please specify)
 - 1. Less flexible program with multi-entry classes.
 - 2. Too early to evaluate the program fairly.
 - 3. Small class size was best benefit.
 - 4. Program has the effect of tightening, rather than loosening our schedule -- unfair to students.
 - It's like starting school all over after each 3 week break.
 - Better student and teacher involvement in school activities.
 - 7. Programs are not the panaces to education.
- 17. Would you be interested in taking additional graduate courses to help you overcome any problems that you encountered as a result of the 45-15 program?

47% Yes

26% No 26% Uncertain

18. Do you think that the 45-15 program will seriously hinder your ability to enroll in graduate courses for professional improvement?

27% Yes

56% No

17% Uncertain

- 19. Do you have any suggestions or comments which would improve Western's 45-15 program?
 - 1. Eliminate or reduce multi-entry classes--no more than dual entry. (13)
 - Would be advantageous to mix the children (residence groups) in school, both for the students' and teachers' benefit. (11)
 - 3. Provide better scheduling. (8)
 - 4. Need better and/or more storage area. (7)
 - Provide released time for departments to meet in order to study and attempt to solve problems. (6)
 - 6. Provide more A-V software and instructional materials. (5)
 - 7. Provide more "viable" inservice training programs. (5)
 - 8. Need bigger budgets. (4)
 - 9. Need air-conditioning, (3)
 - Need to improve communication between administration and staff. (3)
 - 11. Continue with Head Counselor position. (3)
 - 12. Keep small classes -- like small classes, (2)
 - 13. Desire present assistant superintendent as superintendent. (2)
 - 14. Program inhibits classroom teacher incentive to develop creative classroom with varied interest centers when a room switch has to be made 4 times a year. (2)
 - 15. More time needed before evaluation. (2)
 - 16. Want multi-entry in the middle school, (2)
 - 17. Do not start the program on a staggered basis.
 - 18. Teaching is inhibited during hot summer days.
 - 19. Need more outside activities.
 - 20. Program needs more study.
 - If teaching a multi-entry class, teach it back to back with some other course to allow a phase-in and no expensive over-lap.
 - Equalize class sizes.
 - Working well in the elementary--not working well in high school.
 - 24. Allows for teachers to individualize instruction.
 - 25. Provisions should be made for a teacher to take 9 weeks off for graduate study.
 - 26. Change staff members around from group to group to vary exposure of students to teachers.
 - 27. Concentrate on basic courses, rather than "fun" courses,
 - Combine with another school district so that more courses could be offered,
 - 29. Begin school year with three groups instead of one in order to eliminate overlapping.

- 30. Hire more teachers.
- 31. Adjust times and time allotment for conferences.
- 32. Want less hassel about requisitions.
- 33. Eliminate 45-15 above the middle school level.
- 34. Causes too many problems with music, sports, and foreign languages.
- 35. Have 18 weeks as minimum for courses.
- Contact community groups for programs and activities to be available.
- 37. Find adequate qualified substitutes to handle classes for a week or more.
- 38. Don't expect 45-15 to solve all educational problems.